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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 
 

Notice is hereby given that the 35th Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) of Ismail Industries Limited (the 
“Company”) will be held at Hotel Galaxy, Bushra Hall, 164, B.C.H.S. Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi on Monday, 
October 23, 2023 at 12:00 noon to transact the following businesses: 
 

Ordinary Businesses: 
 

1. To confirm the minutes of 34th Annual General Meeting of the Company held on October 26, 2022. 
 

2. To receive, consider, approve, and adopt the standalone and consolidated Audited Financial Statements of the 
Company for the year ended June 30, 2023, together with the Chairman’s Review Report, Directors’ Report, 
and Auditors’ Reports thereon.  

 

3. To declare and approve, as recommended by the Board of Directors, the payment of final cash dividend on the 
ordinary shares of the Company @ 20% (Rs. 2 per share) for the year ended June 30, 2023. This is in addition 
to the interim cash dividend @ 100% (Rs. 10 per share). 

 

4. To appoint Auditors for the year ending June 30, 2024 and fix their remuneration. The Board Audit Committee 
and the Board of Directors have recommended the name of retiring auditors M/s. Grant Thornton Anjum 
Rahman, Chartered Accountants, for re-appointment as Auditors of the Company. 

 

Special Businesses: 
 

5. To consider and approve the remuneration of the Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director. 
 

6. To ratify and approve transactions conducted with Related Parties for the year ended June 30, 2023 by passing 
the following special resolution with or without modification: 
 

"RESOLVED THAT transactions carried out in normal course of business with Related Parties during the 
year ended June 30, 2023 as disclosed in the note no. 45 of the unconsolidated financial statements be and are 
hereby ratified and approved." 
 

7. To authorize the Board of Directors of the Company to approve transactions with Related Parties for the 
financial year ending June 30, 2024, by passing the following special resolutions with or without modification: 

 

“RESOLVED THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and are hereby authorized to approve 
transactions to be conducted with Related Parties on case-to-case basis for the financial year ending June 30, 
2024.” 

 

“FURTHER RESOLVED THAT these transactions as approved by the Board shall be deemed to have been 
approved by the shareholders and shall be placed before the shareholders in the next Annual General Meeting 
of the Company for their formal ratification/approval.” 
 

8. To approve the circulation of Annual Report (including the Audited Financial Statements, Auditor’s Report, 
Directors’ Report and Chairman’s Review Report) to the members of the Company through QR enabled code 
and weblink, in accordance with section 223 (6) and 223 (7) of the Companies Act, 2017 read with S.R.O. 
389(I)/2023 dated March 21, 2023. 

 

9. To consider and if deemed fit, to pass with or without modification(s), addition(s) or deletion(s), the following 
Special Resolution(s) under Section 199 of the Companies Act, 2017 read with the Companies (Investment in 
Associated Companies or Associated Undertakings) Regulations, 2017 (as may be amended), as recommended 
by the Board of Directors of the Company: 
 

“RESOLVED THAT, approval of the members of the Company is hereby accorded by way of special 
resolution (in accordance with Section 199 of the Companies Act, 2017 read with Companies (Investment in 
Associated Companies or Associated Undertakings) Regulations, 2017) for the following acts by the Company: 
 

A. Approval for the Company to extend to its subsidiary, M/s. Ismail Resin (Private) Limited, an intercompany 
loan in the aggregate amount of up to Rs. 8,000,000,000 (Rupees: Eight billion), comprising of, inter alia, 
loans, advances and/or security in any form (including without limitation guarantees, government securities, 





53

Notes: 
 

1. Closure of Shares Transfer Book 
 

The shares transfer book of the Company shall remain closed with effect from October 17, 2023 to October 23, 
2023 (both days inclusive). Transfers received in order at the office of Share Registrar M/s. THK Associates 
(Pvt.) Ltd, Plot # 32-C, Jami Commercial Street 2, D.H.A. Phase VII, Karachi, Phone # 021-111-000-322 (the 
Share Registrar) at the close of business on October 16, 2023 will be considered in time to attend and vote at 
the meeting.  

 

2. Participation in Annual General Meeting 
 

A member eligible to attend and vote at this meeting may appoint another member as his/her proxy to attend 
and vote instead of him/her, and a proxy so appointed shall have all such rights as are available to a member. 
Proxy, in order to be effective, must reach the Company Share Registrar Office not less than 48 hours before 
the time of the meeting during working hours. 

 

An individual beneficial owner of shares must bring his/her original CNIC or Passport, Account and 
Participant I.D. numbers to prove his/her identity. A representative of corporate members must bring the 
Board of Directors’ Resolution and/or Power of Attorney and the specimen signature of nominee.  CDC 
account holders will further have to follow the guidelines as laid down in Circular No. 1 dated: January 26, 2000 
issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan.  

 

3. Submission of the CNIC (Mandatory) 
 

As per SECP directives, the dividend of shareholders, who’s valid CNICs are not available with the Share 
Registrar, may be withheld. All shareholders having a physical shareholding are therefore advised to submit a 
photocopy of their valid CNICs immediately, if already not provided, to the Share Registrar, without any further 
delay. 

 

4. Withholding Tax on Dividend 
 

Pursuant to the provisions of section 150 read with Division I of Part III of the First Schedule of the Income 
Tax Ordinance, 2001 as amended by the Finance Act, 2023, prescribes rates for deduction of withholding tax on 
the amount of dividend paid by the companies. These tax rates are as under:  

 

a. Rate of tax deduction for filer of income tax return 15% 
b. Rate of tax deduction for non-filer of income tax return 30% 

 

I) All the shareholders whose names are not entered into the Active Tax-Payers List (ATL) provided 
on the website of FBR, despite the fact that they are filers, are advised to make sure that their names 
are entered into ATL before the start of book closure date, otherwise tax on their cash dividend will 
be deducted @ 30% instead of 15%. 

 

II) A valid Tax Exemption Certificate under Section 159 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 is 
mandatory to claim exemption of withholding tax under Clause 47-B of Part-IV of Second Schedule 
to the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. Those who wish to seek an exemption must provide a copy of 
their valid tax exemption certificate to the Share Registrar prior to the date of commencement of 
Book Closure otherwise tax will be deducted according to the applicable Law. 

 

III) According to clarification received from FBR, withholding tax in case of joint accounts will be 
determined separately on ‘Filer/Non-Filer’ status of Principal Shareholder as well as Joint-holder(s) 
based on their shareholding proportions. In this regard, all Members/Shareholders of the Company 
either holding shares in physical form or in CDC, who hold shares jointly are requested to provide 
shareholding proportions of Principal Shareholder and joint-holder(s) in respect of shares held by 
them (only if not already provided) to our Share Registrar, in writing and in the following manner: 
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Folio/ 
CDS 

Account 
No. 

Total 
Shares  

Principal Shareholder Joint Shareholder(s) 

  Name & CNIC 
No. 

Shareholding proportion (No. of 
Shares) 

Name & 
CNIC 
No. 

Shareholding 
proportion (No. of 
Shares) 

 

The required information must reach our Share Registrar within 10 days of this notice, otherwise it 
will be assumed that the shares are equally held by Principal Shareholder and Joint Holder(s). 

 

5. Payment of Cash Dividend Electronically (Mandatory Requirement) 
 

The provisions of section 242 of the Companies Act, 2017, and Companies (Distribution of Dividends), 
Regulation 2017, a listed company, is required to pay cash dividend to the Shareholders ONLY through 
electronic mode directly into the bank account designated by the entitled shareholders. Accordingly, the 
shareholders holding physical shares are requested to provide the following information to the Company’s Share 
Registrar at the address given herein above. In case of shares held in CDC, the same information should be 
provided to the CDS participants for updating and forwarding to the Company. 

 

(i) Shareholder’s details: 
  redloherahS eht fo emaN

CDC Participant ID & Sub-Account No. /CDC IAS  
CNIC/NICOP/Passport/NTN No. (please attach copy)  
Contact Number (Landline & Cell Nos.)  

  sserddA s’redloherahS
(ii) Shareholder’s Bank account details: 

  tnuoccA knaB fo eltiT
  NABI
  emaN s’knaB
  .oN edoC & emaN hcnarB
  sserddA hcnarB

 

6. Transmission of Annual Report through Email 
 

Pursuant to the SRO No. 787(I)/2014 dated: September 08, 2014, issued by the Securities and Exchange 
Commission of Pakistan, permitted the Company to circulate its Annual Balance Sheet, Profit and Loss 
Account, Auditor’s Report and Directors’ Report etc., (“Annual Report”) along with the notice of Annual 
General Meeting (“Notice”), to its shareholders by email. Shareholders of the Company, who wish to receive 
the Company’s Annual Report and Notice by email, are requested to provide complete Electronic 
Communication details to Share Registrar of the Company. However, the Company may provide hard copy of 
Annual Report and Notice to such members on their request, free of cost, within seven days of receipt of such 
request. 

 

7. Transmission of Annual Report through CD 
 

The Company has circulated Annual Audited Financial Statements to its members through CD at their 
registered address. Printed copy of above said statements can be provided to members upon request. 

 

8. Unclaimed / Unpaid Entitlements 
 

Shareholders who by any reason could not collect their dividends/bonus shares/other entitlements are advised 
to contact our Share Registrar to collect/enquire about their unclaimed dividends/bonus shares/other 
entitlements, if any.  
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As per Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2017 every existing listed company shall be required to replace its 
physical shares with book-entry form in a manner as may be specified and from the date notified by the 
Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan. 
 

The shareholders having physical shares are encouraged to open CDC sub-account with any of the broker or 
Investor account directly with CDC to place their physical shares into scrip less form, this will facilitate them in 
many ways, including save custody and sale of shares any time they want, as the trading of physical shares is not 
permitted as per existing regulations of the Pakistan Stock Exchange. The shareholders of the Company may 
contact the Share Registrar of the Company for the conversion of physical shares into book-entry form. 

 

10. Postal Ballot  
 

Pursuant to Companies (Postal Ballot) Regulations 2018, and read with Sections 143 and 144 of the Companies 
Act, 2017, members will be allowed to exercise their right of vote through postal ballot, that is voting by post or 
through any electronic mode, in accordance with the requirements and procedure contained in the aforesaid 
Regulations. Ballot paper is annexed to the report.

 

11. Availability of Financial Statements and Reports on the Website 
 

In accordance with the Provision of section 223(7) of the Companies Act, 2017, the audited financial statements 
of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2023, are available on the Company’s website and can be 
downloaded from the following link: 
 

https://www.ismailindustries.com.pk/financial.php 
 

12. Request for Video Conference Facility 
 

In accordance with section 134(1)(b) of the Companies Act, 2017, if the Company receives consent from 
members holding in aggregate of 10% or more shareholding residing in a geographical location, to participate in 
the meeting through video conference at least 10 days prior to the date of meeting, the Company will arrange 
video conference facility in that city, subject to the availability of such facility in that city. To avail this facility, 
shareholders are requested to fill the request form reproduce below and submit to the registered address of the 
Company.  

 
 

REQUEST FOR VIDEO CONFERENCE FACILITY 
 

I/We/Messrs. ________________________________ of ___________________, being Member(s) of Ismail 
Industries Limited, holder of ______________ ordinary share(s) as per Folio # ________________ and/or 
CDC Participant ID & Sub-Account No. ___________________, hereby opt for video conference facility at 
___________ city. 
 
 
 
 
 

____________________ 
Signature of Member(s) 
(Please affix Company stamp in case of corporate entity) 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

9. Deposit of Physical Shares into CDC Account 
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STATEMENT OF MATERIAL FACTS UNDER SECTION 
134(3) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2017 
 
 

This statement is annexed as an integral part of the Notice of the Annual General Meeting of Ismail Industries 
Limited to be held on Monday, October 23, 2023, at 12:00 noon at Hotel Galaxy, Bushra Hall, 164, B.C.H.S. 
Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi, Pakistan, and set out the material facts concerning the Special Businesses to be transacted 
at the Meeting. 
 

1. Item number 5 of the notice – Approval for the increase in remunerations of Chief Executive Officer 
and Executive Director 
 

Approval is being sought for an increase in payment of remunerations to the Chief Executive Officer and 
Executive Director. 
 

For this purpose, the following Resolutions will be moved at the meeting. 
 

“RESOLVED THAT the Company be and is hereby approves and authorizes the payment as remunerations to 
the Chief Executive Officer a sum of Rs. 21,600,000/- per annum and Executive Director a sum of Rs. 
18,000,000/- per annum. 
 

“FURTHER RESOLVED THAT in addition to remunerations, all utility bills, perks & benefits will be paid 
by the Company. The approximate value of the utility bill, perks & benefits to be borne by the Company would 
be Rs. 1,800,000 per annum for the Chief Executive Officer and Rs. 1,500,000 per annum for the Executive 
Director. 
 

2. Item number 6 of the notice – Ratification and approval of the related party transactions carried out 
during the year ended June 30, 2023 

 

The Company carries out transactions with its related parties during the year ended June 30, 2023, on an arm’s 
length basis as per the approved policy in the normal course of business. All transactions entered into with 
related parties have to be approved by the Board of Directors duly recommended by the Audit Committee on a 
quarterly basis pursuant to Clause 15 of Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019. 
 

Many of the Company’s Directors were interested in certain transactions with related parties due to their 
common directorships in associated/subsidiary companies. During the 34th Annual General Meeting of the 
Company, shareholders had authorized the Board of Directors to approve the transactions with related parties 
from time-to time on case-to-case basis for the year ended June 30, 2023 and such transactions were deemed to 
be placed before the shareholders in upcoming Annual General Meeting for their formal approval/ratification. 
 

In view of the above, transactions conducted with related parties as shown in note no. 45 of the unconsolidated 
financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2023, are being placed before the shareholders for their 
consideration and approval/ratification. 

 

3. Item number 7 of the notice – Authorization for the Board of Directors to approve the related party 
transactions during the year ending June 30, 2024 

 

The Company shall be conducting transactions with its related parties during the year ending June 30, 2024, on 
an arm’s length basis as per the approved policy in the normal course of business. Many of the Company’s 
Directors will be interested in these transactions due to their common directorship in the subsidiary/associated 
companies. To promote transparent business practices, shareholders desire to authorize the Board of Directors 
to approve transactions with related parties from time-to-time on case-to-case basis for the year ending June 30, 
2024, which shall be deemed to be approved by the Shareholders. These transactions shall be placed before the 
shareholders in the next Annual General Meeting of the Company for their formal ratification/approval. 

 

4. Item number 8 of the notice – Circulation of Annual Audited Financial Statements through QR enabled 
code and weblink.  
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The Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) through its Notification No. S.R.O. 389(I)/2023 
dated March 21, 2023 has allowed the companies to circulate the Annual Audited Financial Statements to its 
Members/Shareholders through Quick Response (QR) enabled code and weblink instead of through 
CD/DVD/USB. The notice of meeting shall be dispatched to members as per requirements of the Companies 
Act, 2017 on their registered address, containing the QR code and the weblink address to view and download the 
Annual Audited Financial Statements together with the reports and documents required to be annexed thereto 
under the Companies Act, 2017. 
 

Considering the efficient innovations in technology, members approval is sought for the circulation of the 
Annual Report (including Annual Audited Financial Statements and other reports contained therein) to the 
members of the Company through QR enabled code and weblink in accordance with S.R.O 389(I)/2023 dated 
March 21, 2023. 

 

5. Item number 9 of the notice – Investment in subsidiary and associated company u/s. 199 of the 
Companies Act, 2017 
 

a.  M/s. Ismail Resin (Private) Limited 
 

(A)  Regarding associated company or associated undertaking: 
 

(i) Name of the associated company or 
associated undertaking  

M/s. Ismail Resin (Private) Limited 
 

(ii) Basis of relationship 
 

Subsidiary Company with 75% shareholding and common 
directorship of following directors: 
1)  Mr. Muhammad M. Ismail 
 2)  Mr. Maqsood Ismail Ahmed 
3)  Mr. Munsarim Saifullah  
4)  Mr. Ahmed Muhammad 
5)  Mr. Hamid Maqsood Ismail 

(iii) Earnings per share for the last three 
years; 

Loss per share: 
Financial Year 2023-2023 Rs. 0/04 
Financial Year 2021-2022 Rs. 0/20 
Financial Year 2020-2021: Rs. 31/87 

(iv) Break-up value per share, based on 
latest audited financial statements. 

Rs. 9/91 per share 
 

(v) Financial position, including main 
items of statement of financial 
position and profit and loss account 
on the basis of its latest financial 
statements. 

 

Financial Position and Profit / Loss for 
the 
Year ended June 30, 2023 Rs. 
Non-Current Assets 8,059,247,168 
Total Assets 9,992,990,794 
Equity – net 3,965,921,156 
Non-Current Liabilities 4,227,223,649 
Total Liabilities 6,027,069,638 
Loss for the Year 9,573,570 

 
 

(vi) In case of investment in relation to a 
project of associated company or 
associated undertaking that has not 
commenced operations, following 
further information, namely; 
 

(i) Description of the project and its 
history since conceptualization; 

(ii) Starting date and expected date of 
completion of work; 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Not Applicable 
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(iii) Time by which such project shall 
become commercially operational;  

(iv) Expected time by which the 
project shall start paying return on 
investment; and 

(v) Funds invested or to be invested 
by the promotors, sponsors, 
associated company or associated 
undertaking distinguishing 
between cash and non-cash 
amounts; 

 

(B)  General disclosures: 
 

(i) Maximum amount of investment to 
be made  

To provide an intercompany loan in the aggregate amount of 
up to Rs. 8,000,000,000 (Rupees: Eight billion), comprising 
of, inter alia, loans, advances and/or security in any form 
(including without limitation guarantees, government 
securities, cash, listed/unlisted securities etc.). 

(ii) Purpose, benefits likely accrue to the 
investing company and its members 
from such investment and period of 
investment. 
 

Purpose: 
Intercompany loan comprising of, inter alia, loans, advances 
and/or security in any form (including without limitation 
guarantees, government securities, cash, listed/unlisted 
securities etc.,) to meet the operational and working capital 
requirements. 
Benefits: 
1. To earn interest income which ultimately maximizes the 

shareholder value of the investing company. 
2. PET Resin will be available locally for investing company 

which it presently procures locally as well as from abroad 
through import. 

Period of Investment: 
The period of investment is one (1) year, renewable for five 
(5) consecutive periods of one (1) year each. 

(iii) 
 
 

Sources of fund to be utilized for 
investment and where the investment 
is intended to be made using 
borrowed funds: 

(i) Justification for investment 
through borrowings: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(ii) Detail of collateral, guarantees 
provided and assets pledged 
for obtaining such funds: and 
 

(iii) Cost benefit analysis: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The Company will lend to its subsidiary company when/if it 
has access to excess funds/banking lines/security, and the 
subsidiary company requires the same. Each facility will be 
provided on an arm’s length basis and will be done in a way 
which benefits the Company’s shareholders.  
 

The Company secures financing from banks by providing a 
charge over the assets. 
 
 
 
 
 

The subsidiary company will pay a mark-up at a rate as per 
the agreement which is not lower than the average borrowing 
cost of the Company, which will improve the profitability of 
the Company. 
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(iv) Salient features of the agreement(s), if 
any, with associated company or 
associated undertaking with regards 
to the proposed investment; 

The agreement will be signed after approval by the Members. 
Other significant terms and conditions are as under: 
1. Intercompany loan comprising of, inter alia, loans, 

advances and/or security in any form (including without 
limitation guarantees, government securities, cash, 
listed/unlisted securities etc.,) will be provided to the 
extent of Rs. 8,000,000,000 (Rupees: Eight billion). 

2. The subsidiary company will pay a mark-up at a rate as 
per the agreement which is not lower than the average 
borrowing cost of the Company, which will improve the 
profitability of the Company. 

3. Intercompany loan granted for a period of one (1) year, 
renewable for five (5) further periods of one (1) year 
each. 

(v) Direct or indirect interest of 
directors, sponsors, majority 
shareholders and their relatives, if 
any, in the associated company or 
associated undertaking or the 
transaction under consideration. 

Mr. Muhammad M. Ismail, Mr. Maqsood Ismail Ahmed, Mr. 
Munsarim Saifullah, Mr. Hamid Maqsood Ismail and Mr. 
Ahmed Muhammad, are Directors of Ismail Industries 
Limited (the investing company), they are also Directors of 
Ismail Resin (Private) Limited (the investee company). 
However, they have no direct or indirect interest except to 
the extent of their shareholding in the investee company. 
Whereas the investing company is the major shareholder of 
the investee company.  

(vi) 
 
 
 

In case any investment in associated 
company or associated undertaking 
has already been made, the 
performance review of such 
investment including complete 
information/justification for any 
impairment or write offs: 

Ismail Industries Limited have made an equity investment of 
Rs. 3,000,000,000 (Rupees: Three billion) for acquisition of 
land and construction of building and ancillary work.  The 
Company has also issued Cross Corporate Guarantee of Rs. 
4,175,000,000 (Rupees: Four billion one hundred seventy-
five million) to facilitate the subsidiary company to securitize 
its lenders against banking facilities extended to them for 
setting-up the project. 
There are no impairment and write off relating to the 
investment made so far. 

(vii) 
 
 

Any other important details necessary 
for the members to understand the 
transaction 

 
Not significant 

 

(C)  Additional information for Loans, Advances and Guarantees: 
 

(i) 
 

Category-wise amount of investment 
 

Intercompany loan comprising of, inter alia, loans, advances 
and/or security in any form (including without limitation 
guarantees, government securities, cash, listed/unlisted 
securities etc.,) will be provided to the extent of Rs. 
8,000,000,000 (Rupees: Eight billion) to meet the 
operational and working capital requirements. 

(ii) Average borrowing cost of the 
investing company, the Karachi Inter 
Bank Offered Rate (KIBOR) for the 
relevant period, rate of return for 
Shariah compliant products and rate 
of return for unfunded facilities, as 
the case may be, for the relevant 
period.  

Average borrowing cost of the investing company 
comprises the Karachi Interbank Offered Rate (KIBOR) for 
the relevant period plus average spread of the Bank, rate of 
return for Shariah compliant products and rate of return for 
unfunded facilities, as the case may be for the relevant 
period. The one-month KIBOR 22.54%, three-month 
KIBOR 22.91%, average spread of the Bank 0.32% and 
unfunded facilities bank rates were in the range of 0.05% to 
1.0% per annum as at June 30, 2023; the Company did not 
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invest in any Shariah complaint instruments in 2023. 
(iii) Rate of interest, markup, profit, fees 

or commission etc. to be charged by 
investing company 

The subsidiary company will pay a mark-up at a rate as per 
the agreement which is not lower than the average 
borrowing cost of the Company. 

(iv) 
 

Particulars of collateral or security to 
be obtained in relation to the 
proposed investment. 

No security obtained from the subsidiary company as 
collateral. 

(v) If the investment carries conversion 
features i.e., it is convertible into 
securities, this fact along with terms 
and conditions including conversion 
formula, circumstances in which the 
conversion may take place and the 
time when the conversion may be 
exercisable 

 
 

 
 

Not Applicable 
 

(vi) Repayment schedule and terms and 
conditions of loans or advances to 
be given to the associated company 
or associated undertaking 

Intercompany loan granted for a period of one (1) year, 
renewable for five (5) further periods of one (1) year each, 
other terms and conditions are applicable as per the 
agreement. 

 

b.  M/s. Hudson Pharma (Private) Limited 
 

(A)  Regarding associated company or associated undertaking: 
 

(i) Name of the associated company or 
associated undertaking  

M/s. Hudson Pharma (Private) Limited 

(ii) Basis of relationship 
 

Subsidiary Company with 78.53% shareholding and 
common directorship of following directors: 
1)    Mr. Munsarim Saifullah  
2)    Mr. Ahmed Muhammad 
3)    Mr. Hamid Maqsood Ismail  

(iii) Earnings per share for the last three 
years; 

Loss per share: 
Financial Year 2022-2023, Rs. 1/75 
Financial Year 2021-2022, Rs. 1/11 
Financial Year 2020-2021, Rs. 1/75 

(iv) Break-up value per share, based on 
latest audited financial statements 

Rs. 3/79 per share 

(v) Financial position, including main 
items of statement of financial 
position and profit and loss account 
on the basis of its latest financial 
statements. 

 

Financial Position and Profit / Loss for 
the 
Year ended June 30, 2023 Rs. 
Non-Current Assets 1,525,850,599 
Total Assets 2,181,868,769 
Equity – net 1,219,621,134 
Non-Current Liabilities 460,846,886 
Total Liabilities 962,247,635 
Loss for the Year 478,847,715 

 

(vi) In case of investment in relation to a 
project of associated company or 
associated undertaking that has not 
commenced operations, following 
further information, namely; 

(i) Description of the project and its 
history since conceptualization; 
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(ii) Starting date and expected date 
of completion of work; 

(iii) Time by which such project shall 
become commercially 
operational; 

(iv) Expected time by which the 
project shall start paying return 
on investment; and 

(v) Funds invested or to be invested 
by the promotors, sponsors, 
associated company or associated 
undertaking distinguishing 
between cash and non-cash 
amounts; 

Not Applicable 

 

(B)  General disclosures: 
 

(i) Maximum amount of investment to 
be made 

To provide an intercompany loan in the aggregate amount 
of up to Rs. 1,500,000,000 (Rupees: One billion five 
hundred million), comprising of, inter alia, loans, advances 
and/or security in any form (including without limitation 
guarantees, government securities, cash, listed/unlisted 
securities etc.). 

(ii) Purpose, benefits likely accrue to the 
investing company and its members 
from such investment and period of 
investment 

Purpose: 
Intercompany loan will be provided to meet the operational 
and working capital requirements. 
Benefits: 
To earn interest income which ultimately maximizes the 
shareholder value of the investing company. 
Period of Investment: 
The period of investment is one (1) year, renewable for five 
(5) consecutive periods of one (1) year each 

(iii) 
 
 

Sources of fund to be utilized for 
investment and where the investment 
is intended to be made using 
borrowed funds: 

(i) Justification for investment 
through borrowings: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

(ii) Detail of collateral, guarantees 
provided and assets pledged 
for obtaining such funds: and 
 

(iii) Cost benefit analysis: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The Company will lend to its subsidiary company when/if it 
has access to excess funds/banking lines/security, and the 
subsidiary company requires the same. Each facility will be 
provided on an arm’s length basis and will be done in a way 
which benefits the Company’s shareholders.  
 

The Company secures financing from banks by providing a 
charge over the assets. 
 
 
 
 
 

The subsidiary company will pay a mark-up at a rate as per 
the agreement which is not lower than the average 
borrowing cost of the Company, which will improve the 
profitability of the Company. 

(iv) Salient features of the agreement(s), if 
any, with associated company or 
associated undertaking with regards 

The agreement will be signed after approval by the 
Members. Other significant terms and conditions are as 
under: 
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to the proposed investment; 1. Intercompany loan comprising of, inter alia, loans, 
advances and/or security in any form (including without 
limitation guarantees, government securities, cash, 
listed/unlisted securities etc.,) will be provided to the 
extent of Rs. 1,500,000,000 (Rupees: One billion five 
hundred million).  

2. The subsidiary company will pay a mark-up at a rate as 
per the agreement which is not lower than the average 
borrowing cost of the Company, which will improve the 
profitability of the Company. 

3. Intercompany loan granted for a period of one (1) year, 
renewable for five (5) further periods of one (1) year 
each. 

(v) Direct or indirect interest of 
directors, sponsors, majority 
shareholders and their relatives, if 
any, in the associated company or 
associated undertaking or the 
transaction under consideration. 

Mr. Munsarim Saifullah, Mr. Hamid Maqsood Ismail, and 
Mr. Ahmed Muhammad are Directors of Ismail Industries 
Limited (the investing company), they are also Directors of 
Hudson Pharma (Private) Limited (the investee company). 
However, they have no direct or indirect interest except to 
the extent of their shareholding in the investee company. 
Whereas the investing company is a major shareholder of 
the investee company. 

(vi) 
 
 
 

In case any investment in associated 
company or associated undertaking 
has already been made, the 
performance review of such 
investment including complete 
information/justification for any 
impairment or write offs: 

Ismail Industries Limited have made an equity investment of 
Rs. 2,525,984,000 (Rupees: Two billion five hundred 
twenty-five million nine hundred eighty-four thousand) and 
issued Cross Corporate Guarantee of Rs. 663,811,644 
(Rupees: Six hundred sixty-three million eight hundred 
eleven thousand six hundred forty-four) in favor of the 
lenders of Hudson Pharma for securitizing them against 
banking facilities extended.  
Hudson Pharma having the state of art and most modern 
manufacturing facility anywhere in Pakistan. It has a well-
established track record of executing their vision based on 
repeatable and reliable processes that they have developed 
and refined over many years. It has an aim to provide health 
institutions with more sterile injectable materials which are 
easier to administer as compared to other form of dosage. 
 

There are no impairment and write off relating to the 
investment made so far. 

(vii) 
 
 

Any other important details necessary 
for the members to understand the 
transaction 

 
Not significant 

 

(C)  Additional information for Loans, Advances and Guarantees: 
 

(i) 
 

Category-wise amount of investment 
 

Intercompany loan comprising of, inter alia, loans, advances 
and/or security in any form (including without limitation 
guarantees, government securities, cash, listed/unlisted 
securities etc.,) will be provided to the extent of Rs. 
1,500,000,000 (Rupees: One billion five hundred million) to 
meet the operational and working capital requirements. 

(ii) Average borrowing cost of the 
investing company, the Karachi Inter 
Bank Offered Rate (KIBOR) for the 

Average borrowing cost of the investing company 
comprises the Karachi Interbank Offered Rate (KIBOR) for 
the relevant period plus average spread of the Bank, rate of 
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relevant period, rate of return for 
Shariah compliant products and rate 
of return for unfunded facilities, as 
the case may be, for the relevant 
period.  

return for Shariah compliant products and rate of return for 
unfunded facilities, as the case may be for the relevant 
period. The one-month KIBOR 22.54%, three-month 
KIBOR 22.91%, average spread of the Bank 0.32% and 
unfunded facilities bank rates were in the range of 0.05% to 
1.0% per annum as at June 30, 2023; the Company did not 
invest in any Shariah complaint instruments in 2023. 

(iii) Rate of interest, markup, fees or 
commission etc. to be charged by 
investing company 

The subsidiary company will pay a mark-up at a rate as per 
the agreement which is not lower than the average 
borrowing cost of the Company. 

(iv) 
 

Particulars of collateral or security to 
be obtained in relation to the 
proposed investment 

No security obtained from the subsidiary company as 
collateral.  

(v) If the investment carries conversion 
features i.e., it is convertible into 
securities, this fact along with terms 
and conditions including conversion 
formula, circumstances in which the 
conversion may take place and the 
time when the conversion may be 
exercisable. 
 

 
 
 
 

Not Applicable 
 

(vi) Repayment schedule and terms and 
conditions of loans or advances to 
be given to the associated company 
or associated undertaking 

Intercompany loan granted for a period of one (1) year, 
renewable for five (5) further periods of one (1) year each, 
other terms and conditions are applicable as per the 
agreement. 

 

c.  M/s. Innovita Nutrition (Private) Limited 
 

(A)  Regarding associated company or associated undertaking: 
 

(i) Name of the associated company or 
associated undertaking  

M/s. Innovita Nutrition (Private) Limited 

(ii) Basis of relationship 
 

Associated Company on the basis of common directorship 
of following directors: 
1)    Mr. Munsarim Saifullah  
2)    Mr. Ahmed Muhammad 
3)    Mr. Hamid Maqsood Ismail  

(iii) Earnings per share for the last three 
years; 

Loss per share: 
Financial Year 2022-2023, Rs. 0/35 
Financial Year 2021-2022, Rs. 0/40 

(iv) Break-up value per share, based on 
latest audited financial statements 

Rs. 9/25 per share 

(v) Financial position, including main 
items of statement of financial 
position and profit and loss account 
on the basis of its latest financial 
statements. 

 

Financial Position and Profit / Loss for 
the 
Year ended June 30, 2023 Rs. 
Non-Current Assets 7,828,230 
Total Assets 505,945,883 
Equity – net 64,763,547 
Non-Current Liabilities 89,942 
Total Liabilities 441,182,336 
Loss for the Year 2,454,486 

 

(vi) In case of investment in relation to a  
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project of associated company or 
associated undertaking that has not 
commenced operations, following 
further information, namely; 
(vi) Description of the project and 

its history since 
conceptualization; 

(vii) Starting date and expected date 
of completion of work; 

(viii) Time by which such project 
shall become commercially 
operational; 

(ix) Expected time by which the 
project shall start paying return 
on investment; and 

(x) Funds invested or to be 
invested by the promotors, 
sponsors, associated company 
or associated undertaking 
distinguishing between cash and 
non-cash amounts; 

 

 
 
 
 

 
Not Applicable 

 

(B)  General disclosures: 
 

(i) Maximum amount of investment to 
be made 

To provide an intercompany loan in the aggregate amount 
of up to Rs. 1,000,000,000 (Rupees: One billion), 
comprising of, inter alia, loans, advances and/or security in 
any form (including without limitation guarantees, 
government securities, cash, listed/unlisted securities etc.). 

(ii) Purpose, benefits likely accrue to the 
investing company and its members 
from such investment and period of 
investment 

Purpose: 
Intercompany loan will be provided to meet the operational 
and working capital requirements. 
Benefits: 
To earn interest income which ultimately maximizes the 
shareholder value of the investing company. 
Period of Investment: 
The period of investment is one (1) year, renewable for five 
(5) consecutive periods of one (1) year each 

(iii) 
 
 

Sources of fund to be utilized for 
investment and where the investment 
is intended to be made using 
borrowed funds: 

(i) Justification for investment 
through borrowings: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(ii) Detail of collateral, guarantees 
provided and assets pledged 
for obtaining such funds: and 
 

(iii) Cost benefit analysis: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The Company will lend to its associated company when/if it 
has access to excess funds/banking lines/security, and the 
associated company requires the same. Each facility will be 
provided on an arm’s length basis and will be done in a way 
which benefits the Company’s shareholders.  
The Company secures financing from banks by providing a 
charge over the assets. 
 
 
 
 
 

The associated company will pay a mark-up at a rate as per 
the agreement which is not lower than the average 
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borrowing cost of the Company, which will improve the 
profitability of the Company. 

(iv) Salient features of the agreement(s), if 
any, with associated company or 
associated undertaking with regards 
to the proposed investment; 

The agreement will be signed after approval by the 
Members. Other significant terms and conditions are as 
under: 
 

Intercompany loan comprising of, inter alia, loans, advances 
and/or security in any form (including without limitation 
guarantees, government securities, cash, listed/unlisted 
securities etc.,) will be provided to the extent of Rs. 
1,000,000,000 (Rupees: One billion).  
 

The associate company will pay a mark-up at a rate as per 
the agreement which is not lower than the average 
borrowing cost of the Company, which will improve the 
profitability of the Company. 
Intercompany loan granted for a period of one (1) year, 
renewable for five (5) further periods of one (1) year each. 

(v) Direct or indirect interest of 
directors, sponsors, majority 
shareholders and their relatives, if 
any, in the associated company or 
associated undertaking or the 
transaction under consideration. 

Mr. Munsarim Saifullah, Mr. Hamid Maqsood Ismail, and 
Mr. Ahmed Muhammad are Directors of Ismail Industries 
Limited (the investing company), they are also Directors of 
Innovita Nutrition (Private) Limited (the investee company). 
However, they have no direct or indirect interest except to 
the extent of their shareholding in the investee company. 

(vi) 
 
 
 

In case any investment in associated 
company or associated undertaking 
has already been made, the 
performance review of such 
investment including complete 
information/justification for any 
impairment or write offs: 

Not Applicable 

(vii) 
 
 

Any other important details necessary 
for the members to understand the 
transaction 

 
Not significant 

 

(C)  Additional information for Loans, Advances and Guarantees: 
 

(i) 
 

Category-wise amount of investment 
 

Intercompany loan comprising of, inter alia, loans, advances 
and/or security in any form (including without limitation 
guarantees, government securities, cash, listed/unlisted 
securities etc.,) will be provided to the extent of Rs. 
1,000,000,000 (Rupees: One billion) to meet the operational 
and working capital requirements. 

(ii) Average borrowing cost of the 
investing company, the Karachi Inter 
Bank Offered Rate (KIBOR) for the 
relevant period, rate of return for 
Shariah compliant products and rate 
of return for unfunded facilities, as 
the case may be, for the relevant 
period.  

Average borrowing cost of the investing company 
comprises the Karachi Interbank Offered Rate (KIBOR) for 
the relevant period plus average spread of the Bank, rate of 
return for Shariah compliant products and rate of return for 
unfunded facilities, as the case may be for the relevant 
period. The one-month KIBOR 22.54%, three-month 
KIBOR 22.91%, average spread of the Bank 0.32% and 
unfunded facilities bank rates were in the range of 0.05% to 
1.0% per annum as at June 30, 2023; the Company did not 
invest in any Shariah complaint instruments in 2023. 

(iii) Rate of interest, markup, fees or The associated company will pay a mark-up at a rate as per 
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commission etc. to be charged by 
investing company 

the agreement which is not lower than the average 
borrowing cost of the Company. 

(iv) 
 

Particulars of collateral or security to 
be obtained in relation to the 
proposed investment 

No security obtained from the associated company as 
collateral. 

(v) If the investment carries conversion 
features i.e., it is convertible into 
securities, this fact along with terms 
and conditions including conversion 
formula, circumstances in which the 
conversion may take place and the 
time when the conversion may be 
exercisable 

 
 
 
 

Not Applicable 
 

(vi) Repayment schedule and terms and 
conditions of loans or advances to 
be given to the associated company 
or associated undertaking 

Intercompany loan granted for a period of one (1) year, 
renewable for five (5) further periods of one (1) year each, 
other terms and conditions are applicable as per the 
agreement. 

 

Information under Rule 4(1) of the Companies (Investment in Associated Companies or Associated 
Undertakings) Regulations, 2017 
 

As mentioned above and as per the disclosure requirement of Regulation 4(1) of the Companies (Investment in 
Associated Companies or Associated Undertakings) Regulations, 2017, it is informed that following Directors of the 
Company are also the Directors of Investee companies. 
 

 ynapmoC detaicossA seinapmoC yraidisbuS
Ismail Resin 

(Private) Limited 
Hudson Pharma 
(Private) Limited 

Innovita Nutrition 
(Private) Limited 

Mr. Munsarim Saifullah Mr. Munsarim Saifullah Mr. Munsarim Saifullah 
Mr. Ahmed Muhammad Mr. Ahmed Muhammad Mr. Ahmed Muhammad 
Mr. Hamid Maqsood Ismail Mr. Hamid Maqsood Ismail Mr. Hamid Maqsood Ismail 
Mr. Muhammad M. Ismail                ---------------               --------------- 
Mr. Maqsood Ismail Ahmed                ---------------               --------------- 

 

Statement Under Rule 4(2) of the Companies (Investment in Associated Companies or Associated 
Undertakings) Regulations, 2017 
 

Name of the Investee Company Ismail Resin 
(Private) Limited 

Hudson Pharma 
(Private) Limited 

Total Amount approved 
a. Equity 
b. Corporate Cross Guarantee 
c. Financial Assistance 

 
Rs. 3,000,000,000 
Rs. 4,700,000,000 
Rs. 7,000,000,000 

 
Rs. 1,200,000,000  
Rs. 1,000,000,000 
            --------- 

Amount of investment made to date 
a. Equity 
b. Cross Corporate Guarantee 
c. Financial Assistance 

 
Rs. 3,000,000,000 
Rs. 4,175,000,000 
Rs. 2,380,000,000 

 
Rs. 920,000,000 
Rs. 663,811,644 
            ---------- 

Reason for deviations from the approved timeline of 
investment, where investment decision was to be 
implemented in specified time  

There is no deviation in timeline of 
Investment. 

Material changes in financial statements of associated 
company or associated undertaking since date of the 
resolution passed for approval of investment 

There is no material change in financial 
statements of associated company or 
associated undertaking since date of the 
resolution passed for approval of 
investment. 
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KEY OPERATING AND FINANCIAL DATA

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018

Assets employed

Operating fixed assets 24,468      21,364       19,903       13,731       12,121       10,756       

Capital work - in - progress 4,370        3,762         976            5,843         638            157            

Intangible assets 2               6               34              55              86              42              

Long term investment 8,751         7,145         5,278         5,276         3,212         3,560         

Long term deposits 26             24              27              37              44              39              

Net current assets / (liabilities) 5,765        2,328         258            632            97              133            

Total Assets Employed 43,382      34,629       26,476       25,574       16,198       14,687       

Financed by

Shareholders equity 17,716       12,579       11,275       9,900         7,374         7,220         

Long term financing 23,192       19,691       12,910       13,605       7,191         6,037         

Deferred liabilities 2,474        2,359         2,291         2,069         1,633         1,430         

43,382      34,629       26,476       25,574       16,198       14,687       

Sales & profit

Gross sales 99,733      65,256       44,949       40,807       37,011       29,971       

Net sales 88,906      55,261       37,308       33,218       30,091       23,906       

Gross profit 18,432       9,845         7,194         6,878         6,354         5,361         

Profit before taxation 7,531         3,387         2,213         1,323         1,404         1,838         

Profit after taxation 6,382        2,551         1,777         932            967            1,412         

Dividend (%age) 120           40              150            35              45              28              

Reserves 17,052       11,916       10,611       9,236         6,736         6,582         

---------------(Rs. in millions)---------------
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SUMMARY OF PROFIT OR LOSS 

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018

Profit or Loss Account
Sales - gross            99,733            65,256            44,949            40,807            37,011            29,971 

Sales - net            88,906            55,261            37,308            33,218            30,091            23,906 

Cost of Sale          (70,474)           (45,415)           (30,114)           (26,340)           (23,737)           (18,545)

Gross profit             18,432              9,845              7,194              6,878              6,354              5,361 

Selling & Distribution expenses            (7,054)             (4,785)             (4,236)             (4,469)             (3,590)             (2,896)

Administrative expenses             (1,048)                (817)                (652)                (594)                (541)                (381)

Other operating expenses               (823)                (423)                (394)                (181)                (172)                (254)

Other operating income               1,995                 763                 393                 353                 213                 232 

Profit from operation             11,502              4,584              2,306              1,988              2,264              2,062 

Finance cost            (4,399)             (1,414)                (694)             (1,156)                (905)                (617)

Share of profit from associated company                 429                 217                 601                 492                   45                 393 

Profit before taxation              7,532              3,387              2,214              1,324              1,404              1,838 

Taxation expense             (1,150)                (836)                (437)                (391)                (437)                (425)

Profit after taxation              6,382              2,551              1,777                 933                 967              1,413 

Balance Sheet
Total equity             17,716            12,580            11,275              9,900              7,374              7,220 

Total non-current liabilities            25,666            22,051            15,201            15,674              8,824              7,467 

Total current liabilities            29,674            16,714            14,514            11,934            10,766              8,385 

Total equity and liabilities            73,056            51,344            40,990            37,508            26,964            23,072 

Total non-current assets             37,618            32,302            26,218            24,942            16,100            14,554 

Total current assets            35,438            19,042            14,772            12,566            10,864              8,518 
           73,056            51,344            40,990            37,508            26,964            23,072 

---------------(Rs. in millions)---------------
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GRAPHICAL PRESENTATION
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TNEMETATS  WOLF HSAC FO YRAMMUS

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018

Cash generated from operations       4,396       2,251       2,653       3,882 1,842      2,994      
Gratuity paid          (69)           (44)           (69)           (32) (20)         (20)         
Income tax paid-net        (988)         (704)         (178)         (534) (340)        (344)        
Long term deposits - net            (3)              3            10              7 (5)           (6)           

Net cash generated from operating activities       3,336       1,507       2,416       3,323 1,477      2,624      

Capital expenditure (including CWIP)      (6,231)      (6,618)      (3,355)      (8,127) (3,161)     (1,558)     
Intangible assets            -               (1)           (10)            -   (47)         (36)         
Long term investment in subsidiaries      (1,525)      (1,903)            -           (624) (376)        -         
Investment in associated undertakings            -              -           (492)           (16) -         -         
Proceed from dissolution of associated company            -              -            188            -   -         -         
Proceed from sale of long term investment            -              -              -              -   196         117         
Dividend received            -              -            629          122 -         362         
Short-term investments made - net         (190)         (652)         (124)         (200) -         -        
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment          177          552          585            58 231         76           

Net cash used in investing activities     (7,769)      (8,621)      (2,579)      (8,787) (3,157)     (1,039)     

Receipts / (repayment) from long term financing-net       4,320       6,439       2,014       6,433 902         (1,439)     
Sponsor's loan            -              -              -              17 -         -         
Lease repayments - net            (8)           (55)         (106)           (68) (263)        251         
Short term finances - secured       1,737       3,077         (221)       2,075 777         (753)        
Interest / mark-up paid     (3,682)      (1,202)         (727)      (1,166) (801)        (610)        
Dividend paid        (928)         (994)         (199)         (223) (287)        (176)        
Net cash generated from/ (used in) financing activities       1,439       7,265          761       7,068 328         (2,727)     

Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents     (2,994)          150          598       1,604 (1,352)     (1,142)     
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year         (916)      (1,066)      (1,664)      (3,268) (1,916)     (774)        

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year      (3,910)         (916)      (1,066)      (1,664) (3,268)     (1,916)     

---------------(Rs. in millions)---------------
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Profitability Ratios UOM 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
Gross profit ratio Percentage 22.43% 21.12% 20.70% 19.28% 17.82% 20.73%
Net profit to sales Percentage 5.91% 3.21% 2.81% 4.76% 4.62% 7.18%
EBITDA margin to sales Percentage 14.40% 11.32% 11.39% 12.41% 12.66% 16.12%
Return on equity Percentage 22.52% 13.39% 12.64% 17.95% 22.63% 50.73%
Return on capital employed Percentage 16.29% 15.72% 15.30% 11.37% 18.13% 34.45%
Shareholders' fund Rs. (millions)        7,220         7,374         9,900       11,275       12,580       17,716 

Liquidity Ratios
Current ratio Times 1.02 1.01 1.05 1.02 1.14 1.19

Quick ratio Times 0.40 0.51 0.50 0.46 0.61 0.64

Investment /Market Ratios
Earning per share Rupees 22.13 15.15 14.49 26.77 38.44 96.17

Breakup value per share Rupees 113.16 115.58 149.19 169.91 189.57 266.98

Cash Dividend per share Rupees 4.50 3.50 3.00 15.00 4.00 12.00

Activity / Turnover Ratios
Total Assets turnover ratio Times 1.04 1.12 0.89 0.91 1.08 1.22
Inventory turnover Days 51 81 83 89 68 66
Receivables turnover Days 20 22 29 28 26 30
Payables turnover Days 16 18 25 25 14 20
Net operating cycle Days 55 85 87 92 80 76

FINANCIAL RATIOS

22.43% 21.12% 20.70% 19.28% 17.82% 20.73%

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

Gross profit ratio
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2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
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22.52%
13.39% 12.64% 17.95% 22.63%

50.73%

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

Return on equity

16.29% 15.72% 15.30% 11.37%
18.13%

34.45%

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

Return on capital employed

7,220 7,374 
9,900 11,275 12,580 

17,716 

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

Shareholders’ fund (in millions)
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CHAIRMAN’S REVIEW REPORT
 
On behalf of the Board of Directors, it gives me 
immense pleasure to present the review report to our 
shareholders pertaining to the overall performance of 
the Company, its Board and effectiveness of its role in 
attaining the Company’s aims and objectives for the 
year ended June 30, 2023.  
 
The fiscal year under review was too difficult globally 
as well as nationally. The country’s economy and 
operating environment remained extremely 
challenging and grappled with social, economic crises, 
political polarization, double-digit high inflation, 
energy crises, foreign exchange constraint and sharp 
currency devaluation, hike in policy rate to 
unprecedented levels and supply chain disruption. 
Despite these obstacles, Ismail Industries Limited 
displayed resilience, emerging as a market leader across 
its diverse business ventures and continued its growth 
momentum and delivered remarkable strong 
performance in 2023 with 53 % increase in gross 
revenue and 150% surge in profit after tax.  
 
The Board performed its duties and responsibilities 
diligently and contributed effectively to guiding the 
Company in strategic and governance matters.  It also 
played a key role in monitoring management 
performance and assessing major risk areas.  The 
Board was fully engaged in the strategic planning 
process and supporting the vision of the Company. 
The Board Committees continued to work with a great 
measure of proficiency. The Board recognizes that well 
defined corporate governance processes are vital to 
enhancing corporate accountability and is committed 
to ensuring high standards of corporate governance to 
preserve and maintain stakeholders’ value. All Board 
members, including independent directors, fully 
participated in, and contributed towards the decision-
making process of the Board. 
 
The Company has implemented a strong governance 
framework supportive of effective and prudent 
management of business matters which is regarded as 
instrumental in achieving long-term success of the 
Company. The Board’s role was instrumental in 
steering the Company forward in a challenging 
environment whilst discharging its statutory 
responsibilities for the benefits of all stakeholders.  The 
Board has remained cognizant throughout the year of 
its strategic role in achieving the Company’s key  
 

 
 
objectives and on enhancing the returns for all its 
stakeholders from focused oversight. 
 
The Board carries out a review of its effectiveness and 
performance each year on a self-assessment basis. The 
Board Performance assessment for the year was based 
on an evaluation of the integral components i.e., 
Strategic Planning, its Composition, Committees, 
Procedures, Interactions, Effectiveness, etc. The 
Board meets frequently enough to adequately 
discharge its responsibilities. The Non-Executive and 
Independent Directors are equally involved in 
important decisions. 
 
The Company’s Board has seven Directors, including 
two Independent Directors, possesses extensive 
expertise spanning various domains, including 
business, finance, information technology, and 
regulations. We are resolute in our commitment to 
charting the Company's course, promoting its success, 
and guiding senior management to execute operations 
efficiently and diligently, all while upholding the 
principles of sound corporate governance. 
Additionally, our Audit Committee and Human 
Resource & Remuneration Committee, staffed by 
qualified individuals with relevant experience, operate 
in accordance with their assigned Terms of Reference. 
 
On behalf of the Board of Directors, I would like to 
express my heartfelt gratitude to all our stakeholders 
for their unwavering trust, continued support, and 
encouragement. I recognize and deeply appreciate the 
exceptional contributions of my Fellow Board 
Members, senior management, and workforce during 
these challenging times and thank for valuable 
contributions for the continued growth of the 
Company. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Muhammad M. Ismail 
Chairman 
Dated: September 08, 2023 
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DIRECTOR’S REVIEW REPORT 
 
The Directors take pleasure in presenting the 
brief performance review of the Company 
together with the annual audited financial 
statements both stand-alone and consolidated 
for the year ended June 30, 2023. 
 
MACRO ECONOMIC PROSPECTS 
 
The year under review was challenging for many 
reasons and severely affected by the global 
economic slowdown, eventually distressing 
several industries and businesses of the country, 
specifically, and global entities in general. 
Predominant global trends impacted Pakistan’s 
economy and the current political uncertainty 
deteriorated it further. 
 
One of the main challenges prevailed, was the 
current account deficit. Restrictions on import 
mitigated this challenge to a certain extent but 
many manufacturing businesses were adversely 
affected by these measures, mainly challenging 
their supply chain specially for the procurement 
of raw materials. Depressed macro-economic 
conditions, prolonged period of global inflation 
and sharp currency devaluation, were the key 
drivers towards why the exports and foreign 
remittances remained sluggish. The delay in 
recommencement of the IMF program also 
pressurized the local currency eventually 
breaching the ever-highest level. To sustain the 
constancy of macroeconomic elements and 
normalize the cumulative demand, SBP hiked 
the policy rate to the ever-highest level of 22%. 
 
Nevertheless, The Company’s management is 
proactively implementing various strategies and 
plans to mitigate the aforesaid economic 
headwinds impacting the Company’s financial  
 
performance and operations. The management 
is committed to increasing operational 
efficiencies through cost optimization, risk 
management, and employing innovations to 
deliver value to our stakeholders. While 
adopting all these proactive measures the main 

idea is to remain optimistic about the company’s 
long-term prospects for the business and 
adaptable to the evolving market conditions. 

 
BUSINESS PERFORMANCE 

The Company proudly retains its status in the 
industry as the fastest growing player among the 
top-line competitors with their strong presence 
in the confectionery, biscuits, snacks, nutrition, 
and plastic films industry. Topline sales Rs. 99.73 
billion witnessed a hefty growth of 53% 
compared to Rs. 65.26 billion last year. All this 
was achieved through rationalized resource 
utilization, tremendous marketing initiatives and 
product diversifications. Let’s go through the 
summary of Company’s accomplishments this 
year in the table below: 
 

Long-
Term 

Business 
Prospects

Product 
Differentition

Innovation

Cost 
Optimization

Effective 
Marketing 
Strategies

Risk 
Management

Value 
Addition
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With all the challenges mentioned earlier, the 
business has successfully managed to identify 
and analyze market conditions, changes in 
consumer behaviors and tough procurement 
encounters, and thus served these challenges 
with impressive and promising efforts investing 
in such a way that resources are utilized 
rationally, and the end-consumer is satisfied to 
its maximum. 
 
Below is the segment-wise breakup of annual 
turnover: 
 

 
 
FOOD SEGMENT OPERATIONS  
 
Our food segment is home to an impressive 
series of confectionary, biscuits, snacks, 
nutrition, and flour division with a wide range of 
products including jellies, marshmallows, 
toffees, candies, lollipops, coated chews, 
bubbles, chocolates, biscuits, cakes, nutritional 
food supplements and flour. The best-selling 
patents that fall under this segment are 
Candyland, Bisconni, Snackcity, Ismail Nutrition 
and Ghiza. 
 

 
 
Since its arrival in 1988, Candyland retains its top 
status of being one of the pioneer confectionery 
sellers in Pakistan. Backed by a consumer centric 
and innovation driven mindset, Candyland is 
known to introduce innovative and unique 
product categories to the consumers one after 
another, striving hard to always delight its 
consumers around the globe. 
 
Candyland offers an impressive range of product 
categories including Jellies, Chocolates, 
Marshmallows, Candies, Toffees, Chews, 
Lollipops, Gums, Milk chocolates, Spreads, 
Brittles, Truffles and Bunties. These categories 
carry one of the most renowned brands of the 
country including Chilli Milli, ABC Jelly, Yums, 
NOW, Sonnet, Paradise, Bisca, You Chocolate, 
Puffs, Jammin, Bubble Pop, etc. The key success 
driver of this division is the state-of-the-art and 
technologically advanced production facilities 
ensuring to deliver products which provide 
utmost satisfaction to the consumers. All 
Candyland products meet the requirements of 
international standards of quality and food 
safety, are certified ISO 22000 and have Halal 
certification from SANHA. 
 
 
 

 
 
 
Bisconni has now become a household brand 
ambitious to deliver unparalleled quality every 
time and with every new product. Over the past 
17 years, Bisconni has spread its footprint in the 
industry day by day with an unbelievable and 
impressive pace and unmatched loyalty of its 

Jun-23 Jun-22
Rs. in Million

Change 
in %Description

Food
83%

Plas�c
17%

ANNUAL TURNOVER

Food Plastic
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customers despite the competition this industry 
possesses. 
 
Its consumers are served with the tantalizing, 
tempting brands under the category of cakes and 
cookies. The flagship brands include; Cocomo (a 
nostalgic name and taste to its, now grownups, 
consumers and popular among the children), 
Chocolatto, Chocolate Chip Cookie, Novita, 
Rite, Craving, Flo Cake, Chai Wala Biskut and 
much more. Constantly remaining customer-
centric, Bisconni has always been on the path of 
expanding product portfolio through innovation 
and quality. This year’s exciting launches include 
Nice, Zeera and Panda Power biscuits. 
 
Being reliable to provide quality products to the 
customers, all the products meet the 
requirements of ISO 22000 and are Halal 
certified from SANHA. Thus, Bisconni is 
dedicated to deliver its promises and convert the 
consumers’ brand loyalty into brand love. 
 
 
 

 
Snackcity proudly holds its position as the fastest 
growing crinkle chips company of the country 
with an impressive range of product offerings. It 
has been one of the most popular brands among 
the consumers with a wide variety of delicious 
options; Kurleez, Chillz, Fillz, Peanuts and 
Nimco. 
A successful launch of Fillz this year, has already 
motivated our ambitions and has laid a 
foundation for the company to even expand 
more in the future. The company values its 
customers as their utmost priority which is why 
all the products are ISO 22000 certified and are 
declared Halal by SANHA. Additionally, 
distribution and marketing assignments are 

thoughtfully managed and implemented, 
solidifying alignment between all the parties. 
Business plans are meticulously aligned with 
distributors, ensuring that all operations are 
carried out smoothly. 
 

 

Since its commencement in 2010, Ismail 
Nutrition is dedicated to serve the population 
affected by the universal outbreak of 
Malnutrition. The key drivers to this outbreak 
are overpopulation and scarcity of adequate 
resources specially in the areas belonging to 
lower socioeconomic backgrounds. Company, 
being a sensible and experienced food 
manufacturing entity, started producing 
nutritional supplies to fill this gap. An 
overwhelming response from the local markets, 
encouraged the Company to supply these 
nutritional aids to the international social welfare 
institutions of the neighboring countries and has 
been authorized to provide nutritional food 
supplements to the United Nations World Food 
Program (WFP) and UNICEF. 
 
The Company is expanding its operations with 
manufacturing of Super Cereal which has been 
certified and approved by the WFP as a global 
supplier. The state-of-the-art Nutrition 
manufacturing facilities have been approved by 
the WFP audit for food safety, compliance and 
GMP requirements. This has also been 
approved by SANHA, FSSC and is on a path to 
continuous advancement. 
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Ghiza was launched during the last quarter of 
the year under review with the objective of 
backward integration, offering high quality of 
flour to Industrial and HoReCa (Hotels/ 
Restaurants/ Canteen) segment across Pakistan, 
and to ensure proper nutrition across the nation 
with quality of super fine flour. Commitment 
towards smooth and effective processes in 
selection of high-quality wheat at the time of 
purchasing and its careful sorting at the time of 
production is the key indicator of exceptional 
quality of the products the company delivers. 
The products under the brand of Ghiza include 
Ghiza Maida, Ghiza Special Fine Atta and Ghiza 
Bran. 
 
EXPORT MARKET 

 
With the help of untiring efforts of the 
management and especially the export team, the 
Company is constantly growing its export 
business every year and this year has also been a 
remarkable one. Our export customers are from 
more than 50 countries and 5 continents in the 
globe. Despite inflation, recession and economic 
uncertainty on the global level, the Company 
managed to deliver enormous growth in all the 
sales regions Middle East, Africa, Asia, Oceania, 
Europe, and North America. 

 
 

 
 
Through enormous marketing research to 
identify global market demands, culture and 
environments, product diversification to meet 
those demands, and delivery of the identified 
product to the globe, the Company was able to 
increase its export sales by more than 160% 
compared to the last year. Participations in 
regional and global food exhibitions (ISM 
Middle East, Gulf Food, PLMA Amsterdam, 
Big 7 South Africa) also helped the Company to 
increase the global footprint, tap new markets 
and activate new Key Accounts. 
 
In order to maintain this cycle of expansions in 
export, we are very committed to deliver much 
more agile and productive export operations for 
the coming years with some very good 
opportunities and projects of South East Asia, 
Central Asia and USA in the pipeline. 
 
PLASTIC SEGMENT OPERATIONS 
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Astro Films, being one of the leading packaging 
film manufacturers in the country has proven 
itself as one of the best recognized regional as 
well as international supplier and one of the 
fastest growing flexible packaging exporters 
having its clients in more than 26 countries 
across 5 continents of the world. 
 
The Company is committed to expanding its 
local business as well as export market share by 
capturing more untapped regions of the globe 
and growing business there. All this is motivated 
with the help of vertical integration, a solution to 
the procurement of our major raw material 
through subsidiary Company Ismail Resin 
(Private) Limited. Thus, both businesses are 
believed to grow simultaneously and achieve 
remarkable success in their respective 
endeavors. 
 

 
 
SUBSIDIARY 
 
Hudson Pharma (Private) Limited (HPPL), a 
subsidiary of Ismail Industries Limited, has been 
on the path of growth since its inception and has 
introduced new and advanced innovations each 
year in the market. With the help of innovative 
launches of the molecules that are considered as 
an effective treatment all across the globe, the 
company is expected to become one among the 
biggest players in the industry very soon. This 
year also, has been a remarkable one for HPPL 
with an increase of nearly 60% in the top line 
sales. Cosmetology products including cleansing 
moisturizers, manufactured without harmful and 
allergic chemicals are the new entrants and are 
expected to drive the business into new horizons 
as a part of product diversification thus helping 

the company to grow and turn the bottom-line 
into green. 
 
With the approval of shareholders, Ismail 
Industries Limited has made an equity 
investment of Rs. 400 million and cross 
corporate guarantee of Rs. 300 million during 
the year specifically to meet the current 
operational expenses / working capital 
requirements. Additionally, the Board of 
Directors of the Company has approved in its 
meeting held on September 8, 2023, an 
intercompany loan in the aggregate amount of 
up to Rs. 1,500,000,000 (Rupees: One billion 
five hundred million), comprising of, inter alia, 
loans, advances and/or security in any form 
(including without limitation guarantees, 
government securities, cash, listed/unlisted 
securities etc.,) on an arm’s length basis, in the 
form of a revolving line of credit valid for a 
period of one year from the date of the special 
resolution, which may be renewed by the 
Company for up to five consecutive periods of 
one year each. 
 

  
 
SUBSIDIARY 
 
Ismail Resin (Private) Limited is a subsidiary 
company of Ismail Industries Limited. The 
company is all set to commence its commercial 
operations from October 2023. It has also 
executed the audit requirements to acquire 
certifications of ISO 9000, ISO 14001, HACCP, 
FSSC 22000 and Halal certification. 
 
Ismail Resin is believed to be a major venture for 
the expansion of plastic business of Ismail 
Industries Limited helping it as a backward 
integrator of its major raw materials’ 
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procurement and is also set with the vision to 
expand its own operations and become an 
industry leader considering the current growing 
PET Resing demand across the globe. 
 
With the approval of shareholders, the Company 
has made an additional equity investment of Rs. 
1,125 million and cross corporate guarantee of 
Rs. 675 million in its subsidiary to meet their 
project cost over-run and secure their lenders 
against financing facilities extended to them.  
 
Additionally, the Board of Directors of the 
Company has approved in its meeting held on 
September 8, 2023, an intercompany loan in the 
aggregate amount of up to Rs. 8,000,000,000 
(Rupees: Eight billion), comprising of, inter alia, 
loans, advances and/or security in any form 
(including without limitation guarantees, 
government securities, cash, listed/unlisted 
securities etc.,) on an arm’s length basis, in the 
form of a revolving line of credit valid for a 
period of one year from the date of the special 
resolution, which may be renewed by the 
Company for up to five consecutive periods of 
one year each. 

 
THE ASSOCIATED COMPANY 
 
During the year under review, the Bank of 
Khyber posted an increase in its revenues and 
earnings, which ultimately increases the share of 
profit of Ismail Industries Limited to Rs. 428 
million compared to Rs. 217 million in the 
corresponding year. 
 
 
 
 
 

INNOVITA NUTRITION (PRIVATE) 
LIMITED 
 
THE ASSOCIATED COMPANY 
 
Innovita Nutrition (Private) Limited (INPL) was 
incorporated in Karachi, Pakistan on December 
17, 2021, under Companies Act, 2017 as a 
private limited company and is the associated 
company of Ismail Industries Limited, owing to 
common directorship. The principal activities of 
INPL are manufacturing all kinds of nutritional 
products, vitamins, premix, minerals, infant 
nutrition, clinical nutrition, performance 
nutrition, cereals, food supplements, allied 
consumer, and other food products. This project 
is basically the backward integration for the 
supply of Premix material (Key ingredient of 
Nutritional products) which was imported 
previously by the Company.  

The Board of Directors of the Company has 
approved in its meeting held on September 8, 
2023, an intercompany loan in the aggregate 
amount of up to Rs. 1,000,000,000 (Rupees: One 
billion), comprising of, inter alia, loans, advances 
and/or security in any form (including without 
limitation guarantees, government securities, 
cash, listed/unlisted securities etc.,) on an arm’s 
length basis, in the form of a revolving line of 
credit valid for a period of one year from the 
date of the special resolution, which may be 
renewed by the Company for up to five 
consecutive periods of one year each. 
 
CORPORATE BRIEFING SESSION 
 
An annual Corporate Briefing Session (CBS) was 
held on 23rd of November 2022 at Beach View 
Club Karachi. An interactive session turned out 
to be very fruitful where all our respected 
existing as well as potential investors were 
briefed about the current outlook of the country, 
its economic indications, Company’s financial 
performance, the challenges and competitive 
environment it faces, the operational 
competitive advantages it holds, the expansion 
and advancements it made in a short span of 
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time, its investment decisions, and their fruitful 
outcomes etc. 
The attendants were also provided with brief 
information regarding Company’s further 
expansion plans, future pipeline projects in the 
form of new businesses and product 
diversification, its future goals and sustainable 
and impressive plans to attain those goals. 
 
CREDIT RATING 
 
Ismail Industries Limited has successfully 
upgraded its Credit Rating in the Long Run from 
“A” to “A+” and maintained its Credit Rating 
in the Short Run (“A1”) as per the rating report 
issued by Pakistan Credit Rating Agency 
(PCRA). This upgrade shows the 
creditworthiness of the Company having high 
credit quality and low expectation of credit risk. 
Thus, the capacity for timely payment of 
financial commitments is considered strong, 
both, in long run and short run. 
 
CORPORATE SOCIAL 
RESPONSIBILITY  
 
Ismail Industries Limited strongly believes in the 
importance of contribution specially from 
entities towards the society and considers it as 
major Corporate Social Responsibility. To 
quantify and measure its sustainability with the 
help of ESG, the Company is committed to 
integrating sustainability in its daily operations, 
constantly evaluates it and takes each possible 
step to make it much more effective for society. 
Moreover, the Company is continuously 
investing in the noble causes including spreading 
good healthcare opportunities through health 
insurances of the families of field force strength 
and generous donations to hospitals, helping the 
institutes to provide better education specially to 
the underprivileged children, providing clean 
drinking water to the needy areas and much 
more. 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
INTERNAL CONTROL FRAMEWORK 

 
Internal Control plays a vital role in operating a 
business. The Board understands the 
importance of the responsibility it carries as far 
as rules, regulations and transparency of the 
transactions are concerned. The internal control 
structure of the Company makes sure that the 
policies, procedures, and processes are 
accordingly implemented as directed by the 
concerned governing bodies. 
 
Management, external auditor, and internal 
auditor provide a report to the audit committee 
regarding risk management and overall internal 
controls. The audit committee then, 
recommends the Board regarding strengthening 
measures of this framework. This procedure 
allows the Company to operate its business 
efficiently, effectively, and with transparency 

Environmental, 
Social & 

Governance (ESG)

AUDIT COMMITTEE

MANAGEMENT EXTERNAL AUDIT INTERNAL AUDIT

Corporate Social 
Responsibility (CSR) 



83

and the financial statements issued are reliable, 
gaining the trust of shareholders. 
 
INTERNAL AUDIT 
 
To ensure the transparency and accuracy of all 
the business transactions the Company has a 
very vigilant internal audit department 
reportable to the Board Audit Committee. Its 
main objective is to cover all business aspects to 
minimize the risk of any potential harm to the 
Company and its stakeholders. 
 
RISK MANAGEMENT 
Risk Management makes it possible for the 
business to identify possible risks so that the 
business is equipped with the adequate tools and 
strategies to deal with them.  
 
The Company has implemented the Enterprise 
Risk Management methodology through which 
it seizes any upcoming possibilities and 
suppresses the chances of risks. The Enterprise 
Risk Management is under the Supervision of 
Board Audit Committee whereas it is the 
responsibility of the Board of Directors to look 
after for any potential risks. 
 
The Company identifies any possible risks and 
then evaluates it. If they notice any risk which 
has a potential to harm the Business, then steps 
are taken to mitigate its effects. After taking the 
necessary actions, the Company keeps a close 
watch on the outcomes of their actions and later 
conducts a review about the effectiveness of 
their steps in controlling risks. 

 

Identification of potential hazards is the 
responsibility of the Board of Directors. As a 
result, they provide the senior management team 
the task of risk detection, who are under its 
supervision. The Board Audit Committee has 
the duty to oversee the organization-wide 
application of the enterprise risk management 
methodology that the Board has adopted. The 
significant risks for the department are noted, 
evaluated, and assigned to each functional area. 
The most effective way to reduce these risks is 
to upgrade SOPs, restructure, and revamp the 
procedure for that pertinent function. 
 
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE  
 
The development and application of the highest 
standards of corporate governance at all levels of 
the organization are essential to the Company's 
survival and long-term performance. Our 
governance structure specifies the organizational 
culture, behavior, and conduct with an emphasis 
on facilitating efficient, entrepreneurial, and 
responsible management that can ensure the 
Company's long-term success. 
 
Along with the Code of Conduct and Control 
Framework, the Company assures that it adheres 
to all applicable statutory and regulatory 
requirements. This governance structure's 
guiding principles of accountability and integrity 
enable the Board to steer the Company in right 
direction. 
 
GENDER DIVERSITY  
 
The demanding significance of Gender diversity 
in the organizations arise from the deficiency of 
it. It helps in bringing variety of views and 
perspectives necessary to grow the business in 
this evolving environment. An equality-based 
culture is a very influential tool to drive 
innovation and growth. A diverse and inclusive 
workforce with a range of perspectives, and 
approaches is definitely more competitive in a 
globalized economy. Gender diversification is 
vital in organizations as it helps to bring in 
various viewpoints, creates inclusive and safer 
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workplaces and increases employee satisfaction. 
For this reason, the Company provides equal 
opportunities to both the genders and thus 
enjoys fruitful result through that. 
 
HUMAN RESOURCE 
 
We have been very blessed to have such a 
dedicated, enthusiastic, and efficient enough 
human capital that leads the Company towards 
these successful results every year. Our 
employees are aware of the Company’s objective 
and vision and are always thrilled to carry the 
operations in the right and smart direction to 
achieve those objectives in a tremendous 
manner. For these efforts, the board and senior 
management owe them quality training, 
development, growth, and opportunities to 
prove themselves trustworthy for the higher 
position. 
 
The Company's HR department works very 
cautiously and vigilantly to recruit, retain, and 
develop productive human capital. It 
continuously screens employees’ performance, 
growth pattern, engagement in assigned tasks, 
effective contributions, and other performance 
indicators with the help of respective 
supervisors and makes sure that each and every 
performing employee is provided a competitive 
edge over others for his efforts. This motivates 
every employee to work hard and achieve this 
opportunity and Company gets comprehensive 
competency table to identify best available talent 
in the Company and train them further to hold 
important strategic positions in future. On the 
other hand, employees are also given freedom to 
express their evaluation regarding the 
Company’s work environment and policies 
through an anonymous evaluation survey that 
gauges their degree of satisfaction of working 
with the Company. Moreover, the Company’s 
pay plans, medical facilities, attractive 
compensation packages, and a healthy working 
environment increases the productivity of 
human capital. 
 
 

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY 
 
In this era, the importance of information 
technology in business is nurturing innovation. 
Innovation is to present output in smarter 
layouts, improve data storage and faster 
processing of data and instructions for steady 
and accurate information. Moreover, innovation 
helps making businesses operate more 
efficiently. Thus, information technology plays a 
critical role in today’s business and helps in 
streamlining operations, cutting costs, boost 
sales, spread footprints in the potential target 
markets and maintain competitive edge. 
 
To accomplish the Company's long-term and 
short-term goals, we have placed a strong 
emphasis on the alignment of IT strategy with 
long-term business strategy. The improvement 
of value delivery, risk avoidance, resource 
optimization, and effective information flowing 
across the Company are the goals of investments 
in IT infrastructure. 
 
The presence of IT in the Company makes the 
work less tiring and reduces the chances of 
errors. Information Systems also make it easier 
for us to keep a record of our purchases, 
payments, and other monetary transactions. 
These records assist in data management, 
enabling the Company to make better and more 
accurate decisions in the long run. 
 
Benefits from IT infrastructure include timely 
compliance with legal and regulatory 
requirements, effective and efficient decision-
making, stronger internal controls, and a proper 
governance mechanism. The inclusion of SAP 
S/4 Hana has a remarkable impact on our day-
to-day operations, especially data management 
and presentation and also helped us to have 
more control over the business operations and 
expand our long-term initiatives. 
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TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED 
PARTIES 
 
All transactions with related parties during the 
year were carried out at arm’s length and were 
placed before the Board Audit Committee and 
the Board, for review and approval. These 
transactions were made and disclosed in 
compliance with Code of Corporate 
Governance. 
 
COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD 

The Board of Directors of the Company 
consists of: 
 
Total Number of Directors 
Male 6 
Female 1 

 
Categories Name 
CEO Mr. Munsarim Saifullah 

Executive Mr. Ahmed Muhammad 
Independent Mr. Muhammad Zubair 

Motiwala 
 Ms. Tasneem Yusuf 
Non-Executive Mr. Muhammad M. Ismail 
 Mr. Maqsood Ismail 
 Mr. Hamid Maqsood Ismail 
Female Ms. Tasneem Yusuf 

 
MEMBERS OF THE BOARD & 
ATTENDANCE 

During the year, the Board Members completed 
their tenure of three years and elections were 
held in October 2022. As a result, Mr. Hamid 
Maqsood Ismail was elected as a director 
replacing Ms. Mehvish Ahmed Karim. Names of 
the elected Board Members are listed here under 
along with the number of meetings they have 
attended: 
 
 

Name of Directors 
Meetings 
Attended 

Mr. Muhammad M. Ismail* 11/14 

Mr. Maqsood Ismail Ahmed* 13/14 

Mr. Munsarim Saifullah 14/14 

Mr. Hamid Maqsood Ismail** 7/9 

Mr. Ahmed Muhammad 14/14 

Mr. Muhammad Zubair Motiwala* 10/14 

Ms. Tasneem Yusuf* 12/14 

Ms. Mehvish Ahmed Karim** 4/5 
 

* Leave of absences were granted to those 
Directors who could not attend some of the 
Board Meetings. 
 

** During the year, Board of Directors 
completed their 3 years tenure and Mr. Hamid 
Maqsood Ismail was elected as a director 
replacing Ms. Mehvish Ahmed Karim. 
 
AUDIT COMMITTEE 
 
Board Audit Committee 
Ms. Tasneem Yusuf Chairperson 
Mr. Muhammad M. Ismail Member 
Mr. Maqsood Ismail Member 

 
 
HUMAN RESOURCE & 
REMUNERATION COMMITTEE 
 
Board Human Resource and Remuneration 
Committee 
Mr. Muhammad Zubair Motiwala Chairman 
Mr. Maqsood Ismail Member 
Mr. Hamid Maqsood Ismail Member 

 
 
 
 
 
 



86

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 
 
Detail of remuneration and other benefits paid 
to Directors are disclosed in the note 36 to the 
financial statements. These remunerations are 
duly approved by the Board of Directors. The 
remuneration of the Directors is based on 
prevailing industry trend and are in accordance 
with the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate 
Governance) Regulation 2019. It is ensured that 
no Director takes part in deciding his own 
remuneration. Non-Executive Directors are not 
paid any remuneration in accordance with the 
remuneration policy of the Company. 
 
PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING 
 
A statement showing the pattern of 
shareholding as at June 30, 2023, required under 
Section 227 (2) (f) of the Companies Act, 2017 
is annexed to this report. 
 
COMPLIANCE WITH CORPORATE 
AND FINANCIAL REPORTING 
FRAMWORK 
 
The Company complies with financial reporting 
and corporate governance framework under the 
Listed Companies (Code of Corporate 
Governance) Regulations 2019 and the 
Companies Act, 2017. It states:  
 
• The financial statements prepared by the 
management of the Company are presented, 
according to the result of its operations, cash 
flows and changes in equity. 
 
• Proper books of accounts of the Company 
have been maintained. 
 
• Consistent accounting policies following IFRS 
are applied in preparation of financial statements 
and accounting estimates are based on 
reasonable and prudent judgment. 
 
•  The system of internal control is efficient and 
has been effectively implemented and 
monitored. 

 
• There are no doubts with Company continuing 
on the principle of going concern. 
 
•  There has been no material departure from the 
best practices of corporate governance. 
 
EARNINGS PER SHARE 
 
The Earnings Per Share (EPS) for the year ended 
June 30, 2023 is Rs. 96/17 compared to 
corresponding year of Rs. 38/44. 
 
DIVIDEND 
 
The Company remains committed to increasing 
its shareholders wealth and keeping in view of 
the results, the Board of Directors are pleased to 
propose a final cash dividend @ 20% (Rs. 2 per 
share) for the year ended June 30, 2023, which 
will be paid to the shareholders whose names 
appear on the shareholders register at the start 
of “Closed Period” for the forth coming Annual 
General Meeting. This is in addition to the 
interim cash dividend paid @ 100% (Rs. 10 per 
share). 
 
STATUTORY AUDITORS 
 
The auditors M/s. Grant Thornton Anjum 
Rahman, Chartered Accountants retired and 
offered themselves for reappointment. The 
Board Audit Committee and the Board of 
Directors have recommended for 
reappointment of M/s. Grant Thornton Anjum 
Rahman, Chartered Accountants as auditors of 
the Company for the financial year ending on 
June 30, 2024, on such terms and conditions and 
remuneration to be mutually decided.  The 
Board has recommended the same for the 
approval of the shareholders in the forthcoming 
Annual General Meeting of the Company. 
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FUTURE OUTLOOK  
 
The global economy is still on the verge of 
severe economic headwinds. Furthermore, the 
country’s economy and operating environment 
remained extremely challenging, and the political 
condition is still looking for a stable platform. In 
this critical situation, businesses and their 
operators are very much concerned especially 
due to a very severe challenge of procurement of 
raw materials, energy crises, devaluation of 
currency and higher interest rates than ever. 
 
However, the Company will continue its efforts 
to stay relevant to consumer by delivering value 
through sound understanding of their needs, 
innovations and new price architecture while 
managing profitability through a combination of 
optimum pricing and cost transformation 
initiatives. Our commitment to a long-term 
optimistic approach shall continue for upcoming 
years as well with a proactive ambition to deliver 
competitive, consistent, responsible, and 
profitable growth benefiting all stakeholders. 
 
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 
  
The Board takes this opportunity to 
acknowledge and is determined to continue 
forging a pathway that creates lasting shared 
value for all our stakeholders with the dedication 
of our people, and support of our business 
partners. We are also grateful to our 
shareholders for their support and confidence in 
our management. 
  
 
 
 
 
 
Munsarim Saifullah         Maqsood Ismail Ahmed 
Chief Executive      Director  
 

Karachi: September 08, 2023 
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Statement of Compliance with Listed Companies 
(Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 
 
Year Ended June 30, 2023 
 
Ismail Industries Limited 
 
Ismail Industries Limited (hereinafter referred to as “the Company”) has complied with the 
requirements of the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019, 
(“the Regulations”) in the following manner: 
  

1. The total number of directors are seven as per the following: 
 

a) Male: Six * 
b) Female: One 
 

* Male directors include CEO. 
 

2. The composition of the Board is as follows:  
 

 emaN yrogetaC

Independent Directors* Mr. Muhammad Zubair Motiwala 
Ms. Tasneem Yusuf 

Non-Executive Directors 
Mr. Muhammad M. Ismail 
Mr. Maqsood Ismail Ahmed 
Mr. Hamid Maqsood Ismail 

Executive Directors Mr. Munsarim Saifullah 
Mr. Ahmed Muhammad 

Female Director Ms. Tasneem Yusuf 
  

* Regulation 6(1) of the Regulations stipulates the mandatory requirement for each 
listed company to have at least two or one-third members of the Board, whichever is 
higher, as independent directors. The current Board of Directors of the Company 
comprises seven members, which constitutes 2.33 as one-third of total number of 
directors. As the fractional value falls below 0.5, rounding up to one is not 
warranted. This is particularly so due to the fact that the present independent 
directors possess the requisite skills, knowledge, and diversified work experience 
essential for rendering independent decisions in the best interests of the Company. 

 
3. The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more 

than seven listed companies, including this company. 
 

4. The Company has prepared a Code of Conduct and ensured that appropriate steps 
have been taken to disseminate it throughout the Company, along with its 
supporting policies and procedures. 
 

5. The Board has developed a vision and mission statement, overall corporate strategy, 
and significant policies of the Company. The Board has ensured that a complete 
record of particulars of the significant policies, along with their dates of approval or 
updating, is maintained by the Company.  
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6. All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant 
matters have been taken by Board/shareholders as empowered by the relevant 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2017, (the Act) and these Regulations. 
 

7. The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his absence, 
by a director elected by the Board for this purpose. The Board has complied with the 
requirements of the Act and the Regulations with respect to frequency, recording 
and circulating minutes of meeting of the Board. 
 

8. The Board have a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of 
directors in accordance with the Act and these Regulations. 
 

9. All Directors of the Company have completed or are exempted from the 
requirements of the Directors’ Training program.  

 
10. The Board had approved the appointment of Chief Financial Officer, Company 

Secretary and Head of Internal Audit, including their remuneration and terms and 
conditions of employment, and complied with relevant requirements of the 
Regulations. 
 

11. The Chief Financial Officer and Chief Executive Officer duly endorsed the financial 
statements before approval of the Board. 
 

12. The Board has formed committees comprising of members given below: 
 
a) Audit Committee 

 Ms. Tasneem Yusuf
 Mr. Muhammad M. Ismail
 Mr. Maqsood Ismail Ahmed - Member 

 
b) Human Resource and Remuneration Committee 

 Mr. Muhammad Zubair Motiwala
 Mr. Maqsood Ismail Ahmed
 Mr. Hamid Maqsood Ismail

- Chairperson 
- Member 

- Chairman 
- Member 
- Member 

 
13. The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed, documented 

and advised to the committee for compliance.  
 

14. The frequency of meetings of the committees were as per following: 
 

a) Audit Committee – 5 meetings held during the year 
b) Human Resource and Remuneration Committee – 2 meetings held during 

the year 
 

15. The Board has set up an effective internal audit function who are considered suitably 
qualified and experienced for the purpose and are conversant with the policies and 
procedures of the Company.  
 

16. The statutory auditors of the Company have confirmed that they have been given a 
satisfactory rating under the Quality Control Review program of the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of Pakistan, and registered with Audit Oversight Board of 
Pakistan, that they and all their partners are in compliance with International 
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Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as adopted by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and that they and the partners of the 
firms involved in the audit are not a close relative (spouse, parent, dependent, and 
non-dependent children) of the Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, 
Head of Internal Audit, Company Secretary, or Director of the Company.  
 

17. The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed 
to provide other services except in accordance with the Act, these regulations or any 
other regulatory requirement and the auditors have confirmed that they have 
observed IFAC guidelines in this regard.  
 

18. We confirm that all requirements of the regulations 3, 6, 7, 8, 27, 32, 33 and 36 of 
the Regulations have been complied.  

   
 
 
 

________________________      
 MUHAMMAD M. ISMAIL      

Chairman       
 
 
 

Karachi: September 08, 2023 
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CODE OF CONDUCT AND OPERATING STRUCTURE 

Code of Conduct 
Code of Conduct of Ismail Industries Limited (IIL) sets out the Company’s objectives and its responsibilities 
to various stakeholders and the ethical standards required from its directors and employees to meet such 
objectives and responsibilities. 

Financial Disclosure 
All transactions should be accurately reflected according to accounting principles in the books of accounts. 
Falsification of its books, any of the recorded bank accounts and transactions are strictly prohibited. 

Conflict of Interest 
The directors and employees of the Company must recognize that in the course of performing their duties, they 
may come across a position where there is a conflict of interest in the performance of their duties with their 
personal interest. Conflict of interest must be avoided in all circumstances and it is necessary for all directors 
and employees to act in the best interest of the Company. 

Compliance with Laws & Regulations 
It is mandatory for all directors and employees of IIL to comply with all applicable laws, regulations, directives 
and rules applicable in relevant jurisdictions including instructions issued by the Board of Directors and the 
management.  

Confidentiality 
Confidentiality of the Company’s internal information must be maintained and upheld by all directors and 
employees. This includes proprietary, technical, business, financial, customer and employee information that is 
not available publicly. 

Conduct of Personnel in Dealings with Government Officials 
The Company shall deal with the Government officials fairly and honestly and within the ambit of the applicable 
laws, in order to uphold the corporate image of the Company. 

Time Management 
The directors and employees of the Company shall ensure that they adopt efficient and productive time 
management schedules. 

Business Integrity 
The directors and employees will strive to promote honesty, integrity and fairness in all aspects of its business 
and its dealings with vendors, contractors, customers, joint venture partners and Government officials. 

Gifts, Entertainment & Bribery 
The directors and employees shall not provide or accept gifts, entertainment or any other personal benefit or 
privilege that could influence business dealings. 

Ethics 
Our Code of Conduct reflects our commitment to meet the expectations of our stakeholders and contains the 
fundamental principles and rules concerning ethical business conduct.  

IIL is committed to conduct its business with honesty and integrity, and we expect all our employees to maintain 
high standards in accordance with the Code.  

IIL’s Code of Conduct forms an integral part of the terms of employment of all employees. The Company 
insists on full compliance and does not tolerate any misconduct and unlawful behavior. Breach of the IIL Code 
of Conduct may lead to disciplinary action up to and including termination of employment.  
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Hudson 
Pharma (Pvt) 

Limited
78.53% shares 

held

Plastiflex Films 
(Pvt) Limited

(Common 
Directorship)

Innovita 
Nutrition (Pvt) 

Limited
(Common 

Directorship)

Bank of  
Khyber

24.43% shares 
held

Ismail Resin 
(Pvt) Limited
75% shares 

held

Ismail 
Industries 
Limited

Subsidiaries Associates

          Ownership, Operating Structure and Relationship with Group Companies 
 IIL is a listed company categorized in the ‘Food & Personal Care Products’ sector by Pakistan Stock Exchange 
(PSX). The ownership of the Company is held by diversified market participants of PSX and directors of the 
Company. The market capitalization of the Company is over Rs. 34 billion as on June 30, 2023.  

The Company has two subsidiaries Hudson Pharma (Private) Limited and Ismail Resin (Private) Limited and 
three associated companies, Plastiflex Films (Private) Limited, Innovita Nutrition (Private) Limited and The 
Bank of Khyber. Hudson Pharma is engaged in the pharmaceutical business. Through Ismail Resin, we are 
setting up Polyester Resin plant and will commence its commercial production in the upcoming financial year. 

 

Group Structure 
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Significant Factors Affecting the External Environment 

Factors Description Significant Change 
from Last Year 

Organization’s response 

Political Political factors determine 
the extent to which a 
government may influence 
the economy or a certain 
industry. Political uncertainty 
trembles the business 
environment 

- Political 
uncertainties. 

- Rifts among 
political parties. 

The Company continuously 
analyzes and monitors the 
political situation of the 
country including changes in 
duty structures, taxes and 
other levies to mitigate any 
unwarranted affect. 

Economic Economic factors refer to the 
financial state of the country. 
A strong economy 
invigorates business and vice 
versa. 

- Increased 
inflation.  

- High discount 
rates.  

- Exorbitant 
exchange rates 

IIL has been on strong 
financial standing. The 
Company keeps optimal 
Debt: Equity ratio. 
Furthermore, it has 
negotiated competitive rates 
with various banks for its 
financing needs. 
Additionally, healthy 
relation with suppliers 
ensures timely supply of 
material at competitive rates. 
The Company monitors 
exchange rates closely. It 
plans its rapprochement of 
imported raw material 
keeping in view, the 
economic situations, 
international supply chain 
issues and outlook of 
exchange parity. The 
Company also considers 
hedging contract where 
necessary to dampen the 
impact of exchange 
difference. 

Social Social responsibility of a 
company cannot be ignored. 
The Company must play its 
role in betterment of the 
society in which it operates. 
Health issues, education 
problems are among the 
social problems. 

- Continuous 
improvement in 
HSE department.  

- Natural 
catastrophe 
causing public 
unrest. 

The Company always strive 
to be a part of social causes 
and for the betterment of 
society. For this purpose, 
the Company donates in 
various social causes 
including education 
programs and health & 
safety of society. On the 
business front, the 
Company has full-fledged 
HSE department which 
works for the betterment 
and welfare of workers at 
factories.  
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Factors Description Significant Change 
from Last Year 

Organization’s response 

Technological Technology plays a vital role 
in success of any Company. 
Technologically primitive 
companies often end-up 
being shutdown. 

- Upgradation of 
network and 
security measures.  

- SAP S/4HANA 
implementation. 

The Company is equipped 
with latest technology to 
face the challenges of a 
dynamic environment. 
Product innovation is 
inevitable to meet the ever-
changing customer 
demands. Therefore, 
technological upkeep of 
machinery is preordained. 
The Company continuously 
monitors and improves its 
networking infrastructure 
for smooth data processing 
and prevention from cyber 
threats. Viewing the 
developments in ERP 
environment and 
technological landscape. 

Environmental Almost every manufacturing 
company has an impact on 
the environment. Climate 
change and water shortage is 
the major area of concern. 

- Special focus on 
saving of electricity 
and water 

- Inclusion of 
Renewable energy 
including solar and 
hydel power 

- Plantation of trees. 

The Company has always 
strived to work for the 
betterment of the 
environment. This year, the 
Company has focused on 
the prevention of scarce 
natural resources like water 
and saving of electricity. 
Further, the Company 
generates tree plantation 
drive every year. 

Legal Companies are required to 
abide by various laws and 
regulations. Every 
responsible company must 
follow all rules and 
regulations laid by the 
Government. 

- Companies Act, 
2017 

- Income Tax 
Ordinance, 2001 

- Sales Tax Act, 
1990 

- SECP Acts, Rules 
and Regulations 

- Code of Corporate 
Governance 

- IFRS 
Amendments. 

The Company abides by all 
the laws enacted by 
Government. The Company 
has employed various 
professionals of respective 
fields so that the Company 
would strongly and strictly 
follow all the laws that are 
applicable to the Company. 

 
 Seasonality of Business 

The Company’s production and sales of all products remain consistent throughout the year. There is no 
significant impact of seasonality in the Company’s business. 

Competitive Landscape and Market Positioning 
IIL is a diversified conglomerate – with Food and Plastic segments. Customers of every age demands better 
quality products and attractive packaging. The Company’s major revenue is derived from food segment. 
Besides confectionary, IIL is also setting foot in plastic market. It gained a rich experience of thousands of 
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man-hours during its journey of more than 34 years. With a promising outlook on the back of confectionary 
products, the Company is focusing on expanding its market share in the years to come. 

Significant Events During the Year 
During the year, the Company has made capital investment amounting to Rs. 400 million and Rs. 1,125 
million in its subsidiaries i.e. Hudson Pharma (Private) Limited and Ismail Resin (Private) Limited 
respectively for the purpose of expansion of business. Further, the Company also commenced the 
commercial production of flour in the last quarter of the year having production capacity of 240 TPD.  

  STRATEGY AND RESOURCE ALLOCATION  
Strategic Objective Short term Medium-term Long term 
Growth in production 
and .sales 

   

Increase in reserves of 
the Company 

   

Superior returns to 
investors 

   

Diversification into new 
ventures 

   

Ensure all activities 
meet high standards of 
Health and Safety 
requirements  

   

Continue being 
recognized as a good 
corporate citizen 

   

 
              Strategy to achieve the above objectives 

Growth is the prime focus of IIL’s strategy. With a premium market share, IIL is better placed to strengthen 
its leading position as a producer of food and plastic products to meet the rising demand. The Company has 
recently diversified into Flour business and will continue to focus on its core business and expand into other 
value-adding related business segments. 

The Company will continue to evaluate various significant projects in food and plastic industry with a view 
to further expand and diversify the business portfolio and add value through available strategic partnerships 
at business levels. 

Health & safety will remain the key component of the Company’s operational excellence. Utmost importance 
will be given to training of employees and contractors for enhancing safety awareness and active 
incorporation of the industry’s best practices in the overall operating setup. 

The Company, as a good corporate citizen, shall continue to promote social development of the communities 
where it operates and shall extend financial and in-kind support for the welfare and development 
organizations working across the Country. 

The Company cares deeply about the environment and will continue to exercise due care in environmental 
protection. 

The Company will make efforts for optimum leveraging of the available financial resources and project 
management skills so that large projects in the food and plastic business can be undertaken as and when 
required. 

The Company places great emphasis on investing in people to build a world-class workforce, as the timely 
availability of qualified and trained manpower is vital for undertaking complex and diverse operations of the 
Company.  
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Key Performance Indicators (KPIs)  
The Company monitors its performance in achieving its strategic objectives through the following KPIs and 
all the indicators will continue to be relevant in future for monitoring:  

• Earnings per share 
• Return on Equity (ROE) 
• Revenue contribution from each segment 
• CSR contribution 
• Working capital cycle 
• Production volume 

External Environment Impact on Strategy and Resource Allocation  
The business environment remains in a state of flux, that’s why, IIL proactively addresses new developments 
in technology, sustainability, Environment, Social and Governance (ESG) etc. Such externalities have a 
profound influence in reshaping the future business strategy of the organization. Every coming year, this 
well-worked-out strategy is refined and then crystalized into a coherent action plan.  

Management monitors imminent challenges and prioritizes its actions through appropriate resource 
allocation. However, any development that has potential to materialize in future also remains under the radar 
for effective planning and formulation of strategy.  

Strategic Decisions Process  
IIL has strengthened its Strategic Planning and Management System for development and execution of the 
strategic planning process in the organization. Strategy is decided keeping it aligned with the mission and 
vision and incorporating the associated risks, both at developmental and implementation stages.  

Considering the risk appetite of the organization, strategic decisions are deliberated at multiple levels before 
approval and subsequent implementation.  

Positioning in the Wider Market 
IIL has an established marketing department set up for development of new products based on the customer, 
market and global sustainability needs. IIL is positioned to offer wide variety of products with unique 
features. Products are not only delivered in Pakistan but are also exported to number of countries.  

              Long-Term Strategies’ in Relation to Current Business Model  
Being a conglomerate, our aim is to diversify into various business segments. Our focus is on food safety 
and security and this will remain important for us as well as for policymakers. Sustainability of core business, 
i.e., manufacturing and marketing of food and plastic products is one of the key components of our long-
term strategy, whether it is based on existing or new sources of raw material.  

Resource Allocation Plans to Implement Strategy  
To achieve the strategic objectives of the organization, resource allocation plans are prepared and resources 
are allocated to the strategic initiatives. These resource allocation plans include required financial and human 
resources to implement the strategy. In this way, business planning is aligned to strategic planning in the 
organization.  

Measurement of Achievements & Target Outcomes in Short, Medium and Long Term  
Strategic Plans are made which cover the measurement of strategic objectives through Key Performance 
Indicators (KPIs), their benchmark and performance criteria. Real time measurement and reporting of KPIs 
is done for the Management to exercise control and support decision-making process. On the other hand, 
Strategic Initiatives in strategic plan help to achieve the desired outcome of the strategy. Like KPIs, these 
strategic initiatives / projects are also continuously monitored with respect to scope, cost and timeline for 
management information and control. 
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Resource Allocation Plan 
Capital Resource allocation plan 
Financial The financial capital on account of the increased cost of finance is allocated 

based on the need and utility analysis. Overall expected cashflow availability 
for the upcoming year is determined at the start of the business planning cycle 
based on which operations and investments are planned.  

Human Human capital planning is at the core of Company's operational strategy 
ensuring that right skill set is identified and placed for a particular job. Staff 
rotation is planned and implemented each year to further develop and diversify 
the core competencies of our human resources. On-the-job and off the job 
training sessions are conducted including knowledge sharing sessions that are 
arranged by core functions for non-core functions and vice versa for the 
enhancement of overall knowledge base. 

Manufactured IIL takes pride to be the leader in possessing state-of-the-art machinery. The 
Company is exploring various areas of potential. Further, the Company is also 
putting its effort to increase its production and widen its market share. The 
Company is in partnership with its clients to work out various alternate cost-
effective solutions which would not only benefit the Company in shape of 
increased revenue but also the clients in shape of cheaper yet high quality 
product. 

Intellectual The Company also capitalizes on its intellectual capital by adopting and 
implementing best in class processes in all functions. IT systems provide an 
enabling environment for the staff to excel and thrive in the delivery of their 
job responsibilities including the critical work-from-home infrastructure. 

Social The Company develops its social relationships by adequately investing in CSR 
activities in the areas where poverty is best in class CSR model has been 
adopted ensuring the adequate deployment of funds. 

Natural Natural capital is being managed by reducing use of papers and planting trees. 
 

Liquidity Management 
The Company manages liquidity by having an adequate mix of debt to equity ratio. The Company has not 
made any default in repayment of its debt and is generating adequate cashflows from operations. 

Key Resources and Capabilities  
IIL is known for delivering best products and add value to customers’ needs. The Company has state-of-
the-art machinery together with vast experience in food and plastic business and top suppliers which enable 
us to add value to the customers’ needs. Our key resources and capabilities are: 

SAP S/4 HANA  
IIL has implemented most updated version of SAP i.e. SAP S/4 HANA. The Company has well-established 
in-house IT department which caters all the customization needs of the Company.  

Diversified Business  
IIL is among one of the few entities having vertically integrated Food and Plastic segment as well. 

Energy Efficient and Cost Minimization   
The Company utilizes modern state-of-the-art technology and machineries which assists in achieving the 
Company’s objectives to utilize its scarce resources in cost-efficient manner.  
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STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP & ENGAGEMENT 
Stakeholder Engagement 
Following are the key stakeholders of the company: 

 People / Employees 
 Customers and suppliers 
 Society 
 Shareholders and analysts 
 Government and regulatory bodies 
 Lenders 

Accurate identification of key stakeholders enables the Company to direct its capitals equitably towards right 
relationships and activities. The Company assesses stakeholders on the following criteria: 

 Does the stakeholder have a fundamental impact on the Company? 
 Can the Company identify what it wants from the stakeholder? 
 Does the Company want the relationship to grow? 
 Can the Company exist without the stakeholder or can easily replace the stakeholder? 
 Has the stakeholder already been identified through another relationship? 

Our Stakeholder Engagement Process 
 fo ycneuqerF ssecorP tnemegagnE sredlohekatS

Engagements 
Our People  Focused and continuous conversations 

related to new health and safety procedures.  
 Offering opportunities for personal and 

professional growth to become the best team 
in the industry. 

 Highly competitive compensation despite 
challenging economic environment. 

Continuous 

Our Customers & 
Suppliers  

 Continuous dialogue and surveys with our 
customers and suppliers to understand and 
address their needs. 

 Further, our focus is to provide healthy food 
and packaging solutions to our customers. 

Continuous 

Society  To understand needs of our communities and 
support the people, we partnered with several 
institutions for innovation and sustainability. 

Continuous 

Our Shareholders and 
Analysts 

 Open and honest communication during 
General Meeting and Corporate Briefings 
session 
 

 Issuance of quarterly reports to keep our 
shareholders and analysts well informed of all 
the ongoing activities of the Company. 

Annually with 
regard to 
General 
Meetings and 
Quarterly with 
regard to 
issuance of 
reports  

Our regulators   We monitor and adhere to all the rules, 
regulations, policies and governance practices 
as required by our regulators such as PSX, 
SECP, FBR etc. 

Continuous 

Lenders •  We ensure that our lenders are informed of 
our strategic decisions which affect their 
financial exposure.  

 • We strive to comply with the agreed 
timelines and secure our lenders’ interest. 

As and when 
required 
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Encouragement of Minority Shareholders to Attend the General Meeting 
The management of the Company believes that shareholders are valuable. Each shareholder is important to the 
Company irrespective of the holding and voting power.  
We value our investors, their concerns and their grievances (if any). The notices of General Meetings and 
Corporate Briefing Sessions are circulated by the Company within the regulatory time frames to the registered 
addresses of the shareholders (including minority shareholders). We take the following steps to encourage our 
minority shareholders to attend the general meetings: 
 
1. Notice of the meeting is sent to all the shareholders at least 21 days before the meeting; 
2. Notices are published in the English and Urdu newspapers having country-wide circulation; 
3. DVDs of the Annual Report of the Company along with the printed proxy forms are circulated to every 

shareholder. The proxy form enables them to nominate someone to attend the meeting on their behalf; and 
4. Notices are posted on the Company’s website and disseminated to PSX for better reach to the shareholders. 

 
We encourage and appreciate two-way communication in the general meeting and listen to our shareholders' views 
and concerns. 
 
Redressal of Investors’ Complaints 
The management of the Company is committed to provide equal and fair treatment to all investors/shareholders 
through transparent investor relations, increased awareness, effective communication, and prompt resolution of 
investors’/ shareholders’ complaints.  
 
Issues Raised in the Last AGM 
General queries and clarifications sought by shareholders regarding the agenda points were resolved to their 
satisfaction. Apart from those queries, no significant issue or concern was raised. 
 
Corporate Briefing Sessions 
IIL continues to maintain a healthy relationship with investor community by holding Corporate Briefing 
sessions annually, whereby the company apprises the local and foreign investor base about the entity’s business 
environment as well as the economic indicators of the country. The company also takes this as an opportunity to 
brief analysts regarding its performance and investment decisions. 

RISKS & OPPORTUNITIES 
The Board of Directors of IIL principally assumes the responsibility to mitigate all possible risks that may affect 
the Company. This principle keeps the Company within its risk appetite and helps to achieve its corporate 
objectives. 
 
Robust Assessment of Principal Risks 
The Board of Directors has carried out a detailed assessment of risks facing the Company originating from various 
sources. The Board is satisfied with the Company’s risk management practices and the mitigating strategies 
adopted to counter such risks. 
 
Key Risks and Its Sources 
IIL is susceptible to various risks. However, through comprehensive planning and an acute business understanding 
of the management, the Company continues to identify and mitigate actual, potential and perceived risks. 
Following are the major risks that may affect our business operations and mitigating strategies for controlling 
these risks: 
Risk Area of 

Impact 
Source Description Mitigating Strategy 

Rising cost of 
imported raw 
material 

Financial 
capital 

External Raw material cost 
component is a substantial 
part of the overall cost of 
production of the 
Company. Suppliers 
increase the cost of 
products supplied in view 

The Company analyses 
raw material prices 
offered by various 
suppliers on a regular 
basis to compare and 
control its purchasing 
cost. Moreover, it has 
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of devaluation of currency, 
international economic 
conditions and rising costs 
of fuel and transportation. 

strategic relationships 
with key international 
raw material suppliers 
which benefit the 
Company in price 
negotiation and prompt 
material delivery. 

Exchange Rate 
Fluctuation 

Financial 
capital 

External Cost of imported material 
is very high which made it 
difficult for the Company 
to remain cost-effective in 
the market due to frequent 
devaluation of PKR parity 
against USD and Euro. 

The Company regularly 
scrutinizes the parity 
fluctuations and 
whenever needed, enters 
into hedging 
arrangements. 

Key Opportunities and Its Sources  
Opportunities Area Impact Source Description Utilization Strategy 
Investment on 
state-of-the-art 
technology 

Manufactured 
Capital 

Internal State-of-the-art 
technology utilized for 
production resulting in 
production efficiency and 
lower costs. This will result 
not only in attracting and 
retaining new customers 
but will also increase value 
for stakeholders. 
Further, the establishment 
of new production facility 
flour mill and nutrition 
division has increased the 
production capacity as well 
as quality of output. 

The company actively 
pursues investments in 
new and innovative 
technologies so that it 
continues with its legacy 
of being one of the most 
efficient producer. 

Efficient work 
environment 

Human 
Capital 

Internal Improvement in working 
conditions, and personal 
and professional 
development of 
employees. 

The Company is 
relentlessly striving to 
improve its work 
environment through 
various initiatives 
directed towards 
increasing employee 
satisfaction and 
continuous training for 
the personal and 
professional 
development of 
employees. 

Statement of Unreserved Compliance of International Financial Reporting Standards Issued by 
International Accounting Standards Board  
IIL prepares unconsolidated and consolidated financial statements of the Company in accordance with the 
applicable financial reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan. The applicable financial reporting standards 
comprise of: 

 International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting Standards 
Board as notified under the Companies Act, 2017; and 

 Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017. 
Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from IFRS, the provisions 
of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 are followed.     
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GOVERNANCE  
 
How the Board Operates and the Matters Delegated to the Management 
 

 Management is primarily responsible for implementing the strategies as approved by the Board of Directors. 
It is the responsibility of the management to conduct the routine business operations of the Company in an 
effective and ethical manner in accordance with the strategies and goals as approved by the Board and to 
identify and administer the key risks and opportunities which could impact the Company in the ordinary 
course of execution of its business. 

 Management is also concerned with keeping the Board members updated regarding any changes in the 
operating environment. It is also the responsibility of the management, with the supervision of the Board and 
its Audit Committee, to prepare financial statements that fairly present the financial position of the Company 
in accordance with applicable financial reporting standards and legal requirements. 

 The Board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy, and significant policies for 
the Company. 

 The Board ensures that a complete record of particulars of the significant policies along with their date of 
approval or updating is maintained by the Company. 

 All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have been taken by 
Board/shareholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2017 and other related 
laws. 

 The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his absence, by a director elected by 
the Board for this purpose. The Board has complied with all the requirements with respect to frequency, 
recording and circulating minutes of meeting of the Board. 

 The Board have a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of directors in accordance with 
the Act and the Regulations. 

 The Board has approved the appointment of Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary and Head of Internal 
Audit, including their remuneration and terms and conditions of employment and complied with relevant 
requirements. 

 Chief Executive Officer, Director and Chief Financial Officer duly endorsed the financial statements before 
approval of the Board. 

 The Board has set up an effective internal audit function comprising of suitably qualified and experienced 
staff who are conversant with the policies and procedures of the Company. 

 
Annual Appraisal of the Board’s Performance  
As per the criteria of Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019, the Board of Directors 
are required to carry out an annual evaluation of their performance and its committees' performance. This year, the 
evaluation was carried out by the Board of Directors of the Company, and the results were found to be satisfactory.  

The following major criteria are used to measure the Board's own performance and its committees, including the 
CEO and the Chairman:  

• The Board demonstrates integrity, credibility, trustworthiness, and active participation in its affairs, and 
has the ability to handle conflict constructively.  

• The Board provides guidance and direction, rather than management to the Company.  
• The Board reviews management succession planning as needed.  
• The level of communication between the Board and relevant parties (i.e., committees, auditors, 

management and business heads, etc.) is appropriate.  
• The Board reviews the adequacy of internal controls and risk management procedures.  
• The Board has developed a strategy for the organization that is central to its vision and mission statement.  
• The Board receives signals of potential issues that may adversely affect the Company's key targets or 

financial performance.  
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• The Board ensures that professional standards and corporate values are put in place that promotes 
integrity for the Board, senior management, and employees in the form of the Company's Code of 
Conduct. 

Performance Evaluation of Board of Directors and Board Committees 
The Board carries out annual evaluation of the Board of Directors, it’s Committees and Independent Directors as 
part of Code of Corporate Governance. Strict level of confidentiality is exercised by the Company Secretary upon 
receipt of completed questionnaires.  
 
Directors’ Orientation and Training 

 All the directors of the Company are well-experienced and have diverse backgrounds. At the time of induction 
of any new director, he or she is given proper orientation about the operations of the Company and his or 
her fiduciary responsibilities. 

 All Directors of the Company have either completed or are exempted from the requirement of the Directors’ 
Training program. 

 
External Oversight of Functions 
The senior management ensures the efficiency, effectiveness, accuracy and credibility of all its functions by regularly 
monitoring the KPIs, making benchmarks and assesses the targets and goals assigned to each department. Following 
is the summary of measures taken to attain the benchmarks through oversight: 

 
• All our processes are subject to review by the Internal Audit function. 
• The manufacturing processes are reviewed on the basis of industry’s best practices and industry norms. 
• The Information Systems and network security are periodically reviewed by the Information Systems auditors. 
• Surveys conducted by third parties or otherwise to ensure the credibility and control hallmarks. 

 
Governance of risk and internal controls. 
For appraisal of internal controls and monitoring compliance, the Company has in place an appropriately staffed, 
Internal Audit department. The Audit Committee reviewed the resources and performance of the Internal Audit 
department to ensure that they have adequate resources for the planned scope of the Internal Audit function. Head 
of Internal Audit Department has direct access to the Audit Committee. 
 
Gender Diversity 
We place a strong focus on the value of gender equality and diversity throughout all divisions of the Company and 
ensures gender diversity in all areas of operation, including the composition of the Board. Our goal is to establish a 
working environment in which the diversity and gender equality are actively leveraged to further meet the company's 
strategic goals effectively.  
 
Social and Environmental Responsibility Policy 
IIL has very high regard for its social and environmental responsibility. The Company ensures that all social and 
environmental dimensions are considered when developing its strategies, policies, practices and procedures. We have 
consistently demonstrated our steadfast commitment by acting responsibly towards our connected community and 
environment. We believe that success of the Company is best reflected in development of the community. The 
company’s social and environmental responsibility policy is aligned with all our corporate statements while confirming 
the company’s steadfast commitment to sustainable development within the country. 
The following items are the guiding principles: 
 

• To promote any/all development that has economic, social and environmental implications 
• To respect human rights and condemn any/all practices that result in any type of discrimination or violation 

of these rights 
• Energy conservation 
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• To embrace and understand that ethics and transparency are the founding pillars that will solidify our 
relationship with all stakeholders 

• Occupational health & safety 
• Environmental protection measures 
• To promote fair business practices 

 
Whistle Blower Policy 
An important aspect of accountability and transparency is a mechanism to enable all individuals to voice concerns 
internally in a responsible and effective manner when they discover information which they believe shows serious 
malpractice. 
 
Our whistle-blower policy is therefore fundamental to the organization’s professional integrity. In addition, it 
reinforces the value the organization places on staff to be honest and respect their colleagues. It provides a method 
of properly addressing bona fide concerns that individuals within the organization might have, while also offering 
whistle-blowers protection from victimization, harassment or disciplinary proceedings. 
 
Fundamental elements of our Whistle Blower Policy: 
 

• All staff are protected from victimization, harassment or disciplinary action as a result of any disclosure, where 
the disclosure is made in good faith and is not made maliciously or for personal gain. 

• All disclosures are required to be made in writing. 
• Disclosures made anonymously are not entertained. 
• Disclosures made are fully investigated including interviews with all the witnesses and other parties involved. 
• All whistle-blowers’ disclosures made are treated as confidential and the identity of the whistle-blower is 

protected at all stages in any internal matter or investigation. 
• Disciplinary action (up to and including dismissal) may be taken against the wrongdoer depending on the 

results of the investigation. 
• There are no adverse consequences for anyone who reports a whistle-blowing concern in good faith. 

However, any individual found responsible for making allegations maliciously or in bad faith may be subject 
to disciplinary action. 

 
Safety of Records Policy 
The company is effectively implementing the policy to ensure the safety of records. All records must be retained for 
as long as they are required to meet legal, administrative, operational and other requirements of the Company. 
 
Company’s Approach to Policies  
The Company’s approach to managing and reporting policies related to procurement, waste, and emissions is aligned 
with our commitment to minimizing our environmental impact, promoting responsible resource management, and 
contributing positively to the communities in which we operate. As a reputed employer we are cordially concerned to 
take relevant actions & adopt suitable practices to monitor and manage procurement, waste and emissions effectively.  
 
Meetings Held Outside Pakistan  
During the year, there was no board meeting was held outside Pakistan. 
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IT GOVERNANCE 

IIL has a well-implemented IT Governance Policy which seeks to ensure that IT is aligned with IIL’s 
organizational goals and strategies and delivers value to the organization. The policy is designed to promote 
effective, efficient, timely, and informed decision-making concerning IIL’s IT investments and operations. 
Specifically, the policy aims to establish the IT governance structure and its associated procedures, roles and 
responsibilities, as a critical component of the overall IT Management (ITM) Framework.  

IIL’s IT Governance Policy is mainly charged with: 

• Establishing a shared vision of how IT can add value to the organization; 
• Establishing IT goals and the strategies for achieving those goals; 
• Establishing principles and guidelines for making IT decisions and managing initiatives; 
• Establishing and communicating organizational IT priorities; 
• Determining IT priorities in resource allocation; 
• Establishing, amending and retiring as necessary, organizational IT and other technology  
 related policies; and 

• Determining the distribution of responsibility between the IT Department and the end user. 

IT Security Policy 

The objective of Information Security is to ensure the continuity of business of the company and to minimize 
business damage by preventing and limiting the impact of security incidents. 

Policy 

The purpose of the Policy is to protect the Company’s information assets from all types of threats including 
cybersecurity threats, whether internal or external, deliberate or accidental. These assets relate to the information 
stored and processed electronically. 

It is the Policy of the Company to ensure that: 

• Information will be protected against unauthorized access; 
• Confidentiality of information will be assured by protection from unauthorized disclosure or interruption; 
• Integrity of information (its accuracy and completeness) will be maintained by protecting against 

unauthorized modification; 
• Regulatory and legislative requirements will be met, including record keeping, according to Information 

Security Management System standards; 
• Disaster Recovery Plans will be produced, maintained, and tested, to ensure that information and vital 

services are available to Company when needed; 
• Information on security matters will be made available to all staff; 
• All breaches of information security, actual or suspected, will be reported to and investigated by the 

Cybersecurity team; and 
• The controls, rules, and procedures for all individuals accessing and using an organization’s IT assets and 

resources. 

Industry-specific requirements for cybersecurity and strategy 

The Board has approved and enforced IT teams to implement multiple controls for cybersecurity attacks and risks 
mitigation. 

The IT team has implemented multiple controls like next generation edge network firewalls, user end-point 
security system, email security gateway and user access policy and procedures as best industry practices to ensure 
secured environment from any type of cybersecurity threats. 
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Board’s risk oversight function for Cybersecurity 

When it comes to cybersecurity governance, the Board of Directors has specifically assigned agenda to IT team 
to align with management on the appropriate risk appetite related to cybersecurity. 

Management engagement with the board 

The Board’s audit committee while performing risk oversight functions also reviews and evaluates the 
cybersecurity risks. Internal Audit department regularly performs network and cyber security audits, the results of 
which are presented to the Board’s Audit Committee. 

Controls and procedures about cybersecurity risks and incidents 

Networks and systems are constantly evolving due to threats, organizational growth or new regulatory & business 
requirements. Traditional analysis products focus on recording and identifying company-wide threats through 
logging, analysis and reporting over time. 

Company has deployed multiple systems to secure IT systems and data i.e. network firewall, email security gateway 
and end point security systems which are all monitored by system and firewall log analyzer. 

Managing Contingencies 

The Board has approved and continuously reviews the IT Policy and Business Continuity Plan of the Company. 
The management has arranged offsite data storage facilities. All the key records are being maintained at different 
locations. Employees are aware of the steps required to be taken in case of any emergency. 

Business Continuity Plan 

Business Continuity Planning is a process used to develop a practical plan for how a business can recover or 
partially restore critical business activities within a predetermined timeframe after a crisis or disaster. 

Manufacturing Facilities 

The Company’s manufacturing facilities are located in Karachi, Hub and Lahore and are state-of-the-art 
construction. The buildings are fire-resilient and fully equipped with modern firefighting equipment. It also meets 
HSE requirements at all levels. Hence, it has a lesser probability of disruption of operations. 

Advancement in digital transformation  

In the past few decades, a fourth industrial revolution has emerged, known as Industry 4.0. It takes the emphasis 
on digital technology from recent decades to a whole new level with the help of interconnectivity through the 
Internet of Things (IoT), access to real-time data, and the introduction of cyber-physical systems. Industry 4.0 
offers a more comprehensive, interlinked, and holistic approach to manufacturing. It connects physical with digital 
and allows for better collaboration and access across departments, partners, vendors, products, and people. 

Industry 4.0 empowers business owners to better control and understands every aspect of their operation, and 
allows them to leverage instant data to boost productivity, improve processes, and drive growth. There are 
hundreds of concepts and terms (ERP, IoT, RPA, Block Chain, AI, Big data, Cloud Computing etc) that relate to 
Industry 4.0, but we have to decide in which domain we want to invest in Industry 4.0 solutions as per our business 
requirement. 

In our case, board of directors decided to invest in SAP and Cloud computing to improve business process 
management tools and reporting that can be used to manage information across an organization. 

They decided to migrate the company’s on-premises SAP ERP solution to SAP S/4HANA on the cloud. The 
Company has now moved towards SAP S/4HANA and success factors on cloud. Multiple cloud service provider 
solutions have been reviewed and evaluated by the Board and finalized one cloud service provider.  
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REVIEW REPORT
 

To the members of Ismail Industries Limited 

 
Review Report on the Statement of Compliance contained in  
Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance)  
Regulations, 2019 
 
We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of 
Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 (the Regulations) prepared by the Board of Directors 
of Ismail Industries Limited (the Company) for the year ended June 30, 2023 in accordance with 
the requirements of regulation 36 of the Regulations. 

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the 
Company. Our responsibility is to review whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the 
status of the Company’s compliance with the provisions of the Regulations and report if it does 
not and to highlight any non-compliance with the requirements of the Regulations. A review is 
limited primarily to inquiries of the Company’s personnel and review of various documents 
prepared by the Company to comply with the Regulations. 

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of 
the accounting and internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective 
audit approach. We are not required to consider whether the Board of Directors’ statement on 
internal control covers all risks and controls or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such 
internal controls, the Company’s corporate governance procedures and risks. 

The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon 
recommendation of the Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review 
and approval, its related party transactions. We are only required and have ensured compliance 
of this requirement to the extent of the approval of the related party transactions by the Board 
of Directors upon recommendation of the Audit Committee.  

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the 
Statement of Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Company's compliance, in all 
material respects, with the requirements contained in the Regulations as applicable to the 
Company for the year ended June 30, 2023. 

 

Grant Thornton Anjum Rahman 
Chartered Accountants 

Karachi 
Dated: September 15, 2023 
UDIN: CR2023101548AdfeoL6g 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
To the members of Ismail Industries Limited 
 

Report on the Audit of the Unconsolidated Financial Statements 
 

Opinion 
 

We have audited the annexed unconsolidated financial statements of Ismail Industries Limited (the Company), 
which comprise the unconsolidated statement of financial position as at June 30, 2023, and the unconsolidated 
statement of profit or loss, the unconsolidated statement of comprehensive income, the unconsolidated statement 
of changes in equity, the unconsolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the 
unconsolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory 
information, and we state that we have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our 
knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of the audit. 
 
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 
unconsolidated statement of financial position, the unconsolidated  statement of profit or loss, the unconsolidated 
statement of comprehensive income, the unconsolidated statement of changes in equity and the unconsolidated 
statement of cash flows together with the notes forming part thereof conform with the accounting and reporting 
standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the information required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), 
in the manner so required and respectively give a true and fair view of the state of the Company's affairs as at 
June 30, 2023 and of the profit and other comprehensive loss, the changes in equity and its cash flows for the 
year then ended. 
 

Basis for Opinion 
 

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in Pakistan. 
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the 
Unconsolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with 
the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by 
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient 
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 
 
Key Audit Matter 

 
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of 
the unconsolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our 
audit of the unconsolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not 
provide a separate opinion on these matters. 
 
Following is the key audit matter: 
 

S. No. Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in our 
audit 

   

1. Valuation of Stock-in-trade 
 
As at June 30, 2023 the Company’s 
total stock-in-trade balance amounting 
to Rs. 15.88 billion as disclosed in note 
11 represents 44.83% of the total 
current assets of the Company. The 
value of stock-in-trade is based on the 

 
 

In response to this matter, our audit 
procedures included the following: 

 

 Reviewed the management procedure 
for valuation of stock-in-trade and 
evaluating the NRV of stock in trade. 
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weighted average cost method for raw 
materials, packing materials and work 
in process and lower of weighted 
average cost and net realizable value 
(NRV) for finished goods, and invoice 
value plus other charges for stock in 
transit.  
 
The Company is required to measure 
its stock-in-trade at the lower of cost 
and NRV. There is an element of 
judgement involved relating to the 
valuation, which is required for the 
estimation of the net realizable value 
and allowance for slow-moving and 
obsolete stock-in-trade. Such 
estimation is made after taking into 
consideration factors such as 
movement in prices, current and 
expected future market demands and 
pricing competitions. 
 
This was the key audit matter because 
of its materiality and significance in 
terms of judgements involved in 
estimating the NRV of underlying 
stock-in-trade. 
 

 Observed physical counts at major 
locations to ascertain the condition and 
existence of stock-in-trade. 
 

 Tested the valuation method used by 
the management in valuation of stock in 
trade. 

 

 Reviewed stock-in-trade turnover 
ratios, understood and evaluated the 
appropriateness of the basis of 
identification of the obsolete stock-in- 
trade, tested the accuracy of the aging 
analysis of stock-in-trade on a sample 
basis, tested the cost of goods with 
underlying invoices and expenses 
incurred in accordance with stock-in- 
trade valuation method and reviewed 
the minutes of the relevant meetings at 
the board and management level to 
identify any indicators of obsolescence.   

 Compared the NRV to the cost of stock 
in trade whether any adjustment is 
required to value stock in trade in 
accordance with the accounting policy; 
and 

 Assessed the adequacy of the 
disclosures on stock-in-trade in these 
unconsolidated financial statements.  

 
Information Other than the Unconsolidated Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon 
 

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included 
in the annual report, but does not include the unconsolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report 
thereon.  
 
Our opinion on the unconsolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not 
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.  
 
In connection with our audit of the unconsolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the 
unconsolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially 
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this 
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 
 
Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Unconsolidated Financial Statements 
  
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the unconsolidated financial statements 
in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements of 
Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to 
enable the preparation of unconsolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether 
due to fraud or error. 
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In preparing the unconsolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s 
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the 
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease 
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 
 
Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process. 
 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Unconsolidated Financial Statements 
 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the unconsolidated financial statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that 
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit 
conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement when it 
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, 
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these 
unconsolidated financial statements. 
 
As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment and 
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 
 

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the unconsolidated financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit 
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a 
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may 
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 
 

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness 
of the Company’s internal control. 

 

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates 
and related disclosures made by management. 

 

 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, 
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions 
that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude 
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related 
disclosures in the unconsolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify 
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s 
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going 
concern. 
 

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the unconsolidated financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the unconsolidated financial statements represent the underlying 
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

 

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of 
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify 
during our audit. 
 
We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements 
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably 
be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 
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From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we determine those matters that were of most 
significance in the audit of the unconsolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key 
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public 
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be 
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to 
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 
 
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

 
Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion: 
 

a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX 
of 2017); 

 
b) the unconsolidated statement of financial position, the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss, the 

unconsolidated statement of comprehensive income, the unconsolidated statement of changes in equity 
and the unconsolidated statement of cash flows together with the notes thereon have been drawn up in 
conformity with the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and are in agreement with the books of account 
and returns; 

 
c) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for the purpose of 

the Company’s business; and 
 

d) zakat deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980), was deducted by 
the company and deposited in the Central Zakat Fund established under section 7 of that Ordinance. 

 
The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Muhammad Khalid 
Aziz. 

 

 

 

Grant Thornton Anjum Rahman  
Chartered Accountants 

 
 

Karachi 
Dated: September 15, 2023 
UDIN: CR2023101548AdfeoL6g 

 

UDIN: AR202310154qI5QimyNH



2023 2022
Note

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment 6 28,838,283,325     25,100,648,537      
Right-of-use assets 6.1 -                        26,661,774             
Intangible assets 7 2,226,707              5,995,440               
Long term investments 8 8,751,140,930        7,145,568,786        
Long term deposits 9 26,314,265            23,550,568             

Total non-current assets 37,617,965,227      32,302,425,105      

Current assets

Stores and spares 10 628,624,878          509,098,029           
Stock-in-trade 11 15,884,922,017      8,337,857,789        
Trade debts 12 10,504,519,178      5,746,087,378        
Loans and advances 13 3,217,437,351        1,963,345,154        
Trade deposits and short term prepayments 14 286,829,531          37,312,320             
Short term investments 15 1,151,277,927        965,120,059           
Other receivables 16 1,229,970,513        117,740,491           
Taxation - net 17 1,003,831,065        1,122,685,139        
Cash and bank balances 18 1,530,218,047        242,333,100           

Total current assets 35,437,630,507     19,041,579,459      

Total assets 73,055,595,734     51,344,004,564     

The annexed notes from 1 to 47 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.

------------ Rupees ------------
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2023 2022
Note

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Share capital and reserves

Authorized share capital
250,000,000 (2022: 250,000,000) ordinary shares  

of Rs. 10 each 2,500,000,000       2,500,000,000        

Issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital 19 663,569,400          663,569,400           
Reserves 20 17,052,163,857      11,916,011,853      

Total shareholders' equity 17,715,733,257      12,579,581,253      

Non-current liabilities

Long term finances - secured 21 23,192,131,400      19,689,292,674      
Lease liabilities 22 -                        2,657,700               
Deferred liabilities 23 2,474,283,601        2,358,751,602        

Total non-current liabilities 25,666,415,001      22,050,701,976      

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables 24 8,369,012,245        3,474,859,492        
Accrued mark-up 25 1,091,598,751        374,333,248           
Short term finances - secured 26 15,108,282,892      9,088,758,920        
Current portion of:

-  long term finances - secured 21 4,096,392,253       3,380,756,599        
-  lease liabilities 22 -                        4,829,319               

Unclaimed dividend 5,069,267              4,044,553               
Advances from customers - unsecured 1,003,092,068        386,139,204           

Total current liabilities 29,673,447,476     16,713,721,335      

Total liabilities 55,339,862,477     38,764,423,311      

Total equity and liabilities 73,055,595,734     51,344,004,564      

Contingencies and commitments 27

------------ Rupees ------------

The annexed notes from 1 to 47 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.

UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT JUNE 30, 2023

 Munsarim Saifullah
Chief Executive Officer

Maqsood Ismail Ahmed
Director Chief Financial Officer

Ahmed Raza Parekh



UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

2023 2022
Note ------------ Rupees ------------

Sales 28 99,733,046,867         65,255,748,409        

Sales returns, discounts and direct expense (2,112,153,669)          (2,475,750,755)         
Export rebate 31,217,117                 25,289,225              

(2,080,936,552)         (2,450,461,530)         
97,652,110,315          62,805,286,879        

Sales tax (8,746,314,390)          (7,544,587,684)         

Sales - net 88,905,795,925         55,260,699,195        

Cost of sales 30 (70,473,695,459)       (45,415,201,624)       

Gross profit 18,432,100,466         9,845,497,571          

Selling and distribution expenses 31 (7,053,585,034)         (4,784,661,261)         

Administrative expenses 32 (1,048,236,416)          (816,535,268)           

Operating profit 10,330,279,016         4,244,301,042          

Other operating expenses 33 (822,860,092)            (422,789,237)           

Other income 34 1,995,430,693           762,853,691             
11,502,849,617          4,584,365,496          

Finance cost 35 (4,399,443,729)         (1,413,989,787)         

7,103,405,888           3,170,375,709          

Share of profit from associated company - net 8.3 428,075,707              216,582,895             

Profit before taxation 7,531,481,595           3,386,958,604          

Taxation 37 (1,149,797,012)          (835,938,376)           

Profit for the year 6,381,684,583           2,551,020,228          

Earnings per share - basic and diluted 38 96.17 38.44

The annexed notes from 1 to 47 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.
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 Munsarim Saifullah
Chief Executive Officer

Maqsood Ismail Ahmed
Director Chief Financial Officer

Ahmed Raza Parekh



UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

2023 2022
Note ------------ Rupees ------------

Profit for the year 6,381,684,583        2,551,020,228        

Other comprehensive loss:

Items that may be reclassified to unconsolidated statement -                        -                        
of profit or loss in subsequent periods

Items that will not be reclassified to unconsolidated statement 
of profit or loss in subsequent periods:

23.2.7 (16,840,103)           (32,832,701)            

(4,317,300)             (3,787,384)             

 net of tax (295,378,016)         (214,201,434)          

Other comprehensive loss (316,535,419)         (250,821,519)          

Total comprehensive income for the year 6,065,149,164        2,300,198,709        

The annexed notes from 1 to 47 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.

 Share of other comprehensive loss from associate -  

 Loss on remeasurements of  defined benefit  
 obligation - net of tax 

 Unrealized loss on remeasurement of investment classified as 
 value through OCI - net of tax 
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 Munsarim Saifullah
Chief Executive Officer

Maqsood Ismail Ahmed
Director Chief Financial Officer

Ahmed Raza Parekh
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UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

2023 2022
Note

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash generated from operations 40 4,395,647,625       2,251,137,130        

   Gratuity paid 23.2.3 (69,101,253)           (43,948,262)            
   Income tax paid - net (988,450,738)         (703,643,893)          

Long term deposits - net (2,763,697)            3,288,322               

Net cash generated from operating activities 3,335,331,937        1,506,833,297        

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Capital expenditure (including CWIP) (6,231,203,211)       (6,617,572,848)       
Intangible assets -                        (1,000,000)             
Investment in subsidiaries (1,525,000,000)      (1,903,262,500)       
Short-term investments made - net 15 (190,097,060)         (651,578,469)          

   Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 6.6 177,245,211           551,940,577           

Net cash used in investing activities (7,769,055,060)      (8,621,473,240)       

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Receipts from long term finances - net 4,319,721,789        6,438,931,069        
   Lease repayments (7,761,442)             (54,679,863)            

Short term finances - secured 1,737,050,819        3,076,907,538        
   Interest / mark-up paid (3,681,903,803)      (1,202,322,057)       
   Dividend paid (927,972,446)         (994,212,144)          
Net cash generated from financing activities 1,439,134,917        7,264,624,543        
Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents (2,994,588,206)      149,984,600           

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year (915,742,282)         (1,065,726,882)       
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (3,910,330,488)      (915,742,282)          

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year comprise of:
Cash and bank balances 18 1,530,218,047        242,333,100           
Running finance utilized under mark-up arrangements 26.5 (5,440,548,535)      (1,158,075,382)       

(3,910,330,488)      (915,742,282)          

The annexed notes from 1 to 47 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.

------------ Rupees ------------

8.1 & 8.2
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NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023
1 LEGAL STATUS AND OPERATIONS

1.1

2 SIGNIFICANT EVENTS AND TRANSACTIONS

2.1

3 BASIS OF PREPARATION

3.1 Statement of compliance

3.2 Basis of measurement

3.3 Functional and presentation currency

3.4 Reclassification for better presentation

Ismail Industries Limited (the Company) was incorporated in Karachi, Pakistan as a private limited company on June 21,
1988. On November 01, 1989 the Company was converted into a public limited company. The registered office / head office
of the Company is situated at 17 - Bangalore Town, Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi, Pakistan. Previously the shares of the
Company were listed on the Karachi and Lahore Stock Exchanges. However, due to integration of these Stock Exchanges
into Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited effective from January 11, 2016 the shares of the Company are now quoted on
Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited. Principal activities of the Company are manufacturing and trading of sugar confectionery
items, biscuits, potato chips, nutritional products, flour, cast polypropylene (CPP) and Biaxially-oriented polyethylene
terephthalate (BOPET) film under the brands of 'Candyland', 'Bisconni', 'Snackcity', 'Ismail nutrition', Ghiza' and 'Astro films'
respectively.

These are the separate unconsolidated financial statements of the Company in which investment in subsidiaries are stated at
cost less any impairment costs, if any and investment in associates are carried under equity method of accounting.

In addition to the above registered office, geographical location and addresses of business units including manufacturing units
of the Company are as under:

Further the Company's liaison offices and warehouses are situated in Karachi, Hyderabad, Sukkur, Multan, Lahore, Islamabad,
Faisalabad and Peshawar.

During the year, the Company has made capital investment amounting to Rs. 400 million and Rs. 1,125 million in its
subsidiaries i.e. Hudson Pharma (Private) Limited and Ismail Resin (Private) Limited respectively for the purpose of
expansion of business. Further, the Company also commenced the commercial production of flour in the last quarter of the
year having production capacity of 240 TPD.

These unconsolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as
applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of:
- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
(IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017; and
- Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017.
Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRS Standards, the provisions of
and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.

These unconsolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except as otherwise
disclosed in the respective accounting policies.

Items included in these unconsolidated financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the Company operates. These unconsolidated financial statements are presented in Pakistani Rupee,
which is the Company's functional and presentation currency. The figures have been rounded off to the nearest Pakistani
Rupee.

Prior year figures- have been rearranged and/or reclassified, wherever necessary, for better presentation. There is no material
reclassification.

G-22, Hub H.I.T.E., Balochistan.
Unit-9Unit-4

Unit-5
38-C, Sundar Industrial Estate, Raiwind Road, Lahore.

 G-1A, Hub H.I.T.E., Balochistan.

Unit-10
E164-168, North Western Zone, Port Qasim.

Factories:
Unit-1

C-230, Hub H.I.T.E., Balochistan.
Unit-6

D-91, D-92 & D-94 North Western Zone, Port Qasim.

Unit-8

Unit-2

E154-157, North Western Zone, Port Qasim.

 B-140, Hub H.I.T.E., Balochistan.

Unit-3

Unit-7

 G-1, Hub H.I.T.E., Balochistan.

E164-168, North Western Zone, Port Qasim.
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3.5

3.5.1

3.5.2

3.5.2.3

4 USE OF CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS

Note
a) Property, plant and equipment 4.1 & 5.1
b) Right-of-use assets 5.1.2
c) Intangible assets 5.2
d) Stock-in-trade, stores and spares 4.2 , 5.7 & 5.8
e) Taxation 4.4 & 5.14
f) Staff retirement benefits 4.5 & 5.13
g) Provisions 5.15
h) Impairment of non-financial assets 5.3
i) Contingent liabilities 5.23
j) Impairment of financial assets 4.3 & 5.25.5

4.1 Property, plant and equipment

4.2 Stock-in-trade, stores and spares

4.3 Trade debts and other receivables

4.4 Taxation

There were certain amendments to accounting and reporting standards which became effective for the Company for the
current year. However, these are considered not to be relevant or to have any significant impact on the Company’s financial
reporting and, therefore, have not been disclosed in these financial statements.

Standard, Amendments and Interpretations to Approved Accounting Standards

Standards, amendments and interpretations to the published standards that may be relevant to the Company and 
adopted in the current year

Standards, amendments and interpretations to the published standards that may be relevant but not yet effective 
and not early adopted by the Company

There are certain amendments to accounting and reporting standards that are not yet effective and are considered either not
to be relevant or to have any significant impact on the Company’s financial statements and operations and, therefore, have
not been disclosed in these financial statements.

Standards, amendments and interpretations to the published standards that are not yet notified by the Securities
and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP)

Further, certain IFRS have been issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) which are yet to be notified
by the SECP for the purpose of applicability in Pakistan.

The preparation of these unconsolidated financial statements in conformity with the approved accounting standards as
applicable in Pakistan requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
accounting policies and the reported amount of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. 

The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgments about the carrying values of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates. The
estimates underlying the assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in
the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made the following accounting estimates and
judgments which are significant to the unconsolidated financial statements:

The Company reviews appropriateness of the rate of depreciation, useful life and residual value used in the calculation of
depreciation. Further, where applicable, an estimate of the recoverable amount of assets is made for possible impairment on
an annual basis. In making these estimates, the Company uses the technical resources available with the Company. Any
change in estimates in the future might affect the carrying amount of respective item of property, plant and equipment with
corresponding effects on the depreciation charge and impairment.

The Company's management reviews the net realizable value (NRV) of stock-in-trade, stores and spares to assess any
diminution in the respective carrying values and wherever required, provision for impairment is made.

Impairment loss against doubtful trade and other debts is recorded in accordance with basis mentioned in note 5.25.5 of these
unconsolidated financial statements.

In making the estimate for taxation by the Company, the management refers to the current income tax laws and the decisions
of appellate authorities on certain issues in the past.
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4.5 Staff retirement benefits

5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

5.1 Property, plant and equipment

5.1.1 Owned

5.1.2 Right-of-use assets

5.1.3 Capital work-in-progress

5.2 Intangible assets

Property, plant and equipment including leasehold land and all additions except capital work-in-progress are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. Cost of property, plant and equipment comprises acquisition

cost and directly attributable cost of bringing the assets to its working condition. Borrowing cost including the exchange risk

fee (if any) that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction and production of a qualifying asset is capitalized as

part of the cost during the period in which activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for its intended use are carried out.

Certain actuarial assumptions have been adopted as disclosed in note 23.1 to these unconsolidated financial statements for
valuation of present value of defined benefit obligations. Any changes in these assumptions in future years might affect the
amounts recognized in those years.

The significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these unconsolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented.

Useful lives of intangible operating assets are reviewed, at each reporting date and adjusted if the impact of amortization is
significant.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the asset will flow to the Company and the cost of the asset can be
measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognized. Normal repairs and maintenance are charged to
the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss as and when incurred. Major renewals and improvements are capitalized and
the assets so replaced, if any, are retired.

Depreciation on assets other than leasehold land is calculated so as to write-off the assets over their expected economic lives
under the diminishing balance method at rates given in note no. 6 to the unconsolidated financial statements. Depreciation on
leasehold land is charged to the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss, applying the straight-line method at rates given in
note no. 6 to these unconsolidated financial statements whereby the cost is written off over the lease term. Depreciation is
charged from the month when the asset is available for use and ceased from the month of disposal.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting date.

The gain or loss on disposal or retirement of an asset represented by the difference between the sale proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset is recognized as other income or expense.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured based on the initial amount of the lease liability, any lease payments made at or
before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred, an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the
underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease incentive received. The right-
of-use asset is depreciated on a diminishing balance method as given in note no. 6.1 of these unconsolidated financial
statements of June 30, 2023. The right-of-use assets is reduced by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain
remeasurements of the lease liability.

The Company has elected to apply the practical expedient not to recognize right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short
term leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets. The lease payments associated with
these leases is recognized as an expense on a straight line basis over the lease term.

Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost less accumulated impairment if any. All expenditures connected to the specific assets
incurred during installation and construction period are carried under capital work-in-progress. These expenditures are
transferred to relevant category of property, plant and equipment as and when the assets start operation. Impairment losses, if
any, are recorded on the basis as defined in note 5.3.

An intangible asset is an identifiable non-monetary asset without physical substance.

Intangible assets are recognized when it is probable that the expected future economic benefits will flow to the entity and the
cost of the asset can be measured reliably. Cost of the intangible asset (i.e. computer software) includes purchase cost and
directly attributable expenses incidental to bring the asset for its intended use.
Costs associated with maintaining computer software are recognized as an expense as and when incurred.

Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Amortization is
charged over the estimated useful life of the asset on a systematic basis applying straight line method and impairment losses if
any are recorded on the basis as defined in note 5.3.
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5.3 Impairment of non-financial assets

5.4 Investments in subsidiaries

5.5 Investments in associates

5.6 Long term deposits 
These are stated at amortized cost which represents the fair value of consideration given.

5.7 Stores and spares

5.8 Stock-in-trade

These are valued at the lower of cost or net realizable value. Cost is determined as follows:
Types of stock Valuation method

a) Raw and packing materials weighted average cost method
b) Work-in-process weighted average cost method
c) Finished goods lower of weighted average cost or net realizable value
d) Goods in-transit invoice value plus other charges incurred thereon
e) Trading goods lower of weighted average cost or net realizable value

5.9 Trade debts and other receivables

5.10 Cash and cash equivalents

Assets that are subject to depreciation/amortization including capital work-in-progress are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
recognized for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is
the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are
grouped at the lowest levels for which they are separately identifiable (cash-generating units).

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortization, if no impairment loss had been recognized.

Investment in subsidiaries are recognized and carried at cost in these unconsolidated financial statements. The carrying
amount of investments is reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any
such indication exists the investment's recoverable amount is estimated which is the higher of its value in use and its fair value
less cost to sell. An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses
are recognized in the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount but limited to the extent of initial cost of investments. A reversal of
impairment loss is recognized in the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss in the period in which they are occurred.

Associates are all entities over which the Company has significant influence but not control, generally accompanying a
shareholding between 20% and 50% of the voting rights or common directorship. Investments in associates are accounted for 
using the equity method of accounting unless other law and regulations prescribe different criteria. Under the equity method,
the investment is initially recognized at cost, and the carrying amount is increased or decreased to recognize the Company’s
share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income / loss of the associate after the date of acquisition.

All stores, spares and loose tools either imported or purchased locally are charged to the unconsolidated statement of profit
or loss when consumed and are valued at lower of weighted moving average cost or estimated NRV except for items-in-
transit which are stated at invoice value plus other incidental charges paid thereon up to the reporting date. Provision is made
for obsolete and slow moving items where necessary and is recognized in the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss.

Net realizable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs necessary to
make the sale.

Inventory write-down is made based on the current market conditions, historical experience and selling goods of similar
nature. It could change significantly as a result of changes in market conditions. A review is made on each reporting date on
inventories for excess inventories, obsolescence and declines in net realizable value and an allowance is recorded against the
inventory balances for any such declines.

These are classified at amortized cost and are initially recognized when they are originated and measured at fair value of
consideration receivable. These assets are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery. Actual credit loss
experience over past years is used to base the calculation of expected credit loss.

For the purposes of the unconsolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash in hand and
bank balances, short term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of change in value and short term running finances under mark up arrangements.
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5.11 Interest / Mark-up bearing loans and borrowings

5.12 Borrowing costs

5.13 Staff retirement benefits - gratuity

5.14 Taxation 

5.14.1 Current

5.14.2 Deferred

5.15 Provisions

5.16 Trade and other payables

5.17 Foreign currency translation

5.18 Segment reporting

5.19 Dividend distribution

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets (those that take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use) are capitalized as part of the cost of the relevant asset. All other
borrowing costs are charged to the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

All loans and borrowings are initially recognized at the fair value of the consideration received less directly attributable
transaction costs.

Loans and borrowings are subsequently stated at amortized cost with any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction cost)
and the redemption value is recognized in the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss except for any amount included in the cost
of property, plant and equipment over the period of the borrowing using the effective interest method.

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-
maker for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments. Operating segment comprises of food
and plastic division.

The Company operates an unfunded gratuity scheme covering all its permanent employees with one or more years of service
with the Company. Provision for gratuity is made to cover obligation under the scheme in respect of employees who have
completed the minimum qualifying period. Provision has been made in accordance with actuarial recommendations
summarized in note no. 23.1 using the projected unit credit method.

The charge for current tax is based on taxable income at current rates of taxation after taking into account tax credits, rebates
and exemptions available, if any, or in accordance with the final tax regime, where applicable, of the Income Tax Ordinance,
2001 (the Ordinance) or the minimum tax under section 113 of the Ordinance or Alternate Corporate Tax (ACT) under
section 113C of the Ordinance, whichever is higher.

Deferred tax is recognized using the statement of financial position liability method on all temporary differences between the
carrying amount of the assets and liabilities and their tax bases.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all major taxable temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all major deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences can be utilized.

The carrying amount of the deferred tax asset is reviewed at each reporting date and is recognized only to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the assets may be utilized. Deferred tax assets are reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realized.
Unrecognized deferred income tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and are recognized to the extent that it
becomes probable that future taxable profit will allow deferred tax asset to be recovered.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rate that are expected to apply to the year when the asset is utilized
or the liability is settled, based on the tax rates that have been enacted or substantially enacted at the reporting date.

Provisions are recognized in these unconsolidated statement of financial position when the Company has a legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of obligation.

Liabilities for trade and other payables are measured at cost which is the fair value of the consideration to be paid in future for 
goods and services.

Transactions in foreign currencies are accounted for in Pakistani Rupee at the rate of exchange prevailing at the date of
transaction. Monetary assets and monetary liabilities in foreign currencies as at the reporting date are expressed in Pakistani
Rupee at rates of exchange prevailing on that date. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Exchange differences are taken to the
unconsolidated statement of profit or loss.

Dividend distribution to the shareholders is recognized as a liability in the period in which it is approved by the shareholders.
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5.20 Related party transactions

5.21 Share Capital

5.22 Earnings per share

5.23 Contingent liabilities

Contingent liability is disclosed when:

a) 

b) 

5.24 Operating, administrative and selling expenses

5.25 Financial Instruments - Initial Recognition and subsequent measurement 

5.25.1 Initial recognition

5.25.2 Classification of financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at amortized cost:

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at FVTOCI:

5.25.3 Classification of financial liabilities

5.25.4 Subsequent measurement

i) Financial assets at FVTOCI

- the contractual terms of the financial assets give rise on specified date to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All transactions involving related parties arising in the normal course of business are conducted at arm’s length at normal
commercial rates on the same terms and conditions as third party transactions using valuation modes, as admissible, except in
extremely rare circumstances where, subject to the approval of the board of directors, it is in the interest of the Company to
do so.

Ordinary shares are classified as equity and recognized at their face value. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue
of new shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is calculated by
dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding during the year. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary
shareholders and weighted average number of ordinary shares for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the company; or

a present obligation that arises from past events but it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with
sufficient reliability.

These expenses are recognized in the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss upon utilization of the services or as incurred
except as specifically stated in these unconsolidated financial statements.

All financial assets and liabilities are initially measured at cost which is the fair value of the consideration given or received.
These are subsequently measured at fair value or amortized cost as the case may be.

The Company classifies its financial assets in the following categories:
- at fair value through profit or loss ("FVTPL")
- at fair value through other comprehensive income ("FVTOCI"), or
- at amortized cost.

The Company determines the classifications of financial assets at initial recognition. The classification of instruments (other
than equity instruments) is driven by the Company's business model for managing the financial assets and their contractual
cash flow characteristics.

- the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual
cash flows; and 

- the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and
selling the financial assets; and 
- the contractual terms of the financial assets give rise on specified date to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

By default, all other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL.

The Company classifies its financial liabilities at amortised cost.

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are initially recognized at fair value plus transaction costs. Subsequently, they
are measured at fair value, with gains or losses arising from changes in fair value recognized in other comprehensive
income/(loss).
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ii) Financial assets and liabilities at amortized cost

iii) Financial assets and liabilities at FVTPL

5.25.5 Impairment of financial assets

- long term investment;
- long term deposits;
- loans and advances;
- trade deposits; 
- short term investment;
- other receivables; and
- bank balances

5.25.6 Derecognition

i) Financial assets

ii) Financial liabilities

5.25.7 Off-setting of financial assets and liabilities

ECLs are a probability weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured at the present value of all cash short falls
(i.e. the difference between cash flows due to the entity in accordance with the contract and cash flows that the Company
expects to receive).

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are initially recognized at fair value plus transaction costs. Subsequently, they
are measured at fair value, with gains or losses arising from changes in fair value recognized in other comprehensive
income/(loss).

Financial assets and liabilities at amortized cost are initially recognized at fair value plus or minus the transaction cost that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial assets or financial liabilities and subsequently carried at
amortized cost, and in the case of financial assets, less any impairment.

Financial assets and liabilities carried at FVTPL are initially recorded at fair value and transaction costs are expensed in the
unconsolidated statement of profit or loss. Realized and unrealized gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of
financial assets and liabilities held at FVTPL are included in the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss in the period in
which they arise.
Where the management has opted to recognize a financial liability at FVTPL, any changes associated with the Company's own
credit risk will be recognized in other comprehensive income/(loss). Currently, there are no financial liabilities designated at
FVTPL.

The Company recognizes loss allowance for Expected Credit Loss (ECL) on financial assets measured at amortized cost and
FVTOCI at an amount equal to life time ECLs except for the financial assets in which there is no significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition or financial assets which are determine to have low credit risk at the reporting date, in which case
twelve months' ECL is recorded. The following were either determine to have low or there was no credit risk since initial
recognition and at the reporting date:

Loss allowance for trade receivables are always measured at an amount equal to life time ECLs.

Life time ECLs are the ECLs that result from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument.
Twelve months ECLs are portion of ECL that result from default events that are possible within twelve months after the
reporting date.

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off when the Company has no reasonable expectation of recovering a
financial asset in entirety or a portion thereof.

The Company derecognizes financial assets only when the contractual rights to cash flows from the financial assets expire or
when it transfer the financial assets and substantially all the associated risks and reward of ownership to another entity. On
derecognition of financial assets measured at amortized cost, the difference between the assets carrying value and the sum of
the consideration received and receivable, is recognized in the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss. In addition, on
derecognition of an investment in a debt instrument classified as at FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss previously
accumulated in the investments revaluation reserve reclassified to the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss. In contrast,
on derecognition of an investment in equity instrument which the Company has elected on initial recognition to measure at
FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the investments revaluation reserve is not reclassified to the
unconsolidated statement of profit or loss, but is transferred to retain earnings.

The Company derecognizes its financial liabilities only when its obligations under the financial liabilities are discharged,
cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liabilities derecognized and the
consideration paid and payable, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognized in the
unconsolidated statement of profit or loss.

Financial assets and liabilities are off set and the net amount is reported in these unconsolidated statement of financial
position if the Company has a legal right to set-off the transactions and also intends either to settle on a net basis or to realize
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
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5.26 Revenue

a) 

b) Processing income is recognized when services are rendered.
c) Gain or loss on sale of investments is taken to income in the period in which it arises.
d) Interest income is recognized on an accrual basis using the effective interest method.
e) 
f) 

Revenue from local sale of goods is recognized when the goods are dispatched and in case of export sales, when the
goods are shipped i.e. when performance obligation are satisfied.

Dividend is recognized when the right to receive is established.
Other income is recognized when the right to receive is established, and the amount and timing of related receipt is
virtually certain.

The Company is in the business of manufacturing and sale of goods. Revenue from contracts with customers is recognized
when control of the goods is transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods net of discount and sales related indirect taxes. The Company has generally
concluded that it is the principal in its revenue arrangements because it typically controls the goods before transferring them
to the customer.
The following are the specific recognition criteria that must be met before revenue is recognized:
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6.5 Particulars of immovable property (i.e. land and building) in the name of Company are as follows:

* The covered area includes multi-storey buildings.

6.6 Following are the particulars of the disposed assets having a book value exceed five hundred thousand rupees.

Cost Accumulated 
depreciation

Net book 
amount Sale proceeds Gain / (loss) Particulars 

of buyer Relationship Mode of 
disposal

Plant and Machinery 
21,382,500      1,425,500        19,957,000       21,382,500      1,425,500       EFU General Insurance Insurance Claim As per Contract
9,500,000        1,014,652        8,485,348         9,500,000        1,014,652       EFU General Insurance Insurance Claim As per Contract

30,882,500     2,440,152        28,442,348      30,882,500     2,440,152       
Vehicles
Mercedes

21,282,280      16,464,079      4,818,201         21,875,000      17,056,799     Tahir Mohsin Independent party Negotiation
7,175,000        6,674,110        500,890            3,600,000        3,099,110       Tahir Javed Independent party Negotiation

28,457,280     23,138,189      5,319,091         25,475,000     20,155,909     

Toyota Fortuner
8,072,875        2,798,596        5,274,279         10,000,000      4,725,721       EFU General Insurance Insurance Claim As per Contract

8,072,875       2,798,596       5,274,279        10,000,000      4,725,721       

Kia Sportage
5,787,488        289,374           5,498,114         7,185,000        1,686,886       Nazeer Ahmed Arain Independent party Negotiation
5,359,418        267,971           5,091,447         6,635,000        1,543,553       Kia Lucky Motors Independent party Negotiation

11,146,906      557,345          10,589,561       13,820,000      3,230,439      

Honda Civic
3,047,750        1,758,311        1,289,439         1,632,098        342,659          Muhammad Sabir Employee Company Policy
3,047,750       1,758,311        1,289,439         1,632,098       342,659         

Honda City
3,411,164        341,117           3,070,048         4,157,996        1,087,949       Zaid M. Ali Habib Employee Company Policy
3,411,164        341,117           3,070,048        4,157,996       1,087,949       

Kia Picanto
1,897,809        362,692           1,535,117         1,950,925        415,808          Kamran Hussain Naqvi Employee Company Policy
1,608,866        332,498           1,276,368         1,933,051        656,683          Ayesha Sabah Employee Company Policy
3,506,675       695,190           2,811,485         3,883,976       1,072,491       

Suzuki Cultus
2,220,719        648,943           1,571,776         2,097,981        526,205          Muhammad Ashraf Employee Company Policy
1,542,567        429,176           1,113,391         1,936,680        823,289          Murtaza Mehdi Employee Company Policy
1,521,368        464,186           1,057,182         1,832,620        775,438          Saeed Ullah Khan Employee Company Policy
2,414,700        1,209,282        1,205,418         1,745,300        539,882          Saad Anjum Employee Company Policy
1,490,911        287,000           1,203,911         1,524,796        320,885          Irfan Nazir Employee Company Policy
1,543,217        473,252           1,069,965         1,441,480        371,515          Muhammad Asad Employee Company Policy
1,521,367        484,132           1,037,235         1,423,580        386,345          Abdul Rasheed Employee Company Policy
1,490,911        392,605           1,098,306         1,407,504        309,198          Uzair Rabbani Employee Company Policy
1,512,053        742,067           769,986            1,112,832        342,846          Umber Jawed Employee Company Policy
1,511,678        755,692           755,986            1,094,811        338,825          M Ashar Azhar Employee Company Policy
1,765,250        884,037           881,213            1,094,455        213,242          M Asif Khan Employee Company Policy
1,767,350        915,854           851,496            1,059,150        207,654          Shujat Ali Ansari Employee Company Policy
1,512,853        571,522           941,331            706,240           (235,091)         Naveed Anwar Employee Company Policy
1,771,850        852,109           919,741            706,100           (213,641)         Sohail Aslam Employee Company Policy
1,403,250        838,656           564,594            697,925           133,331          Kamran Iftikhar Employee Company Policy

24,990,044     9,948,513        15,041,531       19,881,454      4,839,923      

…………………………… Rupees ……………………………

* Total area
17 - Bangalore Town, Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi. Registered office / Head office 1000 sq. yd
C-230, Hub H.I.T.E., Balochistan. Manufacturing facility - Unit 1 7.54 acres
B-140, Hub H.I.T.E., Balochistan. Manufacturing facility - Unit 2 4.59 acres
G-1, Hub H.I.T.E., Balochistan. Manufacturing facility - Unit 3 3.486 acres
G-22, Hub H.I.T.E., Balochistan. Manufacturing facility - Unit 4 9.00 acres
38-C, Sundar Industrial Estate, Raiwind Road, Lahore. Manufacturing facility - Unit 5 4.02 acres
D-91, D-92 & D-94 North Western Zone, Port Qasim, Karachi. Manufacturing facility - Unit 6 7.50 acres
E164-168, North Western Zone, Port Qasim, Karachi. Manufacturing facility - Unit 7 2.74 acres
E154-157, North Western Zone, Port Qasim, Karachi. Manufacturing facility - Unit 8 5.04 acres
G-1A, Hub H.I.T.E., Balochistan. Manufacturing facility - Unit 9 3.185 acres
E164-168, North Western Zone, Port Qasim, Karachi. Manufacturing facility - Unit 10 3.50 acres

For future expansion 20.50 acres
.ihcaraK ,yaB tneserC  )9R( 7 # tolP ,rewoT lraeP ,2042-42-2TP Administrative purpose 2,209.57 sq. ft

Sabzi mandi road, Chak no. 241 Dist. Faisalabad. For future expansion 0.88 acres
39-B, Sundar Industrial Estate, Raiwind Road, Lahore. For future expansion 1.138 acres
EIZ/1/P-II-B, Eastern industrial Zone, Port Qasim, Karachi. For future expansion 15 acres

Locations Usage of immovable property

D-101/M, D-101/N, S.I.T.E area, Nooriabad, 
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Cost Accumulated 
depreciation

Net book 
amount Sale proceeds Gain / (loss) Particulars 

of buyer Relationship Mode of 
disposal

Suzuki Alto
1,203,267        350,952           852,315            1,804,520        952,205          Mehmood Ul Hassan Employee Company Policy
1,203,267        265,721           937,546            1,580,235        642,689          Imran Dawood Employee Company Policy
1,203,767        300,942           902,825            1,563,330        660,505          Rehan Ghouri Employee Company Policy
1,242,441        281,620           960,821            1,433,000        472,179          EFU General Insurance Insurance Claim As per Contract
1,781,400        804,501           976,899            1,402,416        425,517          Abdul Rafay Employee Company Policy
1,559,579        259,929           1,299,650         1,370,018        70,368            Abdul Hakeem Employee Company Policy
1,242,441        498,356           744,085            1,349,273        605,188          Asim Ali Employee Company Policy
1,207,600        481,966           725,634            1,347,149        621,515          Anees Ahmed Employee Company Policy
1,203,267        233,968           969,299            1,183,350        214,051          Adil Masood Employee Company Policy
1,203,466        265,765           937,701            1,166,445        228,744          Nasir Maqbool Employee Company Policy
1,242,441        409,729           832,712            1,088,591        255,879          Sulman Khan Employee Company Policy
1,203,267        316,860           886,407            1,081,920        195,513          Abdul Saboor Khan Employee Company Policy
1,203,267        316,860           886,407            1,081,920        195,513          Touheed Amin Employee Company Policy
1,207,641        481,983           725,658            955,702           230,044          Keith James Employee Company Policy
1,211,536        483,536           728,000            938,004           210,004          Sharjeel Ahmed Employee Company Policy
1,217,727        562,801           654,926            852,513           197,587          Khalid Ali Employee Company Policy
1,211,927        583,698           628,229            796,419           168,190          Muhammad Farhan Employee Company Policy
1,211,927        583,698           628,229            796,418           168,189          M Imran Khan Employee Company Policy
1,242,441        422,430           820,011            1,052,305        232,294          Noman Shakeel Employee Company Policy
1,423,355        685,269           738,086            796,418           58,332            M Haseeb Iqbal Employee Company Policy
1,211,927        594,744           617,183            778,720           161,537          Hafiz Ahsan Azhar Employee Company Policy
1,325,905        637,347           688,558            761,188           72,630            Hadi Nawaz Employee Company Policy
1,325,905        699,943           625,962            678,450           52,488            Subhan Altaf Employee Company Policy
1,203,267        317,529           885,738            1,529,520        643,782          Mazhar Ali Employee Company Policy

30,493,028 10,840,147 19,652,881 27,387,824 7,734,943

Toyota Corolla
2,900,988        1,605,265        1,295,723         1,620,675        324,952          M Imran Khan Employee Company Policy
2,336,590        1,290,063        1,046,527         1,421,096        374,569          Muhammad Hassan Employee Company Policy
2,792,813        1,505,884        1,286,929         1,117,125        (169,804)         Zubair latif Employee Company Policy
1,924,250        1,302,704        621,546            766,880           145,334          M Nasir Khan Employee Company Policy
2,647,880        1,457,581        1,190,299         1,055,982        (134,317)         Salman Shahid Employee Company Policy
2,000,000        1,293,782        706,218            943,861           237,643          Syed Ali Ghalib Employee Company Policy
2,339,290        1,293,346        1,045,944         933,866           (112,078)         Amjad Kamal Employee Company Policy
2,336,790        1,328,203        1,008,587         931,866           (76,721)           Zaid Habib Employee Company Policy
2,779,891        1,365,483        1,414,408         2,072,518        658,110          Yousuf Employee Company Policy
1,935,100        1,274,719        660,381            824,396           164,015          Khalid Ahmed Employee Company Policy
2,005,500        1,354,613        650,887            818,700           167,813          Abdul Rasheed Paryani Employee Company Policy
1,926,750        1,316,100        610,650            766,880           156,230          Najam Ul Hassan Employee Company Policy

27,925,842 16,387,743 11,538,099 13,273,845 1,735,746
Toyota Yaris

2,419,836 542,446 1,877,390         3,490,000 1,612,610       Ali Raza Kazmi Employee Company Policy
2,419,836 542,446 1,877,390 3,490,000 1,612,610

143,471,400 67,007,597 76,463,804 123,002,193 46,538,390
174,353,900 69,447,749 104,906,152 153,884,693 48,978,542

6.7 All disposal are made through negotiation or otherwise specified in 6.6 of these unconsolidated financial statements.

…………………………… Rupees ……………………………

Description Cost Accumulated 
depreciation

Net book 
value

Sale proceed Gain / (loss)

Plant and Machinery 1,855,341       1,699,391      155,951          -                (155,951)      
Furniture& Fixtures 389,755          299,665         90,090            -                (90,090)        
Computers 6,381,164       3,632,304      2,748,860       1,014,458      (1,734,402)   
Equipments 435,187          339,983         95,204            -                (95,204)        
Vehicles 34,776,008     20,700,770    14,075,238     22,346,060    8,270,822     
Sub-total 43,837,455     26,672,113     17,165,343     23,360,518    6,195,176     
2023 - total 218,191,355 96,119,861 122,071,494 177,245,211 55,173,717

2022 - total 309,877,951   105,640,768  204,237,183   551,940,577  347,703,394 

Aggregate of assets disposed off having net book value not exceeding Rs. 500,000
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2023 2022
Note 

6.8 Capital work-in-progress

Civil works 1,659,075,856        1,062,030,391         
Plant and machinery 2,506,502,348       2,693,906,789         
Equipment and fittings 204,496,513           6,837,400               

6.8.1 4,370,074,717        3,762,774,580         

6.8.1 Movement of capital work in progress:

Balance as at July 1, 2021 177,900,924         798,470,812           -                         976,371,736            
Capital expenditure incurred during the year 1,687,113,969      4,375,805,925        23,813,162             6,086,733,056         
Trial production cost incurred - net -                       -                         -                         -                         
Transferred to operating fixed assets (802,984,502)        (2,480,369,948)       (16,975,762)            (3,300,330,212)        
Balance as at June 30, 2022 1,062,030,391      2,693,906,789       6,837,400              3,762,774,580        

Capital expenditure incurred during the year 1,446,836,998     3,330,389,768       346,199,632           5,123,426,398        
Trial production cost incurred - net -                      123,468,335          -                        123,468,335           
Transferred to operating fixed assets (849,791,533)       (3,641,262,544)      (148,540,519)          (4,639,594,596)      
Balance as at June 30, 2023 1,659,075,856     2,506,502,348       204,496,513           4,370,074,717        

2023 2022
7 INTANGIBLE ASSETS Note 

As  at July 1
Cost 7.1 99,973,357            98,973,357             
Accumulated amortization (93,977,917)           (65,242,574)            

Amortisation charge Opening net book value 5,995,440              33,730,783             
Addition for the year -                        1,000,000               
Amortization charge for the year (3,768,733)             (28,735,343)            
Closing net book value 2,226,707              5,995,440               

As at June 30
Cost 99,973,357            99,973,357             
Accumulated amortization (97,746,650)           (93,977,917)            
Closing net book value 2,226,707              5,995,440               
Amortization rate 33.33% 33.33%

7.1
2023 2022

7.2 The amortization charge has been allocated as follows: Note 

Cost of sales 30 -                        12,631,650             
Selling and distribution expenses 31 -                        6,974,312               
Administrative expenses 32 3,768,733              9,129,381               

3,768,733              28,735,343             

8 LONG TERM INVESTMENTS
Investment in subsidiary companies - unquoted shares
Hudson Pharma (Private) Limited 8.1 2,525,984,000       2,125,984,000         
Ismail Resin (Private) Limited 8.2 3,000,000,000       1,875,000,000         

5,525,984,000       4,000,984,000         
Investment in associated company
The Bank of Khyber 8.3 3,225,156,930        3,144,584,786         

8,751,140,930        7,145,568,786         

8.1 Hudson Pharma (Private) Limited

Balance as at July 1 2,125,984,000        1,605,984,000         
Increase during the year 400,000,000          520,000,000            
Balance as at June 30 2,525,984,000       2,125,984,000         

------------------------------Rupees------------------------------

------------Rupees---------

Civil works Plant and 
machinery

Equipment 
and fittings Total

------------Rupees---------

Software includes licenses which are amortized on straight line basis over a period of 36 months.

------------Rupees---------
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2023 2022
8.2 Ismail Resin (Private) Limited

Balance as at July 1 1,875,000,000        491,737,500            
Increase during the year 1,125,000,000        1,383,262,500         
Balance as at June 30 3,000,000,000       1,875,000,000         

8.3 The Bank of Khyber

2023 2022
       -------------Rupees------------

Balance as at July 1          3,144,584,786          3,180,003,578 
           428,075,707             216,582,895 

(347,503,563)         (252,001,687)          
Balance as at June 30 3,225,156,930        3,144,584,786         

Summarized financial information in respect of the Company’s associate as at June 30 is set out below:

2023 2022
Un-audited Un-audited

-----------------Rupees-----------------

      345,762,514,000       394,240,287,000 

     328,873,320,000       377,685,898,000 

         9,601,237,000           7,065,905,000 

         1,752,436,000              886,632,000 

        (1,422,620,719)          (1,029,987,000)

Total comprehensive income / (loss) for the period             329,815,281            (143,355,000)

2023 2022
9 LONG TERM DEPOSITS        -------------Rupees------------

Utility companies 13,228,520             13,228,520             
Others 13,085,745             10,322,048             

26,314,265             23,550,568             

The Bank of Khyber

The Company has acquired 252,598,400 (2022: 212,598,400) shares of Hudson Pharma (Private) Limited (HPPL), which is
equivalent to 78.53% (2022: 78.26%) of the total paid up capital. HPPL is incorporated under Companies Act, 2017 as a private
company limited by shares. The registered office of HPPL is located at 17 Bangalore town, main Shahrah-e-Faisal Karachi. Principal
activities of HPPL are manufacturing, processing, compounding, formulating, importing, exporting, packaging, marketing, wholesale
and retail, trading and selling of all kinds of pharmaceutical drugs, medicines and derma products. The shares of subsidiary are not
publicly listed on a stock exchange and hence published price quotes are not available. The financial reporting date of HPPL is June
30.

Based on the projections of the Subsidiary Company there is no indicator of any impairment in value of investment. 

------------Rupees---------

The Company has acquired 300,000,000 (June 2022: 187,500,000) shares of Ismail Resin (Private) Limited (IRPL), which is
equivalent to 75% (June 2022: 75%) of total paid up capital of the IRPL. The IRPL was incorporated in Karachi, Pakistan as a
private limited company. The registered office of the IRPL is situated at 17 - Bangalore Town, main Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi,
Pakistan. Principal activities of the IRPL are manufacturing and selling of Polyester Resin. The shares of IRPL are not publicly listed
on stock exchange, hence published price quotes are not available. The financial reporting date of IRPL is June 30.

Based on the projections of the Subsidiary Company there is no indicator of any impairment in value of investment. 

The total shareholding of the Company in the Bank of Khyber (the Bank) is 269,383,781 (June 2022: 269,383,781) shares which
represents 24.43% of paid-up capital of the Bank (June 2022: 24.43%). In addition to this, the Company also has representation on
the board of directors of the Bank.  The Bank concludes its annual financial results on December 31 as required by the State Bank of 
Pakistan for financial institutions. Amounts in these unconsolidated financial statements have been taken from audited financial
statements of the Bank for the year ended December 31, 2022 and unaudited interim financial statement for the six months period
ended June 30, 2023. Adjustment to confirm to the Bank's accounting policies is not warranted as the Bank is not engaged in like
transaction under similar circumstances.
The market value of holding in the Bank as at June 30, 2023 was Rs. 3,633.98 million (June 30, 2022: Rs. 4,040.756 million), which is
placed in level 1 of the fair value hierarchy.

Share of profit
Share of other comprehensive loss

The Bank of Khyber

Total assets

Total liabilities

Revenue

Profit for the period

Other comprehensive loss for the period
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2023 2022
10 STORES AND SPARES        -------------Rupees------------

Stores 113,581,104            111,835,789            
Spare parts 482,392,061           373,491,888            
Others 32,651,713             23,770,352             

628,624,878          509,098,029            

10.1
2023 2022

11 STOCK-IN-TRADE Note        -------------Rupees------------

Raw material 11.2 & 11.3 9,788,455,953       4,073,577,604         
Packing material 11.2 2,229,628,657       1,393,150,814         
Work-in-process 30 640,053,565          414,667,383            
Finished goods 11.2 3,226,783,842       2,456,461,988         

15,884,922,017      8,337,857,789         

11.1 Stock-in-trade of the Company is under hypothecation charge against short term finances as mentioned in note no. 26.

11.2 Reconciliation for stock-in-trade
Raw 

material
 Packing 
material 

 Finished 
goods 

Stock-in-trade 9,880,218,628       2,342,892,734       3,226,783,842        
Provision for slow moving

 - opening (47,738,834)           (127,297,185)          -                         
 - charge (103,654,713)         (104,961,339)          -                         
 - Write-off 59,630,872            118,994,447           -                         
 - closing (91,762,675)           (113,264,077)          -                         

Stock-in-trade-net 9,788,455,953       2,229,628,657       3,226,783,842        

Raw 
materials

 Packing 
materials 

 Finished 
goods 

Stock-in-trade 4,121,316,438        1,520,447,999         2,456,461,988         
Provision for slow moving

 - opening (13,576,856)            (152,848,549)          -                         
 - charge for the year (57,425,947)            (34,666,750)            -                         
 - Write-off 23,263,969             60,218,114             -                         
 - closing (47,738,834)            (127,297,185)          -                         

Stock-in-trade-net 4,073,577,604        1,393,150,814         2,456,461,988         

11.3 This includes raw material in transit amounting to Rs. 1,945,268,243 (June 30, 2022: Rs. nil).
2023 2022

12 TRADE DEBTS Note

Considered good
 - export - secured         5,805,638,355          1,430,204,301 
 - local - unsecured         4,857,344,865          4,423,853,717 

       10,662,983,220          5,854,058,018 

Allowance for expected credit loss 12.2           (158,464,042)            (107,970,640)
 Trade debts - net 10,504,519,178      5,746,087,378         

12.1 Trade debts of the Company is under hypothecation charge against short term finances as mentioned in note no. 26.

2023 2022
12.2 Allowance for expected credit loss Note

Balance at the beginning of the year           (107,970,640)            (100,970,640)
Charge during the year 31            (50,493,402)               (7,000,000)
Balance at the end of the year (158,464,042)         (107,970,640)          

----------------------- Rupees --------------------

This includes provision for slow moving amounting to Rs 8,591,420 (June 2022: Rs 8,591,420 )

2023

2022

----------------------- Rupees --------------------

------------Rupees---------

------------Rupees---------

In September 2014, the Federal Government promulgated Gas Infrastructure Development Cess (GIDC) Ordinance No.
VI of 2014 to circumvent earlier decision of the Supreme Court on the subject, where it had up held that the earlier
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2023 2022
12.3 Age analysis of trade debts Note

Not Due 9,377,984,075       5,239,963,864         
More than 45 days but not more than 3 months 542,862,019                       247,431,639 
More than 3 months but not more than 6 months 398,539,140                       147,754,398 
More than 6 months but not more than 1 year 235,981,637                       134,999,001 
More than 1 year 107,616,349           83,909,116             

10,662,983,220      5,854,058,018         

13 LOANS AND ADVANCES
Loans - secured - employees 13.1 99,845,955            58,525,902             
Advances - unsecured

suppliers-   suppliers 2,852,094,901        1,849,628,605         
-   LC margins 13.2 265,496,495          55,190,647             

3,217,437,351        1,963,345,154         
13.1

2023 2022
Note

13.2              63,748,128               38,165,941 
            181,457,668               11,239,764 
               8,127,380                 4,068,500 
                           -                   1,716,442 
              12,163,319                            -   
           265,496,495               55,190,647 

14 TRADE DEPOSITS AND SHORT TERM PREPAYMENTS

Trade deposits - unsecured 286,277,691           24,043,579             
Short term prepayments 551,840                 10,611,041             
Current maturity of lease deposits- Islamic -                        2,221,600               
Current maturity of lease deposits- Conventional -                        436,100                  

286,829,531           37,312,320             

15 SHORT TERM INVESTMENTS

Held at:
Amortised cost 15.1 316,812,927           775,120,059            
Fair value through other comprehensive income 15.2 834,465,000          190,000,000            

1,151,277,927        965,120,059            
15.1
15.2

2023 2022
16 OTHER RECEIVABLES Note

Export rebate 36,605,266            17,338,462             
Sales tax carry forward 1,092,963,220        -                         
Other receivables 16.1 100,402,027           100,402,029            

1,229,970,513        117,740,491            

16.1

2023 2022
17 TAXATION - net Note

Advance income tax          2,221,515,513          1,954,656,680 
Provision for taxation 37        (1,217,684,448)            (831,971,541)

         1,003,831,065          1,122,685,139 

Meezan Bank Limited 

------------Rupees---------

These represents intrest free loan that are to be paid within a period of one year in equal monthly installments as per policy. Any
outstanding laon due from an employee at the time of leaving the service is adjustable against the final settlement of staff.

------------Rupees---------
Allied Bank Limited 
Habib Bank Limited 

Dubai Islamic Bank Pakistan
Soneri Bank Limited 

These investments are made in trade deposit reciepts of various banks at the rates range from 13% to 18% (June 2022: 9% to 
These investments are made in term finance certificates in various banks, which have been listed on Pakistan stock exchange. The
fair value of these certificates range from 95.33% to 99.38% of their face value (June 2022: 95%).

------------Rupees---------

This amount includes Rs. 100.217 million (June 2022; Rs. 100.217 million) due from Nazir of the Sindh High Court as referred in 
note 27.1.2.

------------Rupees---------
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2023 2022
18 CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Cash in hand 5,723,588              4,583,253               
Cash at banks:

current accounts - conventional- current accounts - conventional 1,123,432,695        87,507,426             
current accounts - Islamic- current accounts - Islamic 401,061,764           150,242,421            

1,530,218,047        242,333,100            

19 ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP SHARE CAPITAL

 2023 2022

53,072,940   53,072,940 530,729,400          530,729,400            

13,284,000   13,284,000 132,840,000           132,840,000            

66,356,940   66,356,940 663,569,400          663,569,400            

20 RESERVES Note

Capital reserve
 - Share premium 20.1          1,472,531,500          1,472,531,500 
 - Reserve arising due to amalgamation 20.2             916,862,067             916,862,067 
Revenue Reserve
 - Remeasurement of investment in associate           (701,503,895)            (406,125,879)
 - Unrealized loss on remeasurement of investment
    classified as fair value through OCI - net of tax             (11,962,300)               (7,645,000)

 - Unappropriated profit        15,376,236,485          9,940,389,165 

Total reserves        17,052,163,857        11,916,011,853 

20.1

20.2

20.3

Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid in cash 

------------Rupees---------

Number of Shares

Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each issued as fully paid for
consideration other than cash under scheme of arrangement
for amalgamation

This represents share premium amount pertains to issue of shares at premium. This reserve can be utilized by the Company for the
purpose specified in section 81(2) of the Companies Act, 2017.

This represents reserve created under scheme of arrangement for amalgamation of an Astro Plastics (Private) Limited with the 

Movement of the total reserves have been reflected in the unconsolidated statement of changes in equity.
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21 LONG TERM FINANCES - secured Note --------- Rupees ---------

Long term finances - secured - conventional 21.1            17,218,177,780       12,717,909,568 
Long term finances - secured - islamic 21.2             5,973,953,620         6,971,383,106 

23,192,131,400          19,689,292,674      

21.1 CONVENTIONAL
Installments Repayment Mark-up Number of 2023 2022

 mode period (Rate) Installments --------- Rupees ---------
Habib Bank Limited

- Term Finance - 
    FCY Monthly 2021-2024

1 month 
EURIBOR + 

1.75%
36 37,536,947                385,011,855          

- SBP-LTFF Quarterly 2018-2030 SBP + 0.25% 36 258,425,301              313,616,859          

- Term finance Monthly 2017-2023
1 month 

KIBOR + 
0.25%

60 -                           83,333,341            

- SBP-LTFF Quarterly 2021-2030 SBP + 0.25% 34 1,202,042,649           1,370,077,235        

- SBP-TERF Quarterly 2022-2031 SBP + 1.25% 36 207,817,224              234,533,253          

- Term finance Quarterly 2025-2033
3 month 

KIBOR + 
1.25%

32 98,279,764                -                        

- Term finance Monthly 2024-2028
1 month 

KIBOR + 
0.75%

48 1,130,505,670           -                        

Bank Al-Habib Limited

- SBP-LTFF Quarterly 2019-2029 SBP + 0.75% 32 239,118,000              289,118,690          

- SBP-LTFF Quarterly 2020-2029 SBP + 0.50% 32 37,415,000                44,503,000            

MCB Bank Limited 

- SBP-LTFF Quarterly 2018-2028 SBP + 0.75%SBP + 0.75% 36 169,457,553              207,422,020          

- SBP-LTFF Quarterly 2020-2030 SBP + 0.25%SBP + 0.25% 36 352,335,158              406,545,634          

- SBP-TERF Quarterly 2024-2031 SBP + 1% 32 377,849,792              258,840,000          

- Term finance Monthly 2024-2029
3 months 
KIBOR + 

0.80%
60 1,000,000,000           -                        

Allied Bank Limited

- SBP-LTFF Semi-annual 2022-2031 3 months KIBOR + 0.25%
SBP 

+0.25%/0.75
%

18 1,457,858,000           1,652,227,500        

- Term finance Monthly 2021-2024 3 months KIBOR + 0.25%
3 months 
KIBOR + 

0.25%
48 100,000,012              200,000,001          

Balance carried forward 6,668,641,070           5,445,229,388        

Financier / 
Facility type

146



Installments Repayment Mark-up Number of 2023 2022
 mode period (Rate) Installments --------- Rupees ---------

Balance brought forward 6,668,641,070           5,445,229,388        

- Term finance Quarterly 2024-2027 3 months KIBOR + 0.25%3 months 
KIBOR + 1% 16 245,000,000              245,000,000          

Pak Brunei Investment Company Limited

- SBP-LTFF Quarterly 2020-2029 SBP + 0.5% 32 367,994,300              430,499,000          

- SBP-LTFF Quarterly 2021-2030 SBP + 0.5% 32                151,434,800 175,436,900          

Pak Oman Investment Company Limited

- SBP-LTFF Quarterly 2022-2030 SBP + 1.5% 32                363,770,621 418,205,342          

- SBP-LTFF Quarterly 2025-2032 SBP + 1.5% 32                286,519,000 264,884,000          

Bank Al falah Limited

- Term finance Quarterly 2022-2025
6 month 

KIBOR + 
0.75%

16                250,000,000 375,000,000          

- Term finance Quarterly 2023-2026
3 month 

KIBOR + 
0.75%

16                450,000,000 600,000,000          

- SBP-LTFF Quarterly 2017-2029 SBP+0.5% 40/36                241,381,235 291,512,404          

- SBP-REFF Quarterly 2025-2035 SBP+0.5% 40                199,927,000 -                        

-SBP Payroll 
finance Quarterly 2021-2023 SBP+3% 8                               -   161,966,566          

- SBP-LTFF Quarterly 2022-2030 SBP+0.30% 32                101,374,217 117,594,093          

- SBP-LTFF Quarterly 2025-2033 SBP+1.50% 32                400,845,950 -                        

- SBP-TERF Semi Annual 2024-2031 SBP+1.50% 16 1,097,677,000           1,079,177,000        

- SBP-TERF Quarterly 2023-2031 SBP + 1.25% 32 1,495,913,586           1,499,997,368        

- Term finance Monthly 2022-2027
1 month 

KIBOR + 
0.75%

60 391,666,671              491,666,667          

Balance carried forward 12,712,145,450          11,596,168,728      

Financier / 
Facility type

JS Bank Limited

Habib Metropolitan Bank Ltd

The Bank of Punjab
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Installments Repayment Mark-up Number of 2023 2022
 mode period (Rate) Installments --------- Rupees ---------

Balance brought forward 12,712,145,450          11,596,168,728      

- Term finance Monthly 2019-2023
1 month 

KIBOR + 
0.25%

48 -                           100,000,011          

- SBP-LTFF Quarterly 2021-2030 SBP+0.65% 36 747,434,248              858,921,136          

- SBP-TERF Quarterly 2022-2031 SBP+1% 36 422,987,081              467,668,749          

- SBP-FFSAP Quarterly 2023-2030 SBP+0.75% 28 129,734,000              139,714,000          

Askari Bank Limited

- SBP-REFF Quarterly 2021-2031 SBP+0.50% 40 167,001,575              190,036,275          

- Term finance Monthly 2019-2024
1 month 

KIBOR + 
0.50%

48 91,666,679                191,666,675          

-SBP Payroll 
finance Quarterly 2021-2023 SBP+1.5% 8 -                           243,000,845          

- Term finance Monthly 2023-2027
1 month 

KIBOR + 
0.75%

48 437,499,998              500,000,000          

- Syndicated Term 
Finance Monthly 2024-2029

1 month 
KIBOR + 

0.80%
60 4,250,000,000           -                        

Soneri Bank Limited

- Term finance Monthly 2019-2025
1 month 

KIBOR + 
0.75%

60 191,666,679              291,666,675          

- Term finance Monthly 2023-2028
1 month 

KIBOR + 
0.75%

60 441,666,669              500,000,000          

PAIR Investment Company Limited

- Term finance Quarterly 2021-2025
3 month 

KIBOR + 
0.75%

16 131,250,000              206,250,000          

- SBP-REFF Quarterly 2023-2033 SBP+0.50% 40 199,519,941               130,568,973          
- SBP-LTFF Quarterly 2025-2033 SBP+1.50% 32 23,500,000                -                        

Total long term loan - secured           19,946,072,320       15,415,662,067 
Less: Current portion of long term finances shown under

 current liabilities (2,727,894,540)         (2,697,752,499)       
           17,218,177,780       12,717,909,568 

21.2 ISLAMIC
Installments Repayment Mark-up Number of

 mode period (Rate) Installments
MCB Islamic Bank Limited

- Islamic financing Quarterly 2018-2023
3 months 
KIBOR + 

0.25%
20 -                           70,000,000            

- SBP ITERF Quarterly 2023-2030 SBP+0.75% 32 349,986,000              349,987,639          

- Islamic financing Quarterly 2023-2028
3 months 
KIBOR + 

0.75%
20 270,000,000              300,000,000          

Balance carried forward 619,986,000              719,987,639          

Financier / 
Facility type

National Bank of Pakistan

Financier / 
Facility type
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Installments Repayment Mark-up Number of 2023 2022
 mode period (Rate) Installments --------- Rupees ---------

Balance brought forward 619,986,000              719,987,639          

- SBP ILTFF Quarterly 2022-2027 SBP+1% 20 189,166,035                         247,455,881 

- SBP ILTFF Quarterly 2024-2030 SBP+1% 20 412,638,448                         270,475,059 

- Islamic financing Monthly 2023-2029
1 months 
KIBOR + 

0.75%
78 -                                      600,000,000 

- Islamic financing Monthly 2022-2025
1 months 
KIBOR + 

0.75%
48 -                                      687,500,005 

- Islamic financing Monthly 2022-2025
1 months 
KIBOR + 

0.75%
48 -                                      308,333,337 

- Islamic financing Monthly 2024-2030
1 months 
KIBOR + 

0.85%
72 600,000,000                                        -   

- Islamic financing Monthly 2024-2026 1 month 
KIBOR + 1% 24 562,500,007                                        -   

- Islamic financing Monthly 2024-2025
1 month 

KIBOR + 
0.85%

18 258,333,339                                        -   

- Islamic financing Monthly 2020-2023
3 month 

KIBOR + 
0.25%

24 -                                        62,500,007 

- Syndicated Monthly 2024-2028
3 month 

KIBOR + 
0.80%

60 4,000,000,000                   4,000,000,000 

- SBP-ILTFF Quarterly 2021-2030 SBP+1% 36 224,827,504                         258,135,278 

- Islamic financing Quarterly 2023-2028
3 month 

KIBOR + 
0.65%

20 475,000,000                         500,000,000 

Total long term loan - secured 7,342,451,333           7,654,387,206        
Less: Current portion of long term finances shown under 

current liabilities (1,368,497,713)          (683,004,100)         
5,973,953,620           6,971,383,106        

21.3

21.4 The Company's total limit for long term loan amounting to Rs. 34,187 million. (June 2022: Rs. 29,310 million)

2023 2022
22 LEASE LIABILITIES

22.1 As at July 1                    7,487,019              62,166,882 
                     274,423               3,321,861 
                 (7,761,442)            (58,001,724)

As at June 30                               -                 7,487,019 
Payment (lease and interest)

Financier / 
Facility type

Dubai Islamic Bank Pakistan Limited

Meezan Bank Limited

Faysal Bank Limited

Bank Islami Pakistan Limited 

These represent financings for property, plant and equipment. The above mentioned facilities are secured by way of
creation of equitable mortgage and first pari-passu / ranking charge over present and future fixed assets of the Company
and personal guarantees of sponsors.

------------Rupees---------

Interest Expense relating to lease liabilities
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2023 2022
Note --------- Rupees ---------

23 DEFERRED LIABILITIES

Provision for staff gratuity scheme - unfunded 23.1 696,630,495          565,497,677           
Deferred tax liability 23.3 1,777,653,106        1,793,253,925        

2,474,283,601        2,358,751,602        

23.1 Provision for staff gratuity scheme - unfunded

23.1.1 Risk on account of staff gratuity scheme - unfunded

23.1.2 Final salary risk (linked to inflation risk)  

23.1.3 Mortality risk

23.1.4 Withdrawal risk

23.2 Significant actuarial assumptions 2023 2022

Financial assumptions

Discount rate (per annum) 16.25% 13.25%
Expected rate of increase in salaries (per annum) 16.25% 13.25%

Demographic assumptions
Mortality rates (for death in service)

Retirement assumption 60 years 60 years

23.2.1 Statement of Financial Position reconciliation Note --------- Rupees ---------

Present value of defined benefit obligation 23.2.3 696,630,495          565,497,677           
Net liability in statement of financial position 23.2.4 696,630,495          565,497,677           

23.2.2 Maturity profile 

1-5 Years 524,153,414           403,572,578           
6-10 Years 929,808,926          561,634,802           
10 Years onwards 24,836,247,794      11,015,391,507       
Weighted average duration 8 Years 8 Years 

2023 2022
23.2.3 Movement in the defined benefit obligation Note --------- Rupees ---------

Present value of defined benefit obligation as at July 1 565,497,677          447,306,385           
Current service cost 108,135,073           83,902,911             
Past service cost -                        2,899,021               
Interest cost 70,360,341            42,050,262             
Remeasurement on obligation 23.2.7 21,589,876            42,946,633             
Payments during the year (59,441,980)           (43,948,262)            
Benefits payable transferred to short term liability (9,510,492)             (9,659,273)              
Present value of defined benefit obligation as at June 30 696,630,495          565,497,677           

Adjusted
SLIC 2001-2005

Adjusted
SLIC 2001-2005

In accordance with the requirements of IAS-19 “Employee Benefits”, actuarial valuation was carried out as at June 30,
2023 using the “Projected Unit Credit Method”. Provision has been made in these unconsolidated financial statements to 
cover obligations in accordance with the actuarial recommendations. Details of significant assumptions used for the
valuation and disclosures in respect of above-mentioned schemes are as follows:

The Company faces the following risk on account of staff gratuity scheme.

The risk that the final salary at the time of cessation of service is greater than what we assumed. Since the benefit is
calculated on the final salary (which will closely reflect inflation and other macroeconomic factors), the benefit amount
increases as salary increases.

The risk that the actual mortality experience is different than the assumed mortality. This effect is more pronounced in
schemes where the age and service distribution is on the higher side.

The risk of actual withdrawals experience is different from assumed withdrawal probability. The significance of the
withdrawal risk varies with the age, service and the entitled benefits of the beneficiary.
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23.2.4 Movement in the net liability at reporting 2023 2022
date is as follows: Note --------- Rupees ---------

Opening balance of net liability 565,497,677          447,306,385           
Charge for the year 23.2.5 178,495,414           128,852,194           
Remeasurements recognized in 'OCI' 23.2.7 21,589,876            42,946,633             
Payments during the year (59,441,980)           (43,948,262)            
Benefits payable transferred to short term liability (9,510,492)             (9,659,273)              
Closing balance of net liability 696,630,495          565,497,677           

23.2.5

Current service cost 108,135,073           83,902,911             
Past service cost -                        2,899,021               
Interest cost 70,360,341            42,050,262             
Charge for the year 178,495,414           128,852,194           

23.2.6

2023 2022
23.2.7 Remeasurement recognized in 'other comprehensive income' --------- Rupees ---------

Experience losses  21,589,876            42,946,633             
Related deferred tax (4,749,773)             (10,113,932)            

16,840,103             32,832,701             
23.2.8 Amounts for the current and previous four years are as follows:

23.2.9 The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to changes in the weighted principal assumption is:

Discount rate 1%            645,099,032            755,713,540 
Salary growth rate 1% 756,658,644           643,323,199           

23.2.10

2023 2022
23.3 Deferred taxation --------- Rupees ---------

The details of deferred tax on temporary differences are as follows:
- accelerated tax depreciation allowances 1,871,225,378        1,866,214,417        
-  provision for gratuity (153,258,709)         (133,174,703)          
-  allowance for expected credit loss (34,862,090)           (25,427,086)            
-  investment in associates at fair value through OCI 143,326,392           131,240,570           
-  STI - Term finance certificates (1,781,868)             (2,355,000)              
-  provision for stores and spares (1,890,112)             (2,023,279)              
-  provision for stock in trade (45,105,885)           (41,220,994)            

Deferred tax liability 1,777,653,106        1,793,253,925        

The amounts recognized in the unconsolidated statement of profit
 or loss account against defined benefit scheme are as follows:

For the year ended June 30, 2024, expected provisions to the staff retirement benefit scheme is Rs. 248.518 million.

Impact on defined benefit obligation
 Change in 

assumptions 
 Increase in 
assumption 

 Decrease in 
assumption 

 --------------Rupees-------------- 

The above sensitivity analysis is based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions constant. In
practice, this is unlikely to occur, and changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated. When calculating the
sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to significant actuarial assumptions the same method (present value of the
defined benefit obligation calculated with the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period) has been
applied as when calculating the staff retirement gratuity recognized within the unconsolidated statement of financial
position.

Comparison for five years 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019

Present value of the defined 
benefit obligation 696,630,495  565,497,677 447,306,385 436,910,015 358,574,405 

------------------------------------------------------------Rupees---------------------------------------------------------

151



23.3.1 The movement in temporary differences is as follows:

2023 2022
24 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES Note --------- Rupees ---------

Trade creditors 5,907,554,310        1,665,882,890        
Accrued liabilities 1,960,049,469        1,158,629,095        
Gratuity payable 24.1 9,510,492              9,659,273               
Workers' profit participation fund 24.2 333,060,046          165,092,738           
Workers' welfare fund 144,967,468           69,121,605             
Sales tax payable -                        392,242,715           
Other liabilities 13,870,460            14,231,176             

8,369,012,245        3,474,859,492        

24.1 This represents benefits payable transferred to short term liability (note 23.2.3).

2023 2022
24.2 Workers' profit participation fund Note --------- Rupees ---------

Balance at the beginning of the year 165,092,738           106,257,803           
Contribution for the year 33 381,493,334           181,898,959           
Interest on funds utilized in the Company’s business 35 2,208,112               4,285,279               

548,794,184           292,442,041           
Less: Payments made during the year (215,734,138)         (127,349,303)          
Balance at the end of the year 333,060,046          165,092,738           

25 ACCRUED MARK-UP

Accrued mark-up on:
Conventional

Conventional-long term finances- long term finances - secured 265,469,799          130,413,870           
Conventional-short term finances- short term finances - secured 687,556,038          165,059,977           

Islamic
Islamic-long term finances- long term finances - secured 111,352,976           65,046,890             
Islamic-short term finances- short term finances - secured 27,219,938            13,812,511             

1,091,598,751        374,333,248           

26 SHORT TERM FINANCES - secured

From banking companies
Term finances - conventional 26.1 1,649,997,917        530,000,000           
Term finances - islamic 26.2 452,236,440          286,170,800           
Export refinances 26.3 7,565,500,000       6,215,496,502        
Finance against discounting of export bills / receivables 26.4 -                        899,016,236           

Running financeRunning finance utilized under 
mark-up arrangements 26.5 5,440,548,535       1,158,075,382        

15,108,282,892      9,088,758,920        

Provision for gratuity (112,900,132)   (10,160,639)  (10,113,932)        (133,174,703)   (15,334,233)  (4,749,773)        (153,258,709)   
Allowance for expected credit loss (25,484,990)     57,904          -                    (25,427,086)     (9,435,004)    -                   (34,862,090)     
Investment in associates at fair value through OCI 136,553,389    32,487,434    (37,800,253)        131,240,570    64,211,356    (52,125,534)      143,326,392    
Provision for stores & spares (2,168,474)      145,195        -                    (2,023,279)      133,167        -                   (1,890,112)       
Provision for stock in trade (42,005,772)     784,778        -                    (41,220,994)     (3,884,891)    -                   (45,105,885)     
Accelerated tax depreciation allowances 1,891,286,053 (25,071,636)  -                    1,866,214,417 5,010,961      -                   1,871,225,378  

Term Finance Certificates-Habib Bank Limited (1,302,384)      -               (1,052,616)          (2,355,000)      1,790,832     (1,217,698)        (1,781,866)       

1,843,977,690 (1,756,964)    (48,966,801)        1,793,253,925 42,492,188    (58,093,005)      1,777,653,106  

Balance as at
June 30, 2022

-----------------------------------------------------------------------Rupees----------------------------------------------------------------------

Recognized 
in

Statement of 
profit or loss

Recognized in 
statement of 

other
comprehensive 

income

Balance as at 
June 30, 2023

Recognized in
other 

comprehensive 
income

Balance as at 
July 1, 2021

Recognized in
Statement of 
profit or loss
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26.1

26.2

26.3

26.4

26.5

27 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

27.1 Contingencies

27.1.1

27.1.2

These represent facilities for term finances arranged from various banks aggregating to Rs. 6,365 million (June 2022: Rs.
1,565 million). These are secured against pari-passu / ranking hypothecation charge over stocks and book debts of the
Company along with the personal guarantees of the directors. These carry mark-up at the rates ranging from 16.20% to
22.20% per annum (June 2022: 7.18% to 15% per annum).

These represent facilities for term finances arranged from various banks aggregating to Rs. 800 million (June 2022: Rs.
800 million). These are secured against pari-passu / ranking hypothecation charge over stocks and book debts of the
Company along with the personal guarantees of the directors. These carry mark-up at the rates ranging from 12.64% to 
22.27% per annum (June 2022:  8.70% to 13.94% per annum).

These represent facilities for export refinance arranged from various banks aggregating to Rs. 7,665 million (June 2022:
Rs. 6,265 million). These were secured against pari-passu / ranking hypothecation charge of stocks, book debts and lien
on export letters of credits of the Company along with the personal guarantees of the directors. These carried mark-up at
the rate ranging from 0.25% to 1% above the State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) rate per annum (June 2022: 0.25% to 1%
above SBP rate per annum).

These represent facilities for finances against discounting of export bills / receivable arranged from various banks
aggregating to Rs 1,400 million (June 2022: Rs 900 million). These are secured against pari-passu/ranking hypothecation
charge of stocks, book debts and lien on export letters of credits of the Company along with the personal guarantees of
the directors. These carried mark-up at the rate 1% above the State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) rate per annum (June 2022:
1% above SBP rate per annum).
These represent facilities for running finances available from various banks aggregated to Rs. 9,155 million (June 2022:
Rs. 4,355 million). These are secured against pari-passu/ ranking hypothecation charge of stocks and book debts and
personal guarantees of the directors. These carry mark-up at the rates ranging from 14.50% to 22.98% per annum (June
2022: 7.61% to 14.81% per annum).

The Ministry of Industries has declared the BOPET film manufacturing project of the Company as Pioneer Industry due
to which import of capital goods shall be duty free. The Company approached the Board of Investment (BOI) for the
permission of imports who entertained the request and was in the process of evaluating the permission of import vide
SRO 41(I)/2009. In the meantime, the Company imported some capital goods and as per section 81 of the Customs
Act, 1969, issued post-dated cheques in favour of Collector of Custom amounting to Rs. 557.403 million (2022: Rs.
557.403 million) for provisional clearance of goods. However, due to delay on the part of Federal Board of Revenue, the
formal SRO to endorse the decision of Ministry of Industries is still awaited. The Company had filed the subject
Constitutional Petition in the High Court of Sindh vide D-2666 on May 13, 2015 to refrain FBR and Pakistan Customs
to encash the securities submitted against the provisional release of the plant and machineries, and also to issue formal
notification to endorse the earlier decision of the Ministry of Industries dated August 15, 2012. The High Court has
passed interim order dated May 13, 2015, in favour of the Company which is still operative and last hearing was held on
September 04, 2023. The management of the Company is confident that exemption shall be granted on duties related to
import of capital goods against BOPET project retrospectively based on legal counsel’s opinion. 

The Company had filed Constitutional Petition 620-K of 2015 on November 27, 2015 against Federation of Pakistan,
Federal Board of Revenue and Collectorate of Custom in the Supreme Court of Pakistan against the operation of SRO
170(I)/2013 dated March 04, 2013 which required 8% duty on import of Poly Ethylene Terephthalate (PET Resin). In
this connection the High Court vide order dated March 12, 2013 directed those custom duties at the rate of 3% to be
paid by the Company to custom authorities and insofar as differential amount is concerned, 2.5% shall be deposited in
cash and 2.5% shall be paid through post-dated cheques to the Nazir of the High Court. In this connection, the
Company had deposited pay orders amounting to Rs. 100.217 million (2022: Rs. 100.217 million) and issued post-dated
cheques amounting to Rs. 100.217 million (2022: Rs. 100.217 million) in favour of Nazir of the High Court as directed.
Further, the Company had filed petition in the High Court of Sindh for rationalization of duty structure on PET Resin.
The main grievance of the Company was for classifying the Pet Resin (Film Grade) and Pet Resin (Yarn Grade) under
the same PCT Heading has already been redresses in Fiscal Budget (2015-16) and from 01st July 2015, the raw material
for BOPET film manufacturing i.e., PET Resin – Film Grade is being imported on the same rate as applicable to PET
Resin – Yarn Grade. However, the retrospective relief on the previous consignments had been regretted by the High
Court which was challenged in the Honorable Supreme Court of Pakistan. Supreme Court of Pakistan via its order
17621/22 dated September 30, 2022 had disposed off the case and Alternate Dispute Resolution Committee (ADRC)
has been formed the last meeting was held on dated August 08, 2023. The decision of ADRC is pending and the
Company's management and legal counsel believes that there is no immediate financial liability against the Company.
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27.1.3

27.1.4

27.1.5

27.1.6

27.1.7

The Company had filed sale tax reference no. A.823 of 2015 on August 28, 2015 with the High Court of Sindh upon the
dismissal of appeal filed by the Company before the Appellate Tribunal for tax year 2013 regarding sales tax audit. The
High Court has restrained the Commissioner Inland Revenue from initiating the proceeding on the basis of the order
passed by the Appellate Tribunal as well as operation of the Order / Judgement passed by the Tribunal has also been
suspended. In the year 2020, subject suit was withdrawn by the Company, to pursue the remedy available under section
134A of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 i.e., Alternative Dispute Resolution Committee which is still in process. The
Company's legal counsel is confident that the case will be decided in favour of the Company.

The Company has filed various Suits/Petitions in the High Court of Sindh against the Federation of Pakistan and others
against the orders of Commissioner (Inland Revenue) who refused to issue exemption certificates under section 148 of
the Income Tax Ordinance 2001 (the Ordinance) on 22 October, 2018, in order to avail the benefit of exemption from
advance tax at import stage on plant and machineries as per SRO 947 of 2008, and the Company would not pay any tax
on income from business under the ordinance on the basis of brought forward assessed losses available to the Company,
advance taxes deducted during the financial years and carried forward tax refunds from fiscal year 2015-16 and onwards.
The High Court had allowed the Company and ordered the concerned authorities to release the goods on furnishing of
bank guarantees with the Nazir of the High Court and the concerned collectorate against all consignments which were
released under similar grounds. The total quantum of bank guarantees involved in above suits / petitions was Rs. 606.4
million (June 2022: Rs 606.4 million). Currently, Bank guarantees of Rs.142.768 million (June 2022: Rs 119.562 million)
has been released by the Order of the Sindh High Court and Bank Guarantees of Rs. 463.632 million (June 2022: Rs
486.832 million) are held by the Collector of Customs. Few Suits / Petitions are still pending in the Sindh High Court.
The Company's legal counsel is of the opinion that Company has a good prima facie case and there will be no financial
liability on the Company.

During the fiscal year 2017, Federal Board of Revenue had issued a show cause notice (SCN) on the basis of scrutiny of
sales tax returns of various tax periods which revealed that the Company has claimed the input tax of Astro Plastics
(Private) Limited (APL) amounting to Rs. 477.804 million (June 2022: Rs. 477.804 million) in their sales tax returns. In
response to SCN, the Company has given the reference of the letter dated: October 2016 sent to the Federal Board of
Revenue in which it has categorically mentioned that the High Court of Sindh, at Karachi, has sanctioned the petition
no. J.Misc. 13/ 2016 for amalgamation by way of merger of APL and its members with and into Ismail Industries
Limited and its members and the Company has claimed the input sales tax on that basis. However, the Company has
filed Suit in the High Court of Sindh vide No.1539/2017 on June 13, 2017 and obtained the stay order from the Court.
In the year 2020, subject suit was withdrawn by the Company, to pursue the remedy available under section 134A of the
Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 i.e., Alternative Dispute Resolution Committee which is still in process. As per the legal
counsel, the Company has reasonable grounds to believe that it will not have to incur any financial liability.

The Company had filed the Constitutional Petition 2752/2011 on August 09, 2011 in the High Court of Sindh against
the Excise and Taxation Department in respect of infrastructure cess / fee being charged by the Government of Sindh
on Imports and prayed to declare that Sindh Finance (Amendment) Act, 2009 and / or rules made thereunder to be
unconstitutional, illegal, void ab initio, and of no legal effect. In all the five versions of the law i.e. Sindh Finance Act /
Ordinance, the incidence of tax arise upon ensuring of goods entering or leaving the province and such goods enter or
leave the country through air or sea. Furthermore, import and export are within the exclusive domain of the federal
legislature i.e. the Sindh legislature throughout lacked the jurisdiction to impose the levy. The imported goods were not
released by the custom authorities without paying the infrastructure cess / fee charged by the Government of Sindh.
Subsequently, the High Court ordered the custom authority to release the goods upon furnishing Bank Guarantee. In
2021, the case had been disposed off by the High Court in favour of Excise and Taxation Department. However, the
Company along with the industry has challenged the applicability of said order in Honorable Supreme of Pakistan
through case number 4978 of 2021 and the Court has granted the stay order on Sep 01, 2021 upon providing the fresh
bank guarantees equivalent to the amount already provided to the High Court, keeping the previously furnished bank
guarantees operative and enforceable against the release of all future consignments of imported goods and restrained the
authorities to take any coercive action against the Company. The total quantum of bank guarantees involved is Rs. 863
million (June 2022: Rs 518 million).

In September 2014, the Federal Government promulgated Gas Infrastructure Development Cess (GIDC) Ordinance No.
VI of 2014 to circumvent earlier decision of the Supreme Court on the subject, where it had up held that the earlier
introduction of GIDC Act 2011 was unconstitutional and ultra vires on the ground, amongst others, that GIDC was a
‘Fee’ and not a ‘Tax’ and the same suit was also filed against Federation of Pakistan, OGRA , SSGC and SNGPL in
different Honourable High Courts of Pakistan by Industry at Large. In May 2015, the Government passed the GIDC
Act, 2015 and the Company has challenged that GIDC Act 2015 and filed a writ petition in the High Court of Sindh
including retrospective treatment of the provisions of the GIDC Act, 2015. In October 2015, Sindh High Court (SHC)
decided this suit in favour of the Company. However, the Government filed an appeal in Honorable Supreme Court of
Pakistan, where the Company was not party to such litigation. The Honorable Supreme Court of Pakistan has disposed
off the case on 13 August, 2020 and instructed the gas distribution companies to recover the outstanding amount in 24
equal instalments only from those consumers who have already passed the burden of GIDC cost to their customers.
Based on the judgement of the Supreme Court, the Company has obtained the stay order from the High Court of Sindh
on 16th September, 2020 against the gas distribution companies for recovering of outstanding GIDC and disconnection
of gas supply. The last hearing of this case was held on January 10, 2022. The cumulative differential amount of GIDC
not yet recognised in these books amount to Rs 826 million (June 2022: Rs 826 million) (inclusive of Sales Tax). The
management and its legal counsel are of the view that there is no need to maintain any provision against this liability and
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27.1.8

27.1.9

27.1.10

26.1.11

2023 2022
--------- Rupees ---------

27.2 Commitments
27.2.1 Outstanding letters of guarantee 3,065,474,545       2,509,325,740        
27.2.2 Cross Corporate guarantees issued by the Company on behalf of

Subsidiary companies 4,838,811,644        4,163,811,644        
27.2.3 Outstanding letters of credit for:

-   capital expenditure 726,605,896          671,049,690           
-   raw material 5,585,776,940       1,529,969,416        

27.2.4

27.2.5
9,129,399,388        5,581,829,733        

10,570,628,182      22,334,098,319       

The Company has extended sponsors support agreement with the lenders of M/s. Ismail Resin (Private) Limited for
investment in the form of equity or subordinated debts to cover the cost over-run, or to cover the funding shortfall or
any other obligation that may arise under financing documentations / agreements executed with them.
The Company's share of commitments of associated companies.
- Guarantees
- Commitments

introduction of GIDC Act 2011 was unconstitutional and ultra vires on the ground, amongst others, that GIDC was a
‘Fee’ and not a ‘Tax’ and the same suit was also filed against Federation of Pakistan, OGRA , SSGC and SNGPL in
different Honourable High Courts of Pakistan by Industry at Large. In May 2015, the Government passed the GIDC
Act, 2015 and the Company has challenged that GIDC Act 2015 and filed a writ petition in the High Court of Sindh
including retrospective treatment of the provisions of the GIDC Act, 2015. In October 2015, Sindh High Court (SHC)
decided this suit in favour of the Company. However, the Government filed an appeal in Honorable Supreme Court of
Pakistan, where the Company was not party to such litigation. The Honorable Supreme Court of Pakistan has disposed
off the case on 13 August, 2020 and instructed the gas distribution companies to recover the outstanding amount in 24
equal instalments only from those consumers who have already passed the burden of GIDC cost to their customers.
Based on the judgement of the Supreme Court, the Company has obtained the stay order from the High Court of Sindh
on 16th September, 2020 against the gas distribution companies for recovering of outstanding GIDC and disconnection
of gas supply. The last hearing of this case was held on January 10, 2022. The cumulative differential amount of GIDC
not yet recognised in these books amount to Rs 826 million (June 2022: Rs 826 million) (inclusive of Sales Tax). The
management and its legal counsel are of the view that there is no need to maintain any provision against this liability and
has a good prima facie case.

Through Finance Act, 2019, the Government had reduced tax credit available on new investments under Section 65-B
from 10% to 5% in FY-2019 and Nil from onward. The Company has challenged the provision of Finance Act, 2019
before the High Court of Sindh on 19 December, 2019 against the Federation of Pakistan and obtained the interim relief
of claiming 10% tax credit on all investments already planned including its ancillary costs. The case was disposed off by
the Honourable High Court of Sindh during the year in favour of the Company which has been challenged by the
department in Honourable Supreme Court of Pakistan. The management and Company's legal council are confident that
the case will be decided in favour of the Company.

The Company had filed two petitions S-1803 & 1905 of 2020 before the High Court of Sindh and challenged the OGRA
notification bearing no. OGRA-(10)-3(8)/2020 dated October 23, 2020 for increase in the price of natural gas and
different prices for industrial and captive connection where the same is used for internal consumption by industrial
undertaking. The Court vide its order dated November 11, 2020 & December 03, 2020 passed an interim stay order in
favour of the Company and suspended the afore-mentioned notification by allowing to pay monthly gas charges as per
previous notification and directed the Company to pay the balance amount by way of bank guarantee or cheque in
favour of the Nazir of Court. The cumulative differential amount is approximately Rs 158.932 million (June 2022: Rs
114.012 million) (exclusive of sales tax) which has not been recorded in the statement of financial position. During the
year, the single bench of the High Court of Sindh disposed off the case against the Company and the Company has filed
another case with the Divisional Bench of the same court. The Divisional Bench has granted the stay order. The
management and its legal counsel are of the view that there is no need to maintain any provision against this liability and
has a good prima facie case.

During the year, the Board of Revenue (BOR) has issued a notice to the Company in accordance with section 73 of the
Stamp Act, 1899 for inspection of books of accounts and subsequently issued a demand notice of Rs. 297.907 million as
a stamp duty due against various contracts undertaken by the Company during the year 2021 and 2022. The Company
challenged the said demand notice and filed a Constitutional Petition D-8084 of 2022 on 26 December 2022 against
BOR in the Honorable High Court of Sindh (SHC) and cited that section 73 of the Stamp Act, 1899 allows the
representative of BOR to inspect documents available in public office only and inclusion of private office under the
definition of Public Office is ultra vires and against the principles of natural justice. SHC has granted stay order to the
Company against the impugned demand notice and restrained the BOR from taking any coercive action against the
plaintiff. The matter is still pending in the SHC. The management and its legal counsel are of the view that there is no
need to maintain any provision against this liability and has a good prima facie case.

With reference to the contingency in associated company, The Bank of Khyber (BOK), please refer the note 20 of
interim financial statement of June 30, 2023.
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2023 2022
33 OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES Note --------- Rupees ---------

Contribution to:
  -  workers' profits participation fund 381,493,334         181,898,959        
  -  workers' welfare fund 144,967,468         69,121,605          
Auditors' remuneration 33.1 5,500,000            4,854,650            
Donations 33.2 281,155,739         164,713,134        
Other 9,743,551            2,200,890            

822,860,092        422,789,238        

33.1 Auditor's remuneration

Audit fee - unconsolidated 3,000,000            2,700,000            
Audit fee - consolidated 900,000               800,000               
Fee for statutory certification 500,000               304,650               
Fee for half yearly review 600,000               600,000               
Out-of-pocket expense 500,000               450,000               

5,500,000            4,854,650            

33.2 Donation to the following organizations exceed 10% of total donation

- Shed Foundation -                      36,200,000          
- Dow University -                      25,488,500          
- Al Mustafa Welfare Trust 168,263,764         18,881,484          

168,263,764         80,569,984          

33.2.1

2023 2022
34 OTHER INCOME --------- Rupees ---------

Income from financial assets
Exchange gain 1,402,889,926      180,196,393        
Income from short term investments 174,115,265         51,031,115          
Income from non financial assets
Recovery from the sale of production scrap 217,805,602         131,009,386        
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment-net 55,173,717           347,703,394        
Processing income 107,496,556         37,093,010          
Others 37,949,627          15,820,393          

1,995,430,693      762,853,691        

None of the donations were made to any donee in which a director or his spouse had any interest at any time
during the year.
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2023 2022
35 FINANCE COST --------- Rupees ---------

Mark up on:
-  long term finances - conventional 974,657,713         405,006,360        
-  long term finances - islamic 1,223,875,850      309,673,057        
-  short term finances - conventional 1,326,504,715      484,331,457        
-  short term finances - islamic 639,159,148         90,563,836          

Interest on workers' profits participation fund 2,208,112             4,285,279            
Finance charge on lease liabilities 274,423               3,321,861            
Bank charges 232,763,768        116,807,937        

4,399,443,729     1,413,989,787     

36

36.1 The remuneration has been allocated as follows:

36.2 Bonus is given to employees as per the Company's policy.

REMUNERATION OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

In addition to the above, Company maintained cars are provided to the chief executive officer, director and
executives.

Chief Chief
executive executive

officer officer

Cost of goods sold -             -             306,734,537 -             -             251,760,379 
Selling and distribution expenses -             -             325,527,770 -             -             215,526,863 
Administrative expenses 18,300,000 15,650,000 195,906,063  17,416,663 14,766,667 156,688,206 

18,300,000 15,650,000 828,168,370  17,416,663 14,766,667 623,975,448 

Number of persons 1 1 150 1 1 134

------------------------------------------------Rupees------------------------------------------------

2023 2022

Director DirectorsExecutives Executives 

Chief Chief
executive executive

officer officer

Managerial remuneration 16,800,000 14,400,000 728,291,519  16,000,000 13,600,000 546,959,806 
Gratuity -             -             34,234,141    -             -             26,971,435   
Bonus -             -             34,234,141    -             -             26,971,435   
Leave encashment -             -             31,408,569    -             -             23,072,772   
Reimbursement of expenses

Utilities 1,500,000   1,250,000   -                1,416,663   1,166,667   -                
 18,300,000 15,650,000 828,168,370  17,416,663 14,766,667 623,975,448 

Number of persons 1 1 150 1 1 134

------------------------------------------------Rupees------------------------------------------------

2023 2022

Director Executives Directors Executives
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2023 2022
37 TAXATION --------- Rupees ---------

Current 1,217,684,448          831,971,541        
Prior year (110,379,624)            5,723,799            
Deferred 42,492,188               (1,756,964)           

1,149,797,012           835,938,376        

37.1 RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN TAX EXPENSES AND ACCOUNTING PROFIT

38 EARNINGS PER SHARE - Basic and diluted 2023 2022
Basic earnings per share --------- Rupees ---------

Profit for the year 6,381,684,583          2,551,020,228     

Number of shares

Weighted average number of shares outstanding as at year end 66,356,940               66,356,940          

Basic earnings per share 96.17 38.44

Diluted earnings per share

2023 2022
39 NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES --------Numbers ---------

Number of employees as at the year end 3,053 2,643

Average number of employees during the year 2,848 2,484

40 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS Note --------- Rupees ---------

Profit before taxation 7,531,481,595          3,386,958,604     

Adjustments for non-cash and other items: 

Depreciation and Amortisation 6.4 & 7 2,401,927,437          2,194,824,668     
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment-net 34 (55,173,717)              (347,703,394)       
Provision for staff gratuity scheme - unfunded 23.2.5 178,495,414             128,852,194        
Finance cost 35 4,399,443,729          1,413,989,787     
Share of profit from associated company - net 8.3 (428,075,707)           (216,582,895)       
Provision for slow moving - stock in trade 208,616,052             92,092,697          
Allowance for expected credit loss 50,493,402               7,000,000            
Unrealized exchange gain (25,977,542)             (54,746,794)         
Unrealized gain on short term investment (1,595,808)               -                      
Unrealized exchange (gain) / loss on borrowings (101,247,409)            68,266,320          

14,158,387,446         6,672,951,187     
Working capital changes

Increase in current assets

Stores and spares (119,526,849)            (49,586,744)         
Stock-in-trade (7,755,680,280)        (859,515,224)       
Trade debts (4,783,813,401)         (2,337,122,761)    
Loans and advances (1,254,092,197)         (434,249,018)       
Trade deposits and short term prepayments (249,517,211)            (6,731,054)           
Other receivables (1,112,230,022)         (95,948)               

(15,274,859,960)       (3,687,300,749)    
Increase / (Decrease)  in current liabilities 

Trade and other payables 4,895,167,275          (543,927,748)       
Advances from customers - unsecured 616,952,864             (190,585,560)       

5,512,120,139           (734,513,308)       
 Net decrease in working capital (9,762,739,821)         (4,421,814,057)    
 Cash generated from operations 4,395,647,625          2,251,137,130     

The numerical reconciliation between the average tax rate and the applicable tax rate has not been presented in these
financial statements as the total income of the company attracts minimum tax and FTR under income tax ordinance, 2001.

There is no dilutive potential ordinary shares outstanding as at June 30, 2023 & June 30, 2022.
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41 Reconciliation of movement of liabilities to cash flow arising from financing activities.

Long term 
finances Lease Liabilities Accrued mark-

up Total

--------------------------------- Rupees ---------------------------------

Balance as at July 01, 2022 23,070,049,273      7,487,019           374,333,248       23,451,869,540        

Proceeds from long term finance 7,484,311,025        -                    -                     7,484,311,025          
Payment of long term finance (3,164,589,236)      -                    -                     (3,164,589,236)        
Interest charged on finance lease -                        274,423             -                     274,423                   
Payment of liabilities subject to finance lease -                        (7,761,442)         -                     (7,761,442)               
Finance cost for the year other than finance lease -                        4,399,169,306     4,399,169,306          
Mark-up paid -                        (3,681,903,803)   (3,681,903,803)        
Foreign exchange gain (101,247,409)         -                    -                     (101,247,409)           
Balance as at June 30, 2023 27,288,523,653      -                    1,091,598,751     28,380,122,404        

Long term 
finances Lease Liabilities Accrued mark-

up Total

--------------------------------- Rupees ---------------------------------

Balance as at July 01, 2021 16,562,851,884       62,166,882         162,665,518        16,787,684,284        

Proceeds from long term finance 10,204,537,343       -                     -                      10,204,537,343        
Payment of long term finance (3,765,606,274)       -                     -                      (3,765,606,274)         
Interest charged on finance lease -                         3,321,861           -                      3,321,861                 
Payment of liabilities subject to finance lease -                         (58,001,724)        -                      (58,001,724)              
Finance cost for the year other than finance lease -                         -                     1,410,667,926     1,410,667,926          
Mark-up paid -                         -                     (1,199,000,196)    (1,199,000,196)         
Foreign exchange loss 68,266,320             -                     -                      68,266,320               

Balance as at June 30, 2022 23,070,049,273       7,487,019           374,333,248        23,451,869,540        
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2023 2022
42 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND Note

RELATED DISCLOSURES

42.1 Financial instruments by category

Financial assets
At amortized cost
Long term deposits 9 26,314,265               23,550,568                  
Trade debts 12 10,662,983,220         5,854,058,018             
Loans and advances 13 265,496,495             55,190,647                  
Trade deposits - unsecured 14 286,277,691              24,043,579                  
Other receivables 16 100,402,028              100,402,028                
Cash and bank balances 18 1,530,218,047           242,333,100                
Short term investments 15 316,812,927              775,120,059                
At fair value through OCI
Short term investments 15 834,465,000             190,000,000                
Total financial assets 14,022,969,672         7,264,697,999            

Financial liabilities

At amortized cost
Long term finances 21 27,288,523,653        23,070,049,273           
Lease liabilities -                           7,487,019                    
Trade and other payables 24 7,893,415,577           2,848,332,859             
Accrued mark-up 25 1,091,598,751           374,333,248                
Short term finances 26 15,108,282,892         9,088,758,920             
Unclaimed dividend 5,069,267                 4,044,553                    
Total financial liabilities 51,386,890,140         35,393,005,872           

42.2 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities

a) Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

- changes in market and trading activity (e.g. significant increases / decreases in activity)
- changes in inputs used in valuation techniques (e.g. inputs becoming / ceasing to be observable in the market)

--------- Rupees ---------

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction in the principal
(or most advantageous) market at the measurement date under current market conditions (i.e. an exit price) regardless of whether
that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique.

The Company classifies fair value measurements using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs used in
making the measurements. The fair value hierarchy has the:

b) Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly
(that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2).
c) Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs) (level 3).

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is based on market value of financial instrument at the reporting
date. A market is regarded as active when it is a market in which transactions for the asset or liability take place with sufficient
frequency and volume to provide pricing information on an ongoing basis.

The following table analysis within the fair value hierarchy of the Company’s financial assets (by class) measured at fair value at
June 30, 2023:

The Company recognizes transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period during which the
transfer has occurred.

The Company’s policy for determining when transfers between levels in the hierarchy have occurred includes monitoring of the
following factors:

There are few transfers of level 3 short term investment to level 1 as it become listed during the year.
The valuation techniques used are as follows:
Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
Level 2: Non active markets The fair value of financial instruments of non active market is based on inputs available in the 
market.
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Financial assets Level 1 Level 3 Total

         834,465,000                             -                                 -   

                            -                                 -   

                834,465,000 

Level 1 Level 3 Total

         190,000,000                 190,000,000 
42.3 Financial risk management

 - Credit risk
 - Liquidity risk
 - Market risk

42.3.1 Credit risk

Trade debts

Bank balances

The bank balances along with the credit ratings are tabulated below:
2023 2022

Allied Bank Limited A1+                121,466,071                     7,459,040 
Bank Al Falah Limited A1+                  21,093,712                     1,098,845 
Bank Al Habib Limited A1+                 20,544,213                   18,906,767 
Bank Islami Pakistan Limited A1               282,855,292                 100,324,791 
Dubai Islamic Bank Pakistan Limited A1+                 23,062,537                     7,784,172 
Habib Bank Limited A1+               471,725,894                        862,399 
Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited A1+                 68,656,854                   29,288,223 
JS Bank Limited A1+                149,319,867                   20,033,717 
MCB Bank Limited A1+                 52,246,194                        316,392 
MCB Islamic Bank Limited A1                  51,586,951                        310,830 
Meezan Bank Limited A1+                150,306,513                   41,467,257 
National Bank Of  Pakistan A1+                    5,201,189                     1,400,086 
Samba Bank Limited A1                        16,185                          15,185 
Soneri Bank Limited A1+                 30,186,697                     1,153,046 
Summit Bank Limited -                      313,971                        355,371 
Standard Charted Bank Limited A1+                    1,181,241                                 -   
Bank of Punjab A1+                 41,949,567                     6,021,332 
Askari Bank Limited A1+

A1
                32,732,561                        952,394 

Al Barka Bank Limited                        48,950                                 -   
           1,524,494,459                 237,749,847 

2023
Level 2

-------------------Rupees --------------------
Financial investments: fair value through 
OCI

2022
Level 2

-------------------Rupees --------------------
Financial investments: fair value through 
OCI

The board of directors of the Company has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company's risk
management framework. The Company has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:

Credit risk represents the accounting loss that would be recognised at the reporting date if counter-parties failed completely to
perform as contracted. The Company does not have significant exposure to any individual counter-party. To reduce exposure to
credit risk the Company has developed a formal approval process whereby credit limits are applied to its customers. The
management also regularly monitors the credit exposure towards the customers and makes allowance for ECLs against those
balances considered doubtful for recovery. To mitigate the risk, the Company has a system of assigning credit limits to its
customers based on evaluation based on customer profile and payment history. Outstanding customer receivables are regularly
monitored.
Credit risk of the Company arises principally from the trade debts, loans and advances, trade deposits, other receivables and
deposits with financial institutions. The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure.

The Company's exposure to credit risk arising from trade debtors is mainly influenced by the individual characteristics of each
customer. The majority of the customers have been transacting with the company for several years. Actual credit loss experience
over past years is used to base the calculation of expected credit loss.

The Company limits its exposure to credit risk by investing in liquid securities and maintaining bank accounts only with counter-
parties that have stable credit rating. Given these high credit ratings, management does not expect that any counter party will fail
to meet their obligations.

Short- term 
Ratings --------- Rupees ---------
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Exposure to credit risk

2023 2022
Note

Long term deposits 9 26,314,265               23,550,568                  
Trade debts 12 10,504,519,178         5,746,087,378             
Loans and advances 13 265,496,495             55,190,647                  
Trade deposits - unsecured 14 286,277,691              24,043,579                  
Short term investments 15 316,812,927              775,120,059                
Bank balances 18 1,524,494,459           237,749,847                
Other receivables 16 100,402,028              100,402,028                

13,024,317,043         6,962,144,106             

2023 2022
Note

More than 45 days but not more than 3 months 542,862,019                              247,431,639 
More than 3 months but not more than 6 months 398,539,140                              147,754,398 
More than 6 months but not more than 1 year 235,981,637                              134,999,001 
More than 1 year 107,616,349              83,909,116                  

12.3 1,284,999,145           614,094,154                

42.3.2 Liquidity risk

Effective rates of return/mark-up on financial liabilities are as follows:

Note
Financial liabilities - Interest bearing
Long term finances - secured 
Conventional 21 9.01% 19,946,072,320       2,727,894,540          17,218,177,780           
Long term finances - secured 
Islamic 16.3% 7,342,451,333        1,368,497,713           5,973,953,620            
Short term finances - secured - 
   conventional 26 16.20% to 22.20% 14,656,046,452       14,656,046,452         -                             
Short term finances - secured - 
Islamic 26 12.64% to 22.27% 452,236,440           452,236,440             -                             
Non - interest bearing
Trade and other payables 24 - 7,893,415,577        7,893,415,577           -                             
Accrued mark-up 25 - 1,091,598,751         1,091,598,751           -                             
Unclaimed dividend 5,069,267               -                           -                             

51,386,890,140       28,189,689,473         23,192,131,400           

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the
reporting date was:

--------- Rupees ---------

To reduce the exposure to credit risk, the Company has developed a formal approval process whereby credit limits are applied to
its customers. The management continuously monitors the credit exposure towards the customers and makes provision against
those balances considered doubtful of recovery.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counter parties are banks with reasonably high credit rating.

As at June 30 the Company has certain trade debts that are past due but are not considered to be impaired. The amounts as at
June 30 are as follows:

----------------------------------Rupees-----------------------------

--------- Rupees ---------

In respect of trade debts, the Company is not exposed to any significant credit risk exposure to any single counterparty or any
group of counterparties having similar characteristics. Trade debts consists of a large number of customers. Based on historical
information about customer default rates management consider the credit quality of trade debts that are not past due and impaired
to be good. Actual credit loss experience over past years is used to base the calculation of expected credit loss.

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulties in meeting obligations associated with financial liabilities that
are settled by delivering cash or another financial assets. Liquidity risk arises because of the possibility that the Company could be
required to pay its liabilities earlier than expected or difficulty in raising funds to meet commitments associated with financial
liabilities as they fall due. The Company's approach to managing liquidity risk is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have
sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable
losses or risking damage to the Company's reputation. Based on the above, management believes the liquidity risk is insignificant.

As at the reporting date the Company's financial liabilities have contractual maturities as summarized below:

2023
Effective rate of 

interest Carrying amount Maturity upto one 
year

Maturity after 
one year
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Note
Financial liabilities - Interest bearing

Long term finances - secured - 
conventional 21 4% 15,415,662,067       2,697,752,499           12,717,909,568           
Long term finances - secured - 
Islamic 6.3% 7,654,387,206         683,004,100              6,971,383,106             

-                              
897,554                     436,100                       

3,931,765                  2,221,600                    
Short term finances - secured -  
  conventional 26

7.18% to 8.96%
8,802,588,120         8,802,588,120           -                              

Short term finances - secured - 
  Islamic 26

6.81% to 8.63%
286,170,800            286,170,800              -                              

Non - interest bearing
Trade and other payables 24 - 2,848,332,859         2,848,332,859           -                              
Accrued mark-up 25 - 374,333,248            374,333,248              -                              
Unclaimed dividend 4,044,553                -                            -                              

35,393,005,872       15,697,010,945         19,691,950,374           

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

42.3.3 Market risk

a) Foreign currency risk

Exposure to Foreign currency risk

2023 2022
---------- Amount in USD ----------

Trade debts 20,221,659               6,959,632                    
Cash and bank balances 3,353,064                 159,782                       
Trade and other payables (7,333,407)                (1,690,127)                   
Loans and advances 924,753                    268,568                       
Advance from customer (738,013)                   (255,589)                     

16,428,056               5,442,266                    
Off balance sheet exposures
Letter of credit (21,986,704)              (10,710,555)                 
Net Exposure (5,558,648)                (5,268,289)                   
The following significant exchange rates were applied during the year.

Average rate 246.30                      181.65                        

Reporting date rate 287.10                      205.50                        

2022
Effective rate of 

interest Carrying amount Maturity upto one 
year

Maturity after 
one year

At June 30, 2023, if interest rates on long term financing had been 1% higher / lower with all other variables held constant, pre tax 
profit for the year would have been affected by Rs. 272.89 million (June 2022: Rs. 230.70 million) higher / lower, mainly as a
result of higher / lower interest expense on floating rate borrowings.

At June 30, 2023, if interest rates on short term borrowings had been 1% higher / lower with all other variables held constant, pre
tax profit for the year would have been affected by Rs. 151.08 million (June 2022: Rs. 90.89 million) higher / lower, mainly as a
result of higher / lower interest expense on floating rate borrowings.

Market risk is the risk that fair value of future cash flows of the financial instrument may fluctuate as a result of changes in market
prices. Market prices comprise of three types of risks namely foreign currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk, such as
equity risk.

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of financial asset or a liability may fluctuate due to changes in
foreign exchange rates. It arises mainly where receivables and payables exist due to transactions entered into foreign currencies.
The Company primarily has foreign currency exposures in US Dollars.

The Company is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from currency value fluctuations due to the following:

Rupee per USD

----------------------------------Rupees-----------------------------

Lease liabilities - conventional
 7.76% to 7.96% 1,333,654                

Lease liabilities - Islamic
 7.28% to 8.48% 6,153,365                
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Foreign currency sensitivity analysis

2023 2022

Strengthening of PKR against respective currencies 159,588,797              108,263,369                

Weakening of PKR against respective currencies (159,588,797)            (108,263,369)               

2023 2022
Note

Export debtors 12 5,805,638,355          1,430,204,301             
Import creditors 2,105,421,016           347,321,180                

7,911,059,371           1,777,525,481             

b) Interest rate risk

2023 2022
Variable rate instruments
Financial liabilities 6,350,453,666          6,705,415,593             

6,350,453,666          6,705,415,593             

c) Equity risk

43 CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

2023 2022

Share capital 663,569,400             663,569,400                
Reserves           17,052,163,857             11,916,011,853 

          17,715,733,257             12,579,581,253 

Carrying amount

--------- Rupees ---------

As at 30 June 2023, if KIBOR had been 100 bps lower/higher with all other variables held constant, profit before tax for the year
would have been higher/lower by Rs. 63.5 million. (2022: Rs. 67.05 million) mainly because of higher/lower interest expense on
variable rate instruments.

It is the risk that the listed equity securities are susceptible to market price risk, arising from uncertainties about future values of
the investment securities.

The objective of the Company when managing capital is to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern so that it can
continue to provide returns to shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain a strong capital base to support
the sustained development of its businesses.
The Company manages its capital structure by monitoring return on net assets and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes
in economic conditions. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividend paid
to the shareholders or issue bonus / right shares. There were no changes in the Company's approach to capital management
during the year and the Company is not subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

A 10 percentage strengthening of the PKR against the USD at June 30, 2022 would have effect on the equity and profit and loss
of the company as shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant. The
analysis is performed on the same basis for June 30, 2023.

--------- Rupees ---------

As at 30 June 2023, if the Pakistani Rupee had weakened / strengthened by 10% against the US Dollar with all other variables
being constant, profit before tax for the year would have been lower / higher by Rs. 159.59 million (2022: Rs. 108.26 million)
mainly as a result of foreign exchange gains / losses on translation of dollar denominated financial assets.

The maximum exposure to foreign currency risk in Pakistani rupee at the reporting date is as follows:

--------- Rupees ---------

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of the future cash flows of a financial instrument may fluctuate because of the
changes in market interest rates. Majority of the interest rate exposure arises from short and long term borrowings from banks and
running finance facilities. At the reporting date the interest rate profile of the Company's mark-up bearing financial instruments is
as follows:

The Company’s capital includes share capital and reserves. As at reporting date the capital of the Company is as follows:

--------- Rupees ---------

The Company manages its capital risk by monitoring its debt levels and liquid assets and keeping in view future investments
requirements and expectations of the shareholders. Debt is calculated as total borrowings (long term finances). The Company's
capital signifies equity as reported in statement of financial position and includes share capital and accumulated losses.

The Company's strategy was to maintain leveraged gearing. The gearing ratios as at June 30, 2023 and 2022 were as follows:
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2023 2022

Note
Total borrowings 42,396,806,545        32,158,808,193           
Less: Cash and bank balances 18 (1,530,218,047)          (242,333,100)               
Net debt 40,866,588,498        31,916,475,093           
Total equity 17,715,733,257         12,579,581,253           
Total equity and debt 58,582,321,755         44,496,056,346           

Net gearing ratio (%) 69.8% 71.7%

44 PLANT CAPACITY AND ACTUAL PRODUCTION  

Rated Actual Rated Actual
Capacity Production Capacity Production

Food processing 219,932               123,317            183,288              100,625                

Plastic film 63,000                 34,121                 63,000                39,928                  

45 TRANSACTION WITH RELATED PARTIES

Key Management Personnel (KMP)
Name

Mr. Ahmed Muhammad 
Mr. Munsarim Saif
Mr. Ghulam Farooq
Mr. Ahmed Raza Parekh

2023 2022
Hudson Pharma (Private) Limited
(Subsidiary Company - 78.53% shareholding)

Investment made during the year 400,000,000       520,000,000            

   -  Purchase of fixed assets 184,215,834              -                             

   -  Payment against purchases (184,215,834)      -                       

Innovita Nutrition (Private) Limited
(Associated Company - Common Directorship)

   -  Purchase of raw material 106,818,235              -                             
   -  Payment against purchases (539,225,235)     -                       

   -  Advance to Associated Company (432,407,000)            -                             

Ismail Resin (Private) Limited.
(Subsidiary Company - 75% shareholding)

Investment made during the year 1,125,000,000    1,383,262,500       

Salaries & benefits to KMP 60,959,004         63,443,336           
Post employment benefit to KMP 1,415,637           1,638,449             

2023 2022
Metric Ton Metric Ton

The Company has enhanced the production capacity in food processing by 36,644 metric tons and production by 22,692 metric
tons.  Remaining capacity and production utilization was as per the market demand.

Related parties comprise associated undertakings, directors of the Company and key management personnel. The Company
continues to have a policy whereby all transactions with related parties are entered into at commercial terms and conditions.

--------- Rupees ---------

The Company finances its operations through equity, borrowings and management of working capital with a view to maintain an 
appropriate mix amongst various sources of finance to minimize risk.

--------- Rupees ---------

Details of transactions with related parties, other than those which have been specifically disclosed elsewhere in these
unconsolidated financial statements, are as fallows:

Direct shareholding %
15.22

0.000009
Nil
Nil
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Plastiflex Films (Private) Limited 2023 2022
(Associated Company - Common Directorship)

   -  Purchase of raw & packing material 52,029,928         62,372,972           

   -  Metallization of raw material (5,122,395)         (22,307,473)          

   -  Sales of raw and packing material -                     (8,000,957)            

   -  Recovery against Sales 3,774,945          36,050,153           

   -  Payment against purchases (56,392,939)       (64,364,321)          

46 NON- ADJUSTING EVENT

46.1

47 DATE OF AUTHORIZATION

--------- Rupees ---------

The board of directors in its meeting held on September 08, 2023 has proposed final dividend in respect of the year ended June
30, 2023 of Rs. ________ per share (2022: Rs. 4 per share) for approval of the members at the annual general meeting. The
unconsolidated financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2023 do not include the effect of proposed dividend, which will
be accounted for in the unconsolidated financial statements for the year ending  June 30, 2024.

These unconsolidated financial statements were authorized for issue on September 08, 2023 by the board of directors of the
Company.

2

 Munsarim Saifullah
Chief Executive Officer

Maqsood Ismail Ahmed
Director Chief Financial Officer

Ahmed Raza Parekh
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
To the members of Ismail Industries Limited 

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statement 

Opinion 
 

We have audited the annexed consolidated financial statements of Ismail Industries Limited 
and its subsidiaries (the Group), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial 
position as at June 30, 2023, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated 
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the 
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated 
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other 
explanatory information. 
 
In our opinion, consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated 
financial position of the Group as at June 30, 2023, and of its consolidated financial 
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with the 
accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan. 
 
Basis for Opinion 
 

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as 
applicable in Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We 
are independent of the Group in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for 
Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of the Chartered 
Accountants of Pakistan (the Code), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in 
accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 
 
Key Audit Matter 

 
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most 
significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These 
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a 
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these 
matters. 
 
Following is the key audit matter: 
 

S. No. Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in our 
audit 

   
1. Valuation of Stock-in-trade 

 
As at June 30, 2023 the Group’s total stock-
in-trade balance amounting to Rs. 16.28 
billion as disclosed in note 11 represents 
42.80% of the total current assets of the 
Group. The value of stock-in-trade is based 
on the moving weighted average cost 
method for raw materials and packing 
materials, weighted average cost method for 
work in process and lower of weighted 

 

 
In response to this matter, our audit 
procedures included the following: 

 

 Reviewed the management procedure 
for valuation of stock-in-trade and 
evaluating the NRV of stock in trade. 
 

 Observed physical counts at major 
locations to ascertain the condition 
and existence of stock-in-trade. 
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average cost and net realizable value (NRV) 
for finished goods, and invoice value plus 
other charges for stock in transit.  
 
The Group is required to measure its stock-
in-trade at the lower of cost and NRV. There 
is an element of judgement involved relating 
to the valuation, which is required for the 
estimation of the net realizable value and 
allowance for slow-moving and obsolete 
stock-in-trade. Such estimation is made after 
taking into consideration factors such as 
movement in prices, current and expected 
future market demands and pricing 
competitions. 
 
This was the key audit matter because of its 
materiality and significance in terms of 
judgements involved in estimating the NRV 
of underlying stock-in-trade. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 Tested the valuation method used by 
the management in valuation of stock 
in trade. 
 

 Reviewed stock-in-trade turnover 
ratios, understood and evaluated the 
appropriateness of the basis of 
identification of the obsolete stock-
in-trade, tested the accuracy of the 
aging analysis of stock-in-trade, on a 
sample basis, tested the cost of goods 
with underlying invoices and 
expenses incurred in accordance with 
stock-in-trade valuation method and 
reviewed the minutes of the relevant 
meetings at the management and 
board level to identify any indicators 
of obsolesce.   

 Compared the NRV to the cost of 
stock in trade whether any adjustment 
is required to value stock in trade in 
accordance with the accounting policy; 
and 

 

 Assessed the adequacy of the 
disclosures on stock-in-trade in the 
consolidated financial statements. 

 
Information Other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report 
Thereon 
 
Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the 
information included in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial 
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.  
 
Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and 
we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.  
 
In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to 
read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is 
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in 
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have 
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information; we are 
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 
 
 

Responsibilities of Management and the Board of Directors for the Consolidated 
Financial Statements 
 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated 
financial statements in accordance with accounting and reporting standards as applicable in 
Pakistan and Companies Act, 2017 and for such internal control as management determines is 
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the 
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going 
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concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to 
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 
 
Board of directors is responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 
 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial 
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to 
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of 
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable 
in Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise 
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could 
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these 
consolidated financial statements. 
 
As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional 
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 
 

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures 
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement 
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve 
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal 
control. 

 

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control. 
  

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management. 
  

 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty 
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s 
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, 
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the 
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our 
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our 
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to 
continue as a going concern. 

  
 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial 

statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements 
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair 
presentation. 
    

 Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the 
entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the 
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and 
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion. 
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We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned 
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies 
in internal control that we identify during our audit. 
 

We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships 
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where 
applicable, related safeguards. 
 

From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we determine those matters that 
were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current 
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report 
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare 
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because 
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public 
interest benefits of such communication. 
 

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is 
Muhammad Khalid Aziz. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Grant Thornton Anjum Rahman 
Chartered Accountants 
 
Karachi 
Dated: September 15, 2023 
UDIN: CR2023101548AdfeoL6g 
 

UDIN: AR202310154KR9VQXxe2



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT JUNE 30, 2023

2023 2022
Note

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment 6 38,374,111,226      29,570,611,863      
Right-of-use assets 6.1 42,412,009            26,661,774             
Intangible assets 7 2,226,707              5,995,440               
Goodwill 12,173,553             12,173,553             
Long term investments 8 3,225,156,930        3,144,584,786        
Long term deposits 9 33,172,123             27,390,426             

Total non-current assets 41,689,252,548      32,787,417,842      

Current assets

Stores and spares 10 655,628,210          536,173,317           
Stock-in-trade 11 16,276,555,986      8,501,109,463        
Trade debts 12 10,669,814,953      5,827,408,364        
Loans and advances 13 3,352,311,584        1,994,072,521        
Trade deposits and short term prepayments 14 313,867,170           50,442,888             
Short term investments 15 1,671,884,971        1,318,192,640        
Other receivables 16 2,320,979,357       117,740,491           
Taxation-net 17 1,115,183,469        1,166,745,442        
Cash and bank balances 18 1,651,166,603        373,050,231           

Total current assets 38,027,392,303      19,884,935,357      

Total assets 79,716,644,851      52,672,353,199      

The annexed notes 1 to 48 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

------------ Rupees ------------
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT JUNE 30, 2023

2023 2022
Note

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Share capital and reserves

Authorized share capital
250,000,000 (2022: 250,000,000) ordinary shares  
of Rs. 10 each 2,500,000,000       2,500,000,000        

Issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital 19 663,569,400          663,569,400           
Non-controlling interest 20 1,180,807,449        812,707,126           
Reserves 21 15,543,088,252      10,790,536,824      

Total shareholders' equity 17,387,465,101      12,266,813,350      

Non-current liabilities

Long term finances - secured 22 27,813,006,872      21,115,340,979      
Lease liabilities 23 22,111,918             11,329,635             
Deferred liabilities 24 2,519,366,746        2,392,609,675        

Total non-current liabilities 30,354,485,536      23,519,280,289      

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables 25 10,418,992,220      3,504,621,771        
Accrued mark-up 26 1,200,346,240        387,140,074           
Short term finances - secured 27 15,108,282,892      9,088,758,920        
Current portion of:

-  long term finances - secured 22 4,208,884,532       3,507,663,033        
-  lease liabilities 23 10,826,930            7,892,005               

Unclaimed Dividend 5,069,267              4,044,553               
Advances from customers - unsecured 1,022,292,133        386,139,204           

Total current liabilities 31,974,694,214      16,886,259,560      

Total liabilities 62,329,179,750      40,405,539,849      

Total equity and liabilities 79,716,644,851      52,672,353,199      

Contingencies and commitments 28
The annexed notes 1 to 48 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

------------ Rupees ------------
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

2023 2022
Note ------------ Rupees ------------

Sales 29 100,643,731,994     65,805,161,598     

Sales returns, discounts and direct expenses (2,244,975,388)       (2,543,025,087)      
Export rebate 31,217,117              25,289,225            

(2,213,758,271)       (2,517,735,862)      
98,429,973,723      63,287,425,736     *

Sales tax (8,786,430,060)       (7,563,073,960)      

Sales - net 89,643,543,663      55,724,351,776     

Cost of sales 31 (71,079,444,949)     (45,765,150,468)    

Gross profit 18,564,098,714       9,959,201,308       

Selling and distribution expenses 32 (7,383,241,930)       (4,946,087,081)      

Administrative expenses 33 (1,367,302,931)       (1,018,170,361)      

Operating profit 9,813,553,853        3,994,943,866       

Other operating expenses 34 (824,790,805)         (423,926,854)         

Other income 35 2,096,511,615         802,104,485          
11,085,274,663       4,373,121,497       

Finance cost 36 (4,459,624,481)       (1,456,847,447)      

6,625,650,182        2,916,274,050       

Share of profit from associated company - net 8.1 428,075,707           216,582,895          

Profit before taxation 7,053,725,889        3,132,856,945       

Taxation 38 (1,160,462,591)        (837,505,419)         

Profit for the year 5,893,263,298        2,295,351,526       

Profit for the year attributable to:

Shareholders of the Holding Company 5,999,711,211         2,352,955,856       
Non-controlling interest (106,447,913)          (57,604,330)           

5,893,263,298        2,295,351,526       

Earnings per share - basic and diluted 39 90.42 35.46

The annexed notes 1 to 48 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

2023 2022
Note ------------ Rupees ------------

Profit for the year 5,893,263,298    2,295,351,526      

Other comprehensive loss :

Items that may be reclassified to consolidated statement  -                    -                      
of profit or loss in subsequent periods

Items that will not be reclassified to consolidated statement   
of profit or loss in subsequent periods:

Loss on remeasurement of defined employment benefit
   obligation-net of tax 24.2.7 (18,919,071)        (36,169,579)          

Unrealized loss on re-measurement of investment classified
    as fair value through OCI -net of tax (4,317,300)         (3,787,384)           

Share of other comprehensive loss from associated
   company - net of tax 8.1 (295,378,016)     (214,201,434)        

Other comprehensive loss (318,614,387)      (254,158,397)        

Total comprehensive income for the year 5,574,648,911    2,041,193,129      

Total comprehensive income for the year attributable to :

Shareholders of the Holding Company 5,681,548,588    2,099,522,841      
Non-controlling interest (106,899,677)     (58,329,712)          

5,574,648,911    2,041,193,129      

The annexed notes 1 to 48 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

2023 2022
Note

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash generated from operations 41 4,967,707,852        2,160,891,297      

   Gratuity paid 24.2.3 (79,999,247)            (49,961,384)          
   Income tax paid - net (1,066,408,417)        (722,740,041)        
   Long-term deposits (5,781,697)              4,068,322             

Net cash generated from operating activities 3,815,518,491         1,392,258,194      

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Capital expenditure (including CWIP) (11,492,677,674)      (8,910,241,045)     
Acquisition of Intangible assets 7 -                         (1,000,000)            
NCI recognized on investment 475,000,000           -                      
Amount paid under acquisition net of advance -                         (70,855,597)          
Short-term investments - net 15 (357,631,523)          (645,299,579)        
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 6.6 182,877,706           553,168,881         

Net cash used in investing activities (11,192,431,491)       (9,074,227,340)     

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Receipts from long term financing-net off repayment 7,500,134,801         7,249,975,392      
Lease repayments (18,351,675)            (42,945,242)          
Short term financing 1,737,050,819         2,971,907,538      
Interest / mark-up paid (3,918,305,280)       (1,237,036,848)     
Dividend paid (927,972,446)          (994,212,144)        

Net cash generated from financing activities 4,372,556,219         7,947,688,696      
Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents (3,004,356,781)       265,719,550         

  Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year (785,025,151)          (1,050,744,701)     

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (3,789,381,932)       (785,025,151)        

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year comprise of:

Cash and bank balances 18 1,651,166,603         373,050,231         
Running finance utilized under mark-up arrangements 27.5 (5,440,548,535)       (1,158,075,382)     

(3,789,381,932)       (785,025,151)        

The annexed notes 1 to 48 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

------------ Rupees ------------
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023
1 LEGAL STATUS AND OPERATIONS

1.1 The Group consist of:
Holding Company : Ismail Industries Limited

Subsidiary Companies : Hudson Pharma (Private) Limited and Ismail Resin (Private) Limited

a) Ismail Industries Limited

b) Hudson Pharma (Private) Limited

Factory:
D-93, North Western Industrial Zone, Port Qasim.

Administrative office:
24/1 - Bangalore Co-operative Housing Society, Block 7/8, Bangalore Town, Karachi.

c) Ismail Resin (Private) Limited

Plot No. EZ/1/P-II-A Eastern Industrial Zone, Port Qasim, Karachi.

Unit-10
E164-168, North Western Zone, Port Qasim.

Unit-9

 B-140, Hub H.I.T.E., Balochistan.

Ismail Resin (Private) Limited (IRPL) was incorporated in Karachi, Pakistan on January 13, 2021. The registered
office of the Company is situated at 17 - Bangalore Town, Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi, Pakistan. Principal activities of
the Company are manufacturing and selling of Polyester Resin.

Unit 1
A-39 North Western Zone, Port Qasim, Karachi.
Unit 2

E154-157, North Western Zone, Port Qasim.
Unit-8

G-22, Hub H.I.T.E., Balochistan.

Unit-2

Unit-3
 G-1, Hub H.I.T.E., Balochistan.

E164-168, North Western Zone, Port Qasim.

In addition to above, geographical location and addresses of manufacturing units of the Subsidiary Company are as
under:

Unit-7

Ismail Industries Limited (the Holding Company) was incorporated in Karachi, Pakistan as a private limited company
on June 21, 1988. On November 01, 1989 the Company was converted into a public limited company. The registered
office of the Holding Company is situated at 17 - Bangalore Town, Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi, Pakistan. Previously
the shares of the Holding Company were listed on the Karachi and Lahore Stock Exchanges. However, due to
integration of these Stock Exchanges into Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited effective from January 11, 2016 the
shares of the company are now quoted on Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited. Principal activities of the Holding
Company are manufacturing and trading of sugar confectionery items, biscuits, potato chips, nutritional products,
flour, cast polypropylene (CPP) and Biaxially-oriented polyethylene terephthalate (BOPET) film under the brands of
'Candyland', 'Bisconni', 'Snackcity', 'Ismail nutrition', Ghiza' and 'Astro films' respectively.

Further, the Holding Company's liaison offices and warehouses are stiuated in Karachi, Hyderabad, Sukkur, Multan,
Lahore, Islamabad, Faisalabad and Peshawar.

D-91, D-92 & D-94 North Western Zone, Port Qasim. 

 G-1A, Hub H.I.T.E., Balochistan.

Unit-5
38-C, Sundar Industrial Estate, Raiwind Road, Lahore.

Hudson Pharma (Private) Limited (HPPL) was incorporated in Pakistan as a private limited company on May 5,
2010. The registered office of the Subsidiary Company is located at 17, Bangalore Town, Main Shahrah-e-Faisal,
Karachi. Principal activities of the Subsidiary Company are manufacturing, processing, compounding, formulating,
importing, exporting, packaging, marketing, wholesale and retail, trading and selling of all kinds of pharmaceutical,
animal health, allied consumer products, drugs, medicines and derma products.
In addition to above, geographical location and addresses of manufacturing units of the Subsidiary Company are as
under:

In addition to above registered office, geographical location and addresses of manufacturing units of the Holding
Company are as under:

Factories:

Unit-4

Unit-1 Unit-6
C-230, Hub H.I.T.E., Balochistan.
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2 SIGNIFICANT EVENTS AND TRANSACTIONS

2.1

3 BASIS OF PREPARATION
3.1 Statement of compliance

3.2 Basis of measurement

3.3 Functional and presentation currency

3.4

3.5 Reclassification for Better Presentation

3.6

3.6.1

Prior year figures- have been rearranged and/or reclassified, wherever necessary, for better presentation. There is no
material reclassification.

There were certain amendments to accounting and reporting standards which became effective for the Group for the
current year. However, these are considered not to be relevant or to have any significant impact on the Group’s
financial reporting and, therefore, have not been disclosed in these consolidated financial statements.

Subsidiary Company is consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains control, and continue to be
consolidated until the date when such control ceases. 

Items included in these consolidated financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the Holding Company operates. These consolidated financial statements are presented in
Pakistani Rupee, which is the Group's functional and presentation currency. The figures have been rounded off to
the nearest Pakistani Rupee.

The financial statements of the subsidiary company are prepared for the same reporting period as the Holding
Company, using consistent accounting policies. 

All intra-group balances, transactions and unrealised gains and losses resulting from intra-group transactions and
dividends are eliminated in full.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting
standards as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of:

The Flour segment of the Holding Company also commenced the commercial production in the last quarter of the
year having production capacity of 240 TPD. Furthermore, the Subusidiary Company M/s Ismail Resin (Private)
Limited have planned to start commercial production by October 2023.

- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board (IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017; and
- Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017.- Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017.

Basis of Consolidation

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRS Standards, the
provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.

These consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Holding Company and its Subsidiary
Companies.

A company is a subsidiary, if the Holding Company directly or indirectly controls, beneficially owns or holds more
than fifty percent of its voting securities or otherwise has power to elect and appoint more than fifty percent of its
directors. The Holding company can govern the financial & operating policies of subsidiary.

The assets, liabilities, income and expenses of Subsidiary Company are consolidated on a line by line basis and
carrying value of investments held by the Holding Company is eliminated against the Subsidiary Company’s
shareholders’ equity in these consolidated financial statements.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except as otherwise
disclosed in the respective accounting policies.

Standards, Amendments and Interpretations to Approved Accounting Standards 

Standards, amendments and interpretations to the published standards that may be relevant to the Group 
and adopted in the current year

Where the ownership of a subsidiary is less than hundred percent and therefore, a non controlling interest (NCI)
exists, the NCI is allocated its share of the total comprehensive income for the year, even if that results in a deficit
balance.
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3.6.2

3.6.3

4 USE OF CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS

Note
a) Property, plant and equipment 4.1 & 5.1
b) Right-of-use assets 5.1.2
c) Intangible assets 5.2
d) Stock-in-trade, stores and spares 4.2 , 5.5 & 5.6
e) Taxation 4.4 & 5.14
f) Staff retirement benefits 4.5 & 5.12
g) Lease liabilities 5.13
h) Provisions 5.15
i) Impairment of non financial assets 5.3
j) Contingent liabilities 5.23
k) Impairment of financial assets 4.3 & 5.25.5k)

4.1 Property, plant and equipment

4.2 Stock-in-trade, stores and spares

4.3 Trade debts and Other receivables

4.4 Taxation

4.5 Staff retirement benefits

Standards, amendments and interpretations to the published standards that may be relevant but not yet 
effective and not early adopted by the Group

The Group reviews appropriateness of the rate of depreciation, useful life and residual value used in the calculation
of depreciation. Further, where applicable, an estimate of the recoverable amount of assets is made for possible
impairment on an annual basis. In making these estimates, the Group uses the technical resources available with the
Group. Any change in estimates in the future might affect the carrying amount of respective item of property, plant
and equipment with corresponding effects on the depreciation charge and impairment.

Impairment loss against doubtful trade and other debts is recorded in accordance with basis mentioned in note
5.25.5 of these consolidated finacial statements.

Standards, amendments and interpretations to the published standards that are not yet notified by the
Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP)

Further, certain IFRS have been issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) which are yet to be
notified by the SECP for the purpose of applicability in Pakistan.

The Group's management reviews the net realizable value (NRV) of stock-in-trade, stores and spares to assess any
diminution in the respective carrying values and wherever required, provision for impairment is made.

The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgments
about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may
differ from these estimates. The estimates underlying the assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that
period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

The preparation of these consolidated financial statements in conformity with the approved accounting standards as
applicable in Pakistan requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application
of accounting policies and the reported amount of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. 

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management has made the following accounting
estimates and judgments which are significant to the consolidated financial statements:

There are certain amendments to accounting and reporting standards that are not yet effective and are considered
either not to be relevant or to have any significant impact on the Group’s financial statements and operations and,
therefore, have not been disclosed in these consolidated financial statements.

In making the estimate for income taxes by the Group, the management refer to the current income tax law and the
decisions of appellate authorities on certain issues in the past.

Certain actuarial assumptions have been adopted as disclosed in note 24.1 to these consolidated financial statements
for valuation of present value of defined benefit obligations. Any changes in these assumptions in future years might
affect the amounts recognized in those years.
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5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

5.1 Property, plant and equipment
5.1.1 Owned

5.1.2

5.1.3 Capital work-in-progress

5.2 Intangible assets

Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost less accumulated impairment if any. All expenditures connected to the
specific assets incurred during installation and construction period are carried under capital work-in-progress. These
expenditures are transferred to relevant category of property, plant and equipment as and when the assets start
operation. Impairment losses, if any, are recorded on the basis as defined in note 5.3.

Depreciation on assets other than leasehold land is calculated so as to write-off the assets over their expected
economic lives under the diminishing balance method at rates given in note. 6 to the consolidated financial
statements. Depreciation on leasehold land is charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss, applying the
straight-line method at rates given in note 6 to these consolidated financial statements whereby the cost is written off
over the lease term. Depreciation is charged from the month when the asset is available for use and ceased from the
month of disposal. Impairment losses, if any, are recorded on the basis as defined in note 5.3.

The significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are set out
below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years.

Property, plant and equipment including leasehold land and all additions except capital work-in-progress are stated at
cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. Cost of property, plant and equipment
comprises acquisition cost and directly attributable cost of bringing the assets to its working condition. Borrowing
cost including the exchange risk fee (if any) that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction and
production of a qualifying asset is capitalized as part of the cost during the period in which activities that are
necessary to prepare the asset for its intended use are carried out.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed and adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting date.

Intangible assets are recognized when it is probable that the expected future economic benefits will flow to the entity
and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably. Cost of the intangible asset (i.e. computer software) includes
purchase cost and directly attributable expenses incidental to bring the asset for its intended use.
Costs associated with maintaining computer software are recognized as an expense as and when incurred.

Right-of-use assets

Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any.
Amortization is charged over the estimated useful life of the asset on a systematic basis applying the straight line
method. The impairment losses if any are recorded on the basis mentioned in note. 5.3.

Useful lives of intangible operating assets are reviewed, at each reporting date and adjusted if the impact of
amortization is significant.

The Group has elected to apply the practical expedient not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for
short term leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets. The lease payments
associated with these leases is recognised as an expense on a straight line basis over the lease term.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only
when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the asset will flow to the Group and the cost of the
asset can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognized. Normal repairs and
maintenance are charged to the Consolidated statement of profit or loss as and when incurred. Major renewals and
improvements are capitalized and the assets so replaced, if any, are retired.

The gain or loss on disposal or retirement of assets represented by the difference between the sale proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset is recognized as other income or expense.

An intangible asset is an identifiable non-monetary asset without physical substance.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured based on the initial amount of the lease liability, any lease payments made
at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred, an estimate of costs to dismantle and
remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease
incentive received. The right-of-use asset is depreciated on a diminishing balance method as given in note no. 6.1 of
these consolidated financial statements of June 30, 2023. The right-of-use assets is reduced by impairment losses, if
any, and adjusted for certain remeasurements of the lease liability.
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5.3 Impairment of non-financial assets

5.4 Investments in associates

5.5 Stores and spare 

5.6 Stock-in-trade
These are valued at the lower of cost or net realizable value. Cost is determined as follows:
Types of stock
a) Raw and packing materials weighted average cost method
b) Work-in-process weighted average cost method
c) Finished goods lower of weighted average cost or net realizable value
d) Goods in-transit invoice value plus other charges incurred thereon
e) Trading goods lower of weighted average cost or net realizable value

5.7 Trade debts and other receivables

5.8

5.9

Cash and cash equivalents

5.10 Interest / Mark-up bearing loans and borrowings

For the purposes of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash in hand
and bank balances, short term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value and short term running finances under mark up
arrangements.

All loans and borrowings are initially recognized at the fair value of the consideration received less directly
attributable transaction costs.
Loans and borrowings are subsequently stated at amortized cost with any difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction cost) and the redemption value is recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss except for
any amount included in the cost of property, plant and equipment over the period of the borrowing using the
effective interest method.

Valuation method

Net realizable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.

These are classified at amortised cost and are initially recognised when they are originated and measured at fair value
of consideration receivable. These assets are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery. Actual
credit loss experience over past years is used to base the calculation of expected credit loss.

Assets that are subject to depreciation / amortization are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized for the
amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher
of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are
grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units).

Inventory write-down is made based on the current market conditions, historical experience and selling goods of
similar nature. It could change significantly as a result of changes in market conditions. A review is made on each
reporting date on inventories for excess inventories, obsolescence and declines in net realisable value and an
allowance is recorded against the inventory balances for any such declines.

Associates are all entities over which the Group has significant influence but not control, generally accompanying a
shareholding between 20% and 50% of the voting rights or common directorship. Investments in associates are
accounted for using the equity method of accounting unless other law and regulation prescribe different criteria.
Under the equity method, the investment is initially recognized at cost, and the carrying amount is increased or
decreased to recognize the Group’s share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income/ loss of the
associate after the date of acquisition.

All stores, spares and loose tools either imported or purchased locally are charged to consolidated statement of profit
or loss when consumed and are valued at lower of weighted moving average cost or estimated NRV except for items-
in-transit which are stated at invoice value plus other incidental charges paid thereon up to the reporting date.
Provision is made for obsolete and slow moving items where necessary and is recognized in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount.
An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortization, if no impairment loss had been
recognized.

Long term deposits 
These are stated at amortized cost which represents the fair value of consideration given.



5.11 Borrowing costs

5.12 Staff retirement benefits - gratuity

5.13 Lease liabilities

5.14 Taxation 
5.14.1 Current

5.14.2 Deferred

5.15 Provisions

5.16 Trade and other payables

The carrying amount of the deferred tax asset is reviewed at each reporting date and is recognized only to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the assets may be utilized. Deferred tax
assets are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realized.Unrecognized
deferred income tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and are recognized to the extent that it becomes
probable that future taxable profit will allow deferred tax asset to be recovered. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
measured at the tax rate that are expected to apply to the year when the asset is utilized or the liability is settled,
based on the tax rates that have been enacted or substantially enacted at the reporting date.

Provisions are recognized in these Consolidated the statement of financial position when the Group has a legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle
the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of obligation.

Liabilities for trade and other payables are measured at cost which is the fair value of the consideration to be paid in
future for goods and services.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets (those that
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use) are capitalized as part of the cost of the relevant
asset. All other borrowing costs are charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss in the period in which
they are incurred.

The Group operates an unfunded gratuity scheme covering all its permanent employees with one or more years of
service with the Group. Provision for gratuity is made to cover obligation under the scheme in respect of employees
who have completed the minimum qualifying period. Provision has been made in accordance with actuarial
recommendations summarized in note 24.1 using the projected unit credit method.

The charge for current tax is based on taxable income at current rates of taxation after taking into account tax
credits, rebates and exemptions available, if any, or in accordance with the final tax regime, where applicable, of the
Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 (the Ordinance) or the minimum tax under section 113 of the Ordinance or Alternate
Corporate Tax (ACT) under section 113C of the Ordinance, whichever is higher.

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use assets and a corresponding liability at the date at which the leased asset is
available for use by the Group. The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that
are not paid at the commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, or if that rate cannot
be readily determined, the Group's incremental borrowing rate.Lease payments include fixed payments, variable lease
payments that are based on an index or a rate expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value guarantees,
the exercise price of a purchase option if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise that option, payments of
penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee exercising that option, less any lease incentives
receivable. The extension and termination options are incorporated in determination of lease term only when the
Group is reasonably certain to exercise these options.The lease liability is subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest rate method. It is remeasured when there is a change in future lease payments arising from
a change in fixed lease payments or an index or rate, change in the Group's estimate of the amount expected to be
payable under a residual value guarantee, or if the Group changes its assessment of whether it will exercise a
purchase, extension or termination option. 

Deferred tax is recognized using the statement of financial position liability method on all temporary differences
between the carrying amount of the assets and liabilities and their tax bases.
Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all major taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are recognized for all major deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences can be utilized.
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5.17 Foreign currency translation

5.18 Segment reporting

5.19 Dividend distribution

5.20 Related parties transactions

5.21 Share Capital

5.22 Earnings per share

5.23 Contingent liabilities

Contingent liability is disclosed when:
a) 

b) 

5.24 Operating, administrative and selling expenses

5.25 Financial Instruments - Initial Recognition and subsequent measurement 
5.25.1 Initial recognition

5.25.2 Classification of financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at amortized cost:

The Group determines the classifications of financial assets at initial recognition. The classification of instruments
(other than equity instruments) is driven by the Group's business model for managing the financial assets and their
contractual cash flow characteristics.

- the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows; and 

a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence
or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the entity; or
a present obligation that arises from past events but it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured
with sufficient reliability.

The Group presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is calculated
by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Group by weighted average number of
ordinary shares outstanding during the year. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to
ordinary shareholders and weighted average number of ordinary shares for the effects of all dilutive potential
ordinary shares.

Transactions in foreign currencies are accounted for in Pakistani Rupee at the rate of exchange prevailing at the date
of transaction. Monetary assets and monetary liabilities in foreign currencies as at the reporting date are expressed in
Rupee at rates of exchange prevailing on that date. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost
in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Exchange differences are
taken to the Consolidated Statement of profit or loss.

These expenses are recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss upon utilization of the services or as
incurred except for specifically stated in the consolidated financial statements.

Dividend distribution to the shareholders is recognized as a liability in the period in which it is approved by the
shareholders.

All transactions involving related parties arising in the normal course of business are conducted at arm’s length at
normal commercial rates on the same terms and conditions as third party transactions using valuation modes, as
admissible, except in extremely rare circumstances where, subject to the approval of the board of directors, it is in
the interest of the Group to do so.

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments. Operating segment
comprises of food, plastic, pharmaceutical & resin segment.

All financial assets and liabilities are initially measured at cost which is the fair value of the consideration given or
received. These are subsequently measured at fair value or amortized cost as the case may be.

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following categories:

- at fair value through profit or loss ("FVTPL")

- at fair value through other comprehensive income ("FVTOCI"), or

- at amortized cost.

Ordinarily shares are classified as equity and recognized at their face value. Incremental costs directly attributable to
the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.
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Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at FVTOCI:

5.25.3 Classification of financial liabilities

5.25.4 Subsequent measurement
i) Financial assets at FVTOCI

ii) Financial assets and liabilities at amortized cost

iii) Financial assets and liabilities at FVTPL

5.25.5 Impairment of financial assets

- long term investment;
- long term deposits;
- loans and advances;
- trade deposits; 
- short term investment;
- other receivables; and
- bank balances

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are initially recognized at fair value plus transaction costs.
Subsequently, they are measured at fair value, with gains or losses arising from changes in fair value recognized in
other comprehensive income/(loss).

Financial assets and liabilities at amortized cost are initially recognized at fair value plus or minus the transaction cost
that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial assets or financial labilities and subsequently
carried at amortized cost, and in the case of financial assets, less any impairment.

Financial assets and liabilities carried at FVTPL are initially recorded at fair value and transaction costs are expensed
in the Consolidated statement of profit or loss. Realised and unrealised gains and losses arising from changes in the
fair value of financial assets and liabilities held at FVTPL are included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
in the period in which they arise.

- the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective achieved by both collecting contractual cash
flows and selling the financial assets; and 

- the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows; and 

- the contractual terms of the financial assets give rise on specified date to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

ECLs are a probability weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured at the present value of all cash
short falls (i.e. the difference between cash flows due to the entity in accordance with the contract and cash flows
that the Group expects to receive).
The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off when the Group has no reasonable expectation of
recovering a financial asset in entirety or a portion thereof. 

The Group classifies its financial liabilities at amortised cost.

The Group recognizes loss allowance for Expected Credit Loss (ECL) on financial assets measured at amortized cost
and FVTOCI at an amount equal to life time ECLs except for the financial assets in which there is no significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition or financial assets which are determine to have low credit risk at the
reporting date, in which case twelve months' ECL is recorded. The following were either determine to have low or
there was no credit risk since initial recognition and at the reporting date:

Loss allowance for trade receivables are always measured at an amount equal to life time ECLs.

Where the management has opted to recognise a financial liability at FVTPL, any changes associated with the
Group's own credit risk will be recognised in other comprehensive income/(loss). Currently, there are no financial
liabilities designated at FVTPL.

Life time ECLs are the ECLs that result from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial
instrument. Twelve months ECLs are portion of ECL that result from default events that are possible within twelve
months after the reporting date.

By default, all other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL.

- the contractual terms of the financial assets give rise on specified date to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
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5.25.6 Derecognition
i) Financial assets

ii) Financial liabilities

5.25.7 Off-setting of financial assets and liabilities

5.26 Revenue

The following are the specific recognition criteria that must be met before revenue is recognized:
a) 

b) Processing income is recognized when services are rendered.
c) Gain or loss on sale of investments is taken to income in the period in which it arises.
d) Interest income is recognized on an accrual basis using the effective interest method.
e) 
f) 

5.27

5.28 Goodwill

Service Revenue

The Group is in the business of rendering of services. Revenue from contracts with customers is recognized when
services are rendered to the customer and thereby the performance obligation is satisfied, at amount that reflects the
consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those services.

The Group is in the business of manufacturing and sale of goods. Revenue from contracts with customers is
recognized when control of the goods is transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to
which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods net of discount and sales related indirect
taxes. The Group has generally concluded that it is the principal in its revenue arrangements because it typically
controls the goods before transferring them to the customer.

Other income is recognized when the right to receive is established, and the amount and timing of related
receipt is virtually certain.

The Group derecognises financial assets only when the contractual rights to cash flows from the financial assets
expire or when it transfer the financial assets and substantially all the associated risks and reward of ownership to
another entity. On derecognition of financial assets measured at amortized cost, the difference between the assets
carrying value and the sum of the consideration received and receivable, is recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss. In addition, on derecognition of an investment in a debt instrument classified as at FVTOCI, the
cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the investments revaluation reserve reclassified to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss. In contrast, on derecognition of an investment in equity instrument which the Group has
elected on initial recognition to measure at FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the
investments revaluation reserve is not reclassified to the consolidated statement of profit or loss, but is transferred to
retained earnings.

Financial assets and liabilities are off set and the net amount is reported in these consolidated statement of financial
position if the Group has a legal right to set-off the transactions and also intends either to settle on a net basis or to
realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

The Group derecognises its financial liabilities only when its obligations under the financial liabilities are discharged,
cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liabilities derecognised and the
consideration paid and payable, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Revenue from local sale of goods is recognized when the goods are dispatched and in case of export sales, when
the goods are shipped i.e. when performance obligation are satisfied.

Dividend is recognized when the right to receive is established.

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of acquisition over the fair value of the Holding Company’s share of the
net identifiable assets of the acquired subsidiary at the date of acquisition. Goodwill is tested for impairment annually
and whenever there is an indication that the value may be impaired, and carried at cost less accumulated impairment
losses, if any. Impairment losses on goodwill are not reversed. 
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6.5 Particulars of immovable property (i.e. land and building) in the name of Holding Company are as follows:

* Covered area includes multi-storey buildings.

6.6 Following are the particulars of the disposed assets having a book value exceed five hundred thousand rupees.

Cost Accumulated 
depreciation

Net book 
amount

Sale 
proceeds

Gain / 
(loss)

Particulars 
of buyer Relationship Mode of 

disposal

Plant and Machinery 

21,382,500      1,425,500            19,957,000         21,382,500    1,425,500    Efu General 
Insurance

Insurance 
Claim As per Contract

9,500,000        1,014,652            8,485,348          9,500,000      1,014,652    Efu General 
Insurance

Insurance 
Claim

As per Contract

30,882,500     2,440,152           28,442,348        30,882,500   2,440,152   
Vehicles

Mercedes

21,282,280      16,464,079          4,818,201          21,875,000    17,056,799  Tahir Mohsin Independent 
Party Negotiation

7,175,000        6,674,110            500,890             3,600,000      3,099,110    Tahir Javed Independent 
Party Negotiation

28,457,280     23,138,189          5,319,091          25,475,000   20,155,909 

Toyota Fortuner

8,072,875        2,798,596            5,274,279          10,000,000    4,725,721    Efu General 
Insurance

Insurance 
Claim As per Contract

8,072,875       2,798,596           5,274,279          10,000,000    4,725,721   
Kia Sportage

5,787,488        289,374               5,498,114          7,185,000      1,686,886    Nazeer Ahmed 
Arain

Independent 
party

Negotiation

5,359,418        267,971               5,091,447          6,635,000      1,543,553    Kia Lucky Motors Independent 
party

Negotiation

11,146,906      557,345              10,589,561        13,820,000    3,230,439   

Honda Civic
3,047,750        1,758,311            1,289,439          1,632,098      342,659      Muhammad Sabir Employee Company policy
2,673,800        1,791,984            881,816             1,038,720      156,904      Akram Shaheen Employee Company policy
5,721,550       3,550,295           2,171,255          2,670,818     499,563      

Honda City

3,411,164        341,117               3,070,048          4,157,996      1,087,949    Zaid M. Ali Habib Employee Company policy

3,411,164        341,117               3,070,048          4,157,996     1,087,949   

…………………………… Rupees ……………………………

* Total area
17 - Bangalore Town, Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi. Registered office / Head office 1000 sq. yd
C-230, Hub H.I.T.E., Balochistan. Manufacturing facility - Unit 1 7.54 acres
B-140, Hub H.I.T.E., Balochistan. Manufacturing facility - Unit 2 4.59 acres
G-1, Hub H.I.T.E., Balochistan. Manufacturing facility - Unit 3 3.486 acres
G-22, Hub H.I.T.E., Balochistan. Manufacturing facility - Unit 4 9.00 acres
38-C, Sundar Industrial Estate, Raiwind Road, Lahore. Manufacturing facility - Unit 5 4.02 acres
D-91, D-92 & D-94 North Western Zone, Port Qasim, Karachi Manufacturing facility - Unit 6 7.50 acres
E164-168, North Western Zone, Port Qasim, Karachi. Manufacturing facility - Unit 7 2.74 acres
E154-157, North Western Zone, Port Qasim, Karachi. Manufacturing facility - Unit 8 5.04 acres
G-1A, Hub H.I.T.E., Balochistan. Manufacturing facility - Unit 9 3.185 acres
E164-168, North Western Zone, Port Qasim, Karachi. Manufacturing facility - Unit 10 3.50 acres

orohsmaJ tcirtsiD .dabairooN ,aera E.T.I.S ,N/101-D ,M/101-D For future expansion 20.50 acres
Administrative purpose 2,209.57 sq. ft

Sabzi mandi road, Chak no. 241 Dist. Faisalabad. For future expansion 0.88 acres
39-B, Sundar Industrial Estate, Raiwind Road, Lahore. For future expansion 1.138 acres
EIZ/1/P-II-B, Eastern industrial Zone, Port Qasim, Karachi. For future expansion 15 acres

Locations Usage of immovable property

.ihcaraK ,yaB tneserC  )9R( 7 # tolP ,rewoT lraeP ,2042-42-2TP
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Cost Accumulated 
depreciation

Net book 
amount

Sale 
proceeds

Gain / 
(loss)

Particulars 
of buyer Relationship Mode of 

disposal

Kia Picanto

1,897,809        362,692               1,535,117          1,950,925      415,808      Kamran Hussain 
Naqvi Employee Company Policy

1,608,866        332,498               1,276,368          1,933,051      656,683      Ayesha Sabah Employee Company Policy
3,506,675       695,190              2,811,485          3,883,976     1,072,491   

Suzuki Cultus
2,220,719        648,943               1,571,776          2,097,981      526,205      Muhammad 

Ashraf Employee Company policy

1,542,567        429,176               1,113,391          1,936,680      823,289      Murtaza Mehdi Employee Company policy

1,521,368        464,186               1,057,182          1,832,620
      

775,438      Saeed Ullah Khan Employee Company policy

2,414,700        1,209,282            1,205,418          1,745,300      539,882      Saad Anjum Employee Company policy
1,490,911        287,000               1,203,911          1,524,796      320,885      Irfan Nazir Employee Company policy
1,543,217        473,252               1,069,965          1,441,480      371,515      Muhammad Asad Employee Company policy
1,521,367        484,132               1,037,235          1,423,580      386,345      Abdul Rasheed Employee Company policy
1,490,911        392,605               1,098,306          1,407,504      309,198      Uzair Rabbani Employee Company policy
1,512,053        742,067               769,986             1,112,832      342,846      Umber Jawed Employee Company policy
1,511,678        755,692               755,986             1,094,811      338,825      M Ashar Azhar Employee Company policy
1,765,250        884,037               881,213             1,094,455      213,242      M Asif Khan Employee Company policy
1,767,350        915,854               851,496             1,059,150      207,654      Shujat Ali Ansari Employee Company policy
1,512,853        571,522               941,331             706,240         (235,091)     Naveed Anwar Employee Company policy
1,771,850        852,109               919,741             706,100         (213,641)     Sohail Aslam Employee Company policy
1,403,250        838,656               564,594             697,925         133,331      Kamran Iftikhar Employee Company policy

24,990,044     9,948,513           15,041,531         19,881,454    4,839,923   
Suzuki Alto

1,203,267        350,952               852,315             1,804,520      952,205      Mehmood Ul 
Hassan Employee Company Policy

1,203,267        265,721               937,546             1,580,235      642,689      Imran Dawood Employee Company Policy
1,203,767        300,942               902,825             1,563,330      660,505      Rehan Ghouri Employee Company Policy

1,242,441        281,620               960,821             1,433,000      472,179      Efu General 
Insurance

Insurance 
Claim As per Contract

1,781,400        804,501               976,899             1,402,416      425,517      Abdul Rafay Employee Company Policy
1,559,579        259,929               1,299,650          1,370,018      70,368        Abdul Hakeem Employee Company Policy
1,242,441        498,356               744,085             1,349,273      605,188      Asim Ali Employee Company Policy
1,207,600        481,966               725,634             1,347,149      621,515      Anees Ahmed Employee Company Policy
1,203,267        233,968               969,299             1,183,350      214,051      Adil Masood Employee Company Policy
1,203,466        265,765               937,701             1,166,445      228,744      Nasir Maqbool Employee Company Policy
1,242,441        409,729               832,712             1,088,591      255,879      Sulman Khan Employee Company Policy

1,203,267        316,860               886,407             1,081,920      195,513      Abdul Saboor 
Khan Employee Company Policy

1,203,267        316,860               886,407             1,081,920      195,513      Touheed Amin Employee Company Policy
1,207,641        481,983               725,658             955,702         230,044      Keith James Employee Company Policy
1,211,536        483,536               728,000             938,004         210,004      Sharjeel Ahmed Employee Company Policy
1,217,727        562,801               654,926             852,513         197,587      Khalid Ali Employee Company Policy

1,211,927        583,698               628,229             796,419         168,190      Muhammad 
Farhan Employee Company Policy

1,211,927        583,698               628,229             796,418         168,189      M Imran Khan Employee Company Policy
1,242,441        422,430               820,011             1,052,305      232,294      Noman Shakeel Employee Company Policy
1,423,355        685,269               738,086             796,418         58,332        M Haseeb Iqbal Employee Company Policy
1,211,927        594,744               617,183             778,720         161,537      Hafiz Ahsan 

Azhar Employee Company Policy
1,325,905        637,347               688,558             761,188         72,630        Hadi Nawaz Employee Company Policy
1,325,905        699,943               625,962             678,450         52,488        Subhan Altaf Employee Company Policy
1,203,267        317,529               885,738             1,529,520      643,782      Mazhar Ali Employee Company Policy
1,433,000        701,396               731,604             761,272         29,668        Ovais Budhani Employee Company Policy
1,433,000        725,579               707,421             743,146         35,725        Saad Mahmood Employee Company Policy

33,359,028     12,267,122          21,091,906        28,892,242   7,800,336   

…………………………… Rupees ……………………………
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Cost Accumulated 
depreciation

Net book 
amount

Sale 
proceeds

Gain / 
(loss)

Particulars 
of buyer

Relationship Mode of 
disposal

Toyota Corolla
2,900,988        1,605,265            1,295,723          1,620,675      324,952      M Imran Khan Employee Company Policy

2,336,590        1,290,063            1,046,527          1,421,096      374,569      Muhammad 
Hassan Employee Company Policy

2,792,813        1,505,884            1,286,929          1,117,125      (169,804)     Zubair latif Employee Company Policy
1,924,250        1,302,704            621,546             766,880         145,334      M Nasir Khan Employee Company Policy
2,647,880        1,457,581            1,190,299          1,055,982      (134,317)     Salman Shahid Employee Company Policy
2,000,000        1,293,782            706,218             943,861         237,643      Syed Ali Ghalib Employee Company Policy
2,339,290        1,293,346            1,045,944          933,866         (112,078)     Amjad Kamal Employee Company Policy
2,336,790        1,328,203            1,008,587          931,866         (76,721)       Zaid Habib Employee Company Policy
2,779,891        1,365,483            1,414,408          2,072,518      658,110      Yousuf Employee Company Policy
1,935,100        1,274,719            660,381             824,396         164,015      Khalid Ahmed Employee Company Policy

2,005,500        1,354,613            650,887             818,700         167,813      Abdul Rasheed 
Paryani Employee Company Policy

1,926,750        1,316,100            610,650             766,880         156,230      Najam Ul Hassan Employee Company Policy
1,876,223        1,180,191            696,032             862,740         166,708      Zia Rahman Employee Company Policy
1,879,280        1,216,394            662,886             766,860         103,974      Abbas Ali Employee Company Policy

31,681,345      18,784,328         12,897,017        14,903,445    2,006,428   

Toyota Yaris
2,419,836        542,446               1,877,390          3,490,000      1,612,610    Ali Raza Kazmi Employee Company Policy
2,419,836       542,446              1,877,390          3,490,000     1,612,610    

152,766,703   72,623,141          80,143,563        127,174,931  47,031,369 

183,649,203   75,063,293         108,585,911       158,057,431  49,471,521  

6.6.1 All disposal are made through negotiation otherwise specified in 6.6 of these consolidated financial statements.

…………………………… Rupees ……………………………

Description Cost
Accumulated 
depreciation

Net book 
value

Sale proceed Gain / (loss)

Plant and Machinery 1,855,341         1,699,391         155,950            -                  (155,950)         
Furniture and Fixtures 389,755           299,665            90,090             -                  (90,090)           
Computers 6,381,164         3,632,304         2,748,860         1,014,458         (1,734,402)       
Equipments 529,110           367,816            161,294            40,000             (121,294)         
Vehicles 37,136,908       21,760,124        15,376,784       23,765,817       8,389,033        
Sub-total 46,292,278      27,759,300       18,532,978       24,820,275      6,287,297       
2023 - total 229,941,481 102,822,593 127,118,889 182,877,706 55,758,818

2022 - total 311,751,251     106,474,781      205,276,471     553,168,881     347,892,410    

Aggregate of assets disposed off having net book value not exceeding Rs. 500,000
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2023 2022
Note 

6.7 Capital work-in-progress

Civil works 2,797,473,664    1,811,198,835    
Plant and machinery 8,237,988,222    3,857,544,301    

sgnittif dna  tnempiuqE 449,497,520       26,037,400         
6.7.1 11,484,959,406  5,694,780,536    

6.7.1 Movement of capital work in progress:

Balance as at July 1, 2021 -                         196,764,243         801,243,839         971,931              998,980,013       
Capital expenditure incurred during the year 942,310,856       2,637,282,299      5,238,884,852      45,880,636         8,864,358,643    
Transferred to fixed assets (942,310,856)      (1,090,275,268)     (2,862,508,828)     (20,815,167)        (4,915,910,119)   
Advances to contractors -                         67,427,561           641,840,416         -                     709,267,977       

-                         -                      38,084,022           -                     38,084,022         
Balance as at June 30, 2022 -                    1,811,198,835       3,857,544,301     26,037,400        5,694,780,536   

Capital expenditure incurred during the year -                    1,836,066,362      7,265,747,103     572,000,639       9,673,814,104    
-                    -                      123,468,335        -                    123,468,335      

Transferred to operating fixed assets -                    (849,791,533)       (3,641,262,544)    (148,540,519)      (4,639,594,596)  
Advances to contractors -                    -                      269,948,447        -                    269,948,447      
Expenses capitalized -                    -                      362,542,580        -                    362,542,580      
Balance as at June 30, 2023 -                    2,797,473,664     8,237,988,222     449,497,520       11,484,959,406  

2023 2022
7 INTANGIBLE ASSETS Note 

As  at July 1
Cost 7.1 99,973,357        98,973,357         

Accumulated amortization (93,977,917)       (65,242,574)        
Opening net book value 5,995,440          33,730,783         
Addition for the year -                    1,000,000           
Amortization charge for the year (3,768,733)         (28,735,343)        
Closing net book value 2,226,707          5,995,440           

As at June 30
Cost 99,973,357        99,973,357         

Accumulated amortization (97,746,650)       (93,977,917)        
Closing net book value 2,226,707          5,995,440           
Amortization rate 33.33% 33.33%

7.1

7.2 The amortization charge has been allocated as follows:
Cost of sales 31 -                    12,631,650         
Selling and distribution expenses 32 -                    6,974,313           
Administrative expenses 33 3,768,733          9,129,381           

3,768,733          28,735,344         
8 LONG TERM INVESTMENTS

Investment in associated company 8.1 3,225,156,930    3,144,584,786    
8.1 Investment in associated companies

2023 2022
       -------------Rupees------------

Balance as at July 1      3,144,584,786      3,180,003,578 
       428,075,707        216,582,895 

(347,503,563)     (252,001,687)      
Balance as at June 30 3,225,156,930    3,144,584,786    
Summarized financial information in respect of the Company’s associate as at June 30 is set out below:

------------Rupees---------

Civil works Equipment 
and fittings TotalPlant and 

machinery

The total shareholding of the Holding Company in the Bank of Khyber (the Bank) is 269,383,781 (June 2022: 269,383,781) shares which
represents 24.43% of paid-up capital of the Bank (June 2022: 24.43%). In addition to this, the Holding Company also has representation on the
board of directors of the Bank. The Bank concludes its annual financial results on December 31 as required by the State Bank of Pakistan for
financial institutions. Amounts in these unconsolidated financial statements have been taken from audited financial statements of the Bank for
the year ended December 31, 2022 and unaudited interim financial statement for the six months period ended June 30, 2023. Adjustment to
confirm to the Bank's accounting policies is not warranted as the Bank is not engaged in like transaction under similar circumstances.

------------Rupees---------

Software includes licenses which are amortized on straight line basis over a period of 36 months.

Expenses capitalized

Trial production cost incurred - net

Leasehold Land

-----------------------------------------Rupees---------------------------------------------

The market value of holding in the Bank as at June 30, 2023 was Rs. 3,633.98 million (June 30, 2022: Rs. 4,040.756million).

The Bank of Khyber

Share of profit
Share of other comprehensive loss
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2023 2022
Un-audited Un-audited

  345,762,514,000   394,240,287,000 

  328,873,320,000   377,685,898,000 

      9,601,237,000       7,065,905,000 

      1,752,436,000         886,632,000 

    (1,422,620,719)     (1,029,987,000)

Total comprehensive income / (loss) for the period          329,815,281        (143,355,000)

2023 2022
9 LONG TERM DEPOSITS Note 

Utilities 15,358,378         15,358,378         
Others 14,335,745         12,032,048         
JS Bank - Security Deposit 3,478,000          -                    

33,172,123         27,390,426         

10 STORES AND SPARES

Stores 127,010,941       128,689,386       
Spare parts 493,434,736       383,713,579       
Others 35,182,533         23,770,352         

655,628,210       536,173,317       

10.1 This includes provision for slow moving amounting to Rs 8,591,420 (June 2022: Rs 8,591,420 )

11 STOCK-IN-TRADE
Raw materials 11.2 & 11.3 10,005,337,837  4,137,933,253    
Packing materials 11.2 2,272,074,000    1,419,657,519    
Work-in-process 31 644,262,138       416,878,374       
Finished goods 11.2 3,354,882,011    2,526,640,317    

16,276,555,986  8,501,109,463    

11.1 Stock-in-trade of the Group is under hypothecation charge against short term finances as mentioned in note 27.

11.2 Reconciliation for stock-in-trade
Note Raw 

materials
 Packing 
materials 

 Finished 
goods 

Stock-in-trade 10,097,100,512    2,385,338,077    3,354,882,011    
Provision for slow moving

 - opening (47,738,834)        (127,297,185)      -                    
 - charge (103,654,713)       (104,961,339)      -                    
 - Write-off 59,630,872          118,994,447       -                    
 - closing (91,762,675)         (113,264,077)      -                    

Stock-in-trade-net 10,005,337,837    2,272,074,000    3,354,882,011    

Raw 
materials

 Packing 
materials 

 Finished 
goods 

Stock-in-trade 4,185,672,088      1,546,954,703     2,526,640,317    
Provision for slow moving

 - opening (13,576,856)          (152,848,549)      -                    
 - charge (57,425,947)          (34,666,750)        -                    
 - Write-off 23,263,968           60,218,115         -                    
 - closing (47,738,835)          (127,297,184)      -                    

Stock-in-trade-net 4,137,933,253      1,419,657,519     2,526,640,317    

11.3 This includes raw material in transit amounting to Rs. 2,021,268,243 (June 30, 2022: Rs. nil).

----------------------- Rupees --------------------

----------------------- Rupees --------------------

2022

2023

Total assets

Total liabilities

Revenue

Profit for the period

------------Rupees------------

The Bank of Khyber

Other comprehensive loss for the period

------------Rupees---------
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2023 2022
12 TRADE DEBTS Note

Considered good
 - export-secured     5,805,638,355      1,430,204,301 
 - local- unsecured     5,022,640,640      4,505,174,703 

 Trade debts 12.3    10,828,278,995      5,935,379,004 

Allowance for expected credit loss 12.2       (158,464,042)       (107,970,640)
 Trade debts - net 10,669,814,953  5,827,408,364    

12.1 Trade debts of the Group is under hypothecation charge against short term finances as mentioned in note 27.

2023 2022
12.2 Allowance for expected credit loss Note

Balance at the beginning of the year       (107,970,640)       (100,970,640)
Charge during the year - net 32        (50,493,402)           (7,000,000)
Balance at the end of the year (158,464,042)     (107,970,640)      

12.3 Age analysis
Not Due 9,448,930,778    5,282,250,777    
More than 45 days but not more than 3 months 590,569,095              263,695,837 
More than 3 months but not more than 6 months 423,417,227              160,765,756 
More than 6 months but not more than 1 year 257,745,546              144,757,519 
More than 1 year 107,616,349       83,909,116         

10,828,278,995  5,935,379,005    
13 LOANS AND ADVANCES

Loan to employees - secured 13.1 102,209,828       58,525,902         
Advances - unsecured

-   Suppliers 2,984,605,261    1,880,355,972    
-   LC margins 13.2 265,496,495       55,190,647         

3,352,311,584    1,994,072,521    

13.1

2023 2022
Note

13.2          63,748,128          38,165,941 
        181,457,668          11,239,764 
           8,127,380            4,068,500 
                      -              1,716,442 
          12,163,319                       -   
       265,496,495          55,190,647 

14 TRADE DEPOSITS AND SHORT TERM PREPAYMENTS
Trade deposits - unsecured 312,583,280       36,442,097         
Short term prepayments 1,283,890          11,343,091         
Current maturity of lease deposits- Conventional 9 -                    436,100             
Current maturity of lease deposits- Islamic 9 -                    2,221,600           

313,867,170       50,442,888         
15 SHORT TERM INVESTMENTS

Held at:
Amortised cost 15.1 837,419,971       1,128,192,640    
Fair value through other comprehensive income 15.2 834,465,000       190,000,000       

1,671,884,971     1,318,192,640    
15.1

15.2

2023 2022
16 OTHER RECEIVABLES Note

Export rebate 36,605,266        17,338,462         
Sales tax carry forward 2,147,972,064    -                    
Other receivables 16.1 136,402,027       100,402,029       

2,320,979,357    117,740,491       
16.1

Soneri Bank Limited 

------------Rupees---------
Allied Bank Limited 
Habib Bank Limited 
Meezan Bank Limited 
Dubai Islamic Bank Pakistan

This amount includes Rs. 100.217 million (June 30 2022: Rs.100.217 million) due from Nazir of the Hounrable Sindh High Court as referred in
note 28.1.2.

These investments are made in trade deposit reciepts of various banks at the rates range from 6.85% to 18% (June 2022: 6.85% to 14.47%).

------------Rupees---------

------------Rupees---------

These represents intrest free loan that are to be paid within a period of one year in equal monthly installments as per policy. Any outstanding 
laon due from an employee at the time of leaving the service is adjustable against the final settlement of staff.

------------Rupees---------

These investments are made in term finance certificates in various banks, which have been listed on Pakistan stock exchange. The fair value of
these certificates range from 95.33% to 99.38% of their face value (June 2022: 95%).
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2023 2022
17 TAXATION - net Note

Advance income tax     2,343,533,498      2,000,284,026 
Provision for taxation 38    (1,228,350,029)       (833,538,584)

      1,115,183,469      1,166,745,442 
18 CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Cash in hand 6,126,486          4,896,610           
Cash at banks:

- current accounts - conventional 1,240,343,136    217,301,926       
- current accounts - Islamic 404,696,981       150,851,695       

1,651,166,603     373,050,231       

19 ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP SHARE CAPITAL 2023 2022

Note

2023 2022

53,072,940    53,072,940         530,729,400 530,729,400       

13,284,000    13,284,000  132,840,000       132,840,000       

66,356,940    66,356,940  663,569,400       663,569,400       

20 Non-Controlling Interest

2023 2022

     2,589,761,796        988,867,012 
    9,585,097,767      4,473,803,184 

   (2,301,246,738)       (318,049,340)

   (4,688,070,535)    (1,468,578,313)
5,185,542,290    3,676,042,543    

1,180,807,449    812,707,126       

Sales 737,747,738       463,652,582       
(488,421,285)     (255,668,701)      
(490,500,253)     (259,060,604)      
(106,447,913)      (57,604,330)        

405,018,532       8,876,992           
(5,351,116,020)   (3,275,253,727)   
4,936,328,913    3,293,755,483    

(9,768,576)         27,378,748         

21 RESERVES

Capital Reserve
 - Share premium 21.1      1,472,531,500      1,472,531,500 
 - Reserve arising due to  amalgamation 21.2         916,862,067        916,862,067 
Revenue Reserve
- Loss on remeasurement of investment in associate       (701,503,895)       (406,125,879)
- Unrealized loss on remeasurement of investment
   classified as fair value through OCI - net of tax (11,962,300)        (7,645,000)          

 - Unappropriated profit    13,867,160,880      8,814,914,136 

Total reserves 21.3    15,543,088,252    10,790,536,824 

21.1

21.2
21.3

------------Rupees---------

Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Below is summarised financial information of Hudson Pharma (Private) Limited and Ismail Resin (Private) Limited that has a non-controlling
interest of 21.47% (2022: 21.74%) and 25% (2022: 25%) stake respectively which is material to the Group. The amounts disclosed are before
inter-group eliminations.

Cash flow from investing activities 
Cash flow from financing activities

Summarised Statement of Financial Position
Position

Movement of the total reserves have been reflected in consolidated statement of changes in equity.
This represents reserve created under scheme of arrangement for amalgamation of Astro Plastics (Private) Limited with the Holding Company.

This represents share premium amount pertaining to issue of shares at premium. This reserve can be utilized by the Holding Company for the
purpose specified in section 81(2) of the Companies Act, 2017.

Loss for the year / period
Total comprehensive loss
Loss allocated to NCI

Summarised Statement of Cash flows

Summarised Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

Number of Shares

Cash flow from operating activities

Ordinary shares of Rs.10 each fully paid in cash 
Ordinary shares of Rs.10 each issued as fully paid for consideration other
than cash under scheme of arrangement for amalgamation

Current liabilities 

------------Rupees---------

------------Rupees---------

Accumulated NCI

Current assets 
Non-current assets 

Non-current liabilities 
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2023 2022
22 LONG TERM FINANCES - secured Note --------- Rupees ---------

Long term finances - secured - conventional 22.1       21,679,053,252      13,913,957,874 

Long term finances - secured - islamic 22.2         6,133,953,620        7,201,383,105 

Total long term finances - secured 27,813,006,872     21,115,340,979     

22.1 CONVENTIONAL
Installments Repayment Mark-up Number of 2023 2022

 mode period (Rate) Installments --------- Rupees ---------

Habib Bank Limited

- Term Finance - 
    FCY

Monthly 2021-2024
1 month 

EURIBOR + 
1.75%

36 37,536,947            385,011,855          

- SBP-LTFF Quarterly 2018-2030 SBP + 0.25% 36 258,425,301          313,616,859          

- Term finance Monthly 2017-2023
1 month 

KIBOR + 
0.25%

60 -                        83,333,341           

- SBP-LTFF Quarterly 2021-2030 SBP + 0.25% 34 1,202,042,649       1,370,077,235       

- SBP-TERF Quarterly 2022-2031 SBP + 1.25% 36 207,817,224          234,533,253          

- Term finance Quarterly 2025-2033
3 month 

KIBOR + 
1.25%

32 98,279,764            -                       

- Term finance Monthly 2024-2028
1 month 

KIBOR + 
0.75%

48 1,130,505,670       -                       

- SBP-TERF Quarterly 2024-2031 SBP+1.25% 32 1,187,641,934        305,005,000          

- SBP-LTFF Quarterly 2024-2031 SBP+1.25% 32 44,160,305            44,160,305           

- Term finance Quarterly 2024-2031
3 month 

KIBOR + 
1.25%

32 406,878,858          -                       

Bank Al-Habib Limited

- SBP-LTFF Quarterly 2019-2029 SBP + 0.75% 32 239,118,000          289,118,690          

- SBP-LTFF Quarterly 2020-2029 SBP + 0.50% 32 37,415,000            44,503,000           

MCB Bank Limited 

- SBP-LTFF Quarterly 2018-2028 SBP + 0.75% 36 169,457,553          207,422,020          

- SBP-LTFF Quarterly 2020-2030 SBP + 0.25% 36 352,335,158          406,545,634          

- SBP-TERF Quarterly 2024-2031 SBP + 1% 32 377,849,792          258,840,000          

- Term finance Monthly 2024-2029
3 months 
KIBOR + 

0.80%
60 1,000,000,000       -                       

Allied Bank Limited

- SBP-LTFF Semi-annual 2022-2031 SBP 
+0.25%/0.75% 18 1,457,858,000              1,652,227,500 

Balance carried forward 8,207,322,155       5,594,394,692       

Financier / Facility 
type
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Installments Repayment Mark-up Number of 2023 2022
 mode period (Rate) Installments --------- Rupees ---------

Balance brought forward 8,207,322,155       5,594,394,692       

- Term finance Monthly 2021-2024
3 months 
KIBOR + 

0.25%
48 100,000,012          200,000,001          

- Term finance Quarterly 2024-2027 3 months 
KIBOR + 1% 16 245,000,000          245,000,000          

- SBP-LTFF Quarterly 2024-2031 SBP+1.25% 32 489,021,000          454,922,000          

- Term finance Quarterly 2024-2031
3 Months 
KIBOR + 

1.25%
32 781,129,000          -                       

Pak Brunei Investment Company Limited

- SBP-LTFF Quarterly 2020-2029 SBP + 0.5% 32 367,994,300          430,499,000          

- SBP-LTFF Quarterly 2021-2030 SBP + 0.5% 32            151,434,800           175,436,900 

Pak Oman Investment Company Limited

- SBP-LTFF Quarterly 2022-2030 SBP + 1.5% 32            363,770,621           418,205,342 

- SBP-LTFF Quarterly 2025-2032 SBP + 1.5% 32            286,519,000 264,884,000          

Bank Al falah Limited

- Term finance Quarterly 2022-2025
6 month 

KIBOR + 
0.75%

16           250,000,000           375,000,000 

- Term finance Quarterly 2023-2026
3 month 

KIBOR + 
0.75%

16           450,000,000           600,000,000 

- SBP-LTFF Quarterly 2017-2029 SBP+0.5% 40/36            241,381,235           291,512,404 

- SBP-REFF Quarterly 2025-2035 SBP+0.5% 40            199,927,000                          -   

- SBP-TERF Quarterly 2024-2031 SBP+1.25% 32 249,248,000                    238,191,000 

- SBP-Payroll finance Quarterly 2021-2023 SBP+3% 8                           -             161,966,566 

- SBP-LTFF Quarterly 2022-2030 SBP+0.30% 32            101,374,217           117,594,093 

- Term finance Monthly 2019-2023 1 month 
KIBOR + 0.3%

36 -                                    55,555,556 

- SBP-LTFF Quarterly 2025-2033 SBP+1.50% 32           400,845,950                          -   

- SBP-Payroll finance Quarterly 2021-2023 SBP+3% 8 -                                    12,105,190 

- SBP-TERF Semi Annual 2024-2031 SBP+1.5% 16 1,097,677,000              1,079,177,000 

- SBP-TERF Quarterly 2023-2031 SBP + 1.25% 32 1,495,913,586       1,499,997,368       

- Term finance Monthly 2022-2027
1 month 

KIBOR + 
0.75%

60 391,666,671          491,666,667          

Balance carried forward 15,870,224,547     12,706,107,779     

JS Bank Limited

Financier / Facility 
type

Habib Metropolitan Bank Ltd

The Bank of Punjab

202



Installments Repayment Mark-up Number of 2023 2022
 mode period (Rate) Installments --------- Rupees ---------

Balance brought forward 15,870,224,547     12,706,107,779     

- Term finance Monthly 2019-2023
1 month 

KIBOR + 
0.25%

48 -                        100,000,011          

- SBP-LTFF Quarterly 2021-2030 SBP+0.65% 36 747,434,248          858,921,136          

- SBP-TERF Quarterly 2022-2031 SBP+1% 36 422,987,081          467,668,749          
- SBP-FFSAP Quarterly 2023-2030 SBP+0.75% 28 129,734,000          139,714,000          

- Term finance Quarterly 2024-2031
3 month 

KIBOR + 
2.15%

32 345,288,654          50,000,000           

- SBP-TERF Quarterly 2024-2031 SBP+2.15% 32 1,000,000,000       103,770,000          

Askari Bank Limited
- SBP-REFF Quarterly 2021-2031 SBP+0.50% 40 167,001,575          190,036,275          

- Term finance Monthly 2019-2024
1 month 

KIBOR + 
0.50%

48 91,666,679            191,666,675          

- SBP-Payroll finance Quarterly 2021-2023 SBP+1.5% 8 -                        243,000,845          

- Term finance Monthly 2023-2027
1 month 

KIBOR + 
0.75%

48 437,499,998          500,000,000          

- Syndicated Term 
Finance Monthly 2024-2029

1 month 
KIBOR + 

0.80%
60 4,250,000,000       -                       

- SBP-Payroll finance
Quarterly 2021-2023 SBP+1.5%

8 -                        19,245,688           

Soneri Bank Limited

- Term finance Monthly 2019-2025
1 month 

KIBOR + 
0.75%

60 191,666,679          291,666,675          

- Term finance Monthly 2023-2028
1 month 

KIBOR + 
0.75%

60 441,666,669          500,000,000          

PAIR Investment Company Limited

- Term finance Quarterly 2021-2025
3 month 

KIBOR + 
0.75%

16 131,250,000          206,250,000          

- SBP-REFF Quarterly 2023-2033 SBP+0.50% 40 199,519,941           130,568,973          
- SBP-LTFF Quarterly 2025-2033 SBP+1.50% 32 23,500,000            -                       

Total long term loan - secured 24,449,440,071     16,698,616,806     
Less: Current portion of long term finances shown 

under current liabilities (2,770,386,819)      (2,784,658,932)      
      21,679,053,252      13,913,957,874 

22.2 ISLAMIC
Installments Repayment Mark-up Number of

 mode period (Rate) Installments

MCB Islamic Bank ltd 

- Islamic financing Quarterly 2018-2023
3 months 
KIBOR + 

0.25%
20 -                        70,000,000           

- SBP ITERF Quarterly 2023-2030 SBP+0.75% 32 349,986,000          349,987,639          

- Islamic financing Quarterly 2023-2028
3 months 
KIBOR + 

0.75%
20 270,000,000          300,000,000          

Balance carried forward 619,986,000                    719,987,639 

Financier / Facility 
type

Financier / Facility 
type

National Bank of Pakistan
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Installments Repayment Mark-up Number of 2023 2022
 mode period (Rate) Installments --------- Rupees ---------

Balance brought forward 619,986,000                    719,987,639 

- SBP ILTFF Quarterly 2022-2027 SBP+1% 20            189,166,035           247,455,881 
- SBP ILTFF Quarterly 2024-2030 SBP+1% 20 412,638,448                    270,475,059 

- Islamic financing Monthly 2023-2029
1 months 
KIBOR + 

0.75%
78                           -             600,000,000 

- Islamic financing Monthly 2022-2025
1 month 

KIBOR + 
0.75%

48                           -             687,500,005 

- Islamic financing Monthly 2022-2025
1 month 

KIBOR + 
0.75%

48                           -             308,333,337 

- Islamic financing Monthly 2024-2030
1 months 
KIBOR + 

0.85%
72 600,000,000                                   -   

- Islamic financing Monthly 2024-2026 1 month 
KIBOR + 1% 24 562,500,007                                   -   

- Islamic financing Monthly 2024-2025
1 month 

KIBOR + 
0.85%

18 258,333,339                                   -   

- Islamic financing Monthly 2020-2023
3 month 

KIBOR + 
0.25%

24                           -               62,500,007 

- Syndicated Monthly 2024-2028
3 month 

KIBOR + 
0.80%

60         4,000,000,000        4,000,000,000 

- Islamic financing Quarterly 2020-2025
3 months 
KIBOR + 

0.25%
20 80,000,000                      120,000,000 

- Islamic financing Monthly 2024-2028
1 months 
KIBOR + 

0.80%
60 150,000,000                    150,000,000 

- SBP-LTFF Quarterly 2021-2030 SBP+1% 36 224,827,504          258,135,278          

- Islamic financing Quarterly 2023-2028
3 month 

KIBOR + 
0.65%

20 475,000,000          500,000,000          

Total long term loan - secured 7,572,451,333       7,924,387,206       
Less: Current portion of long term finances shown 

under current liabilities (1,438,497,713)      (723,004,101)        
6,133,953,620       7,201,383,105       

22.3

22.4 The Group's total limit for long term loan amounts to Rs. 39,557 million. (2022: Rs. 34,187 million).

Dubai Islamic Bank Pakistan Limited

Faysal Bank Limited

Financier / Facility 
type

Meezan Bank Limited

These represent financings for property, plant, and equipment. The above mentioned facilities are secured by way of creation of
equitable mortgage and first pari-passu / ranking charge over present and future fixed assets of the Group and personal guarantees
of sponsors.

Bank Islami Pakistan Limited 
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23 LEASE LIABILITIES 

2023 2022
--------- Rupees ---------

Lease liability             32,938,848             19,221,640 
           (10,826,930)             (7,892,005)

22,111,918             11,329,635           

As at July 1              19,221,640             62,166,883 
Additions              27,956,291             11,734,621 
Interest expense relating to lease liabilities                4,112,592               3,321,861 
Payments (Lease & interest)            (18,351,675)           (58,001,725)
As at June 30 32,938,848            19,221,640           
Less : Current portion (10,826,930)          (7,892,005)            

22,111,918             11,329,635           

The Group has lease contract for vehicles, which generally have lease term of 3 years.Under the agreements, lease rentals are payable
in 36 equal monthly, 12 equal quarterly and 6 equal biannually installments. Taxes, repairs, replacement and insurance costs, if any,
are borne by the Holding Company. The financings from conventional banks carry mark-up at rates ranging from 14.75% to 23.08%
(2022: 7.76% to 16.16.%) per annum and financing from Islamic banks carry mark-up at rates 16.08% (2022: 8.14% to 12.07%)
approximately which have been used as a discounting factor. The Holding Company has the option to purchase the asset upon
completion of the lease period.

The net carrying amount of the assets held under finance lease arrangement is Rs. 42.41 million (2022: Rs. 26.66 million) (refer note
6.1)

These are secured against deposits of Rs. 3.44 million (2022: Rs 3.78 million), title of ownership of right-of-use assets and personal
guarantees of the directors of the Group.

Maturity analysis of lease repayments for which the Group has committed to pay in future under the lease agreements are due as
follows:

Less: Current portion

Conventional
Up to one year 15,320,679      4,493,749      10,826,930        5,442,769        1,482,529        3,960,240        

Later than one year but
not  later than five years 25,059,928      2,948,010      22,111,918        10,615,689      1,507,654        9,108,035        

40,380,607      7,441,759      32,938,848        16,058,458      2,990,183        13,068,275      
Islamic
Up to one year -                 -                -                   4,212,337        280,572          3,931,765        

Later than one year but
not  later than five years -                 -                -                   2,221,600        -                 2,221,600        

-                 -                -                   6,433,937        280,572          6,153,365        

40,380,607      7,441,759      32,938,848        22,492,395      3,270,755        19,221,640      

Present value 
of minimum 

lease payments

Present value
of minimum

lease payments

2023 2022

---------------------------------------- Rupees ---------------------------------------

Minimum 
lease 

payments

Financial 
charges 

allocated

Minimum lease 
payments

Financial 
charges 

allocated
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2023 2022
Note

24 DEFERRED LIABILITIES

Provision for staff gratuity scheme - unfunded 24.2.3 741,713,640      599,355,750       
Deferred tax liability 24.3 1,777,653,106   1,793,253,925    

2,519,366,746   2,392,609,675    

24.1 Provision for staff gratuity scheme - unfunded

24.1.1 Risks on account of staff gratuity scheme - unfunded

24.1.2

24.1.3

24.1.4

24.2 Significant actuarial assumptions 2023 2022

Financial assumptions
Discount rate (per annum) 16.25% 13.25%
Expected rate of increase in salaries (per annum) 16.25% 13.25%

Demographic assumptions
Mortality rates (for death in service)

Retirement assumption 60 years 60 years

2023 2022
24.2.1 Note

Present value of defined benefit obligation 24.2.3 741,713,640      599,355,750       
Net liability in balance sheet 24.2.4 741,713,640      599,355,750       

24.2.2 Maturity Profile 

1-5 Years 601,137,788      457,685,998       
6-10 Years 1,021,009,161    620,140,896       
10 Years onwards 25,076,028,263 11,127,491,786  

Weighted average duration 8 Years 8 Years 

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position 
reconciliation

The Group faces the following risk on account of staff gratuity scheme.

Adjusted
SLIC 2001-2005

Adjusted
SLIC 2001-2005

The risk that the actual mortality experience is different than the assumed mortality. This effect is more
pronounced in schemes where the age and service distribution is on the higher side.

Withdrawal Risk
The risk of actual withdrawals experience is different from assumed withdrawal probability. The significance of
the withdrawal risk varies with the age, service and the entitled benefits of the beneficiary.

--------- Rupees ---------

--------- Rupees ---------

In accordance with the requirements of IAS-19 “Employee Benefits”, actuarial valuation was carried out as at
June 30, 2023 using the “Projected Unit Credit Method”. Provision has been made in these consolidated
financial statements to cover obligations in accordance with the actuarial recommendations. Details of
significant assumptions used for the valuation and disclosures in respect of above-mentioned schemes are as
follows:

The risk that the final salary at the time of cessation of service is greater than what we assumed. Since the
benefit is calculated on the final salary (which will closely reflect inflation and other macroeconomic factors),
the benefit amount increases as salary increases.

Final Salary Risk (linked to inflation risk) 

Mortality Risk
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2023 2022
24.2.3 Movement in the defined benefit obligation Note

Present value of defined benefit obligation as at July 1 599,355,750      472,523,930       
Current service cost 125,241,516       93,500,459        
Past service cost -                    2,899,021          
Interest cost 73,297,996        43,769,487        
Remeasurement on obligation 24.2.7 23,668,844        46,283,511        
Payments during the year (70,339,974)      (49,961,384)       
Benefits payable transferred to short term liability (9,510,492)        (9,659,274)         
Present value of defined benefit obligation as at June 30 741,713,640      599,355,750       

24.2.4 Movement in the net liability at reporting date is as follows:

Opening balance of net liability 599,355,750      472,523,930       
Charge for the year 24.2.5 198,539,512      140,168,967       
Remeasurements recognized in 'OCI' 24.2.7 23,668,844        46,283,511        
Payments during the year (70,339,974)      (49,961,384)       
Benefits payable transferred to short term liability (9,510,492)        (9,659,274)         
Closing balance of net liability 741,713,640      599,355,750       

24.2.5

Current service cost 125,241,516       93,500,459        
Past service cost -                    2,899,021          
Interest cost 73,297,996        43,769,487        
Charge for the year 198,539,512      140,168,967       

24.2.6

2023 2022

24.2.7 Remeasurement recognized in 'other comprehensive income'
Experience losses 23,668,844        46,283,511        
Related deferred tax (4,749,773)        (10,113,932)       

18,919,071         36,169,579        
24.2.8 Amounts for the current & previous four years are as follows:

24.2.9 The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to changes in the weighted principal assumption is:

Discount rate 1%        681,574,093        615,057,692 
Salary growth rate 1% 795,716,050       520,936,537       

24.2.10

--------- Rupees ---------

--------- Rupees ---------

The amounts recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or 
loss account against defined benefit scheme are as follows:

Impact on defined benefit obligation

Change in
assumptions 

 Increase in 
assumption 

 Decrease in 
assumption 

For the year ended June 30, 2024, expected provisions to the staff retirement benefit scheme is Rs. 274.498
million.

 --------------Rupees-------------- 

The above sensitivity analysis is based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions
constant. In practice, this is unlikely to occur, and changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated. When
calculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to significant actuarial assumptions the same method
(present value of the defined benefit obligation calculated with the projected unit credit method at the end of
the reporting period) has been applied as when calculating the staff retirement gratuity recognized within the
consolidated statement of financial position.

Comparison for five years 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019

Present value of the defined 
benefit obligation 741,713,640    599,355,750    472,523,930    458,656,452    369,541,421    

------------------------------------------------------------Rupees---------------------------------------------------------
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------------------------------------------------------------Rupees---------------------------------------------------------

2023 2022
24.3 Deferred taxation

- accelerated tax depreciation allowances 1,871,225,378   1,866,214,416    
-  provision for gratuity (153,258,709)     (133,174,703)     
-  allowance for expected credit loss (34,862,090)      (25,427,086)       
-  investment in associates at fair value through OCI 143,326,392      131,240,570       
-  STI - Term finance certificates (1,781,868)         (2,355,000)         
-  provision for stores and spares (1,890,112)         (2,023,279)         
-  provision for stock in trade (45,105,885)       (41,220,993)       

Deferred tax liability 1,777,653,106   1,793,253,925    

24.3.1 The movement in temporary differences is as follows:

2023 2022
Note 

25 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
Trade creditors 7,316,148,050   1,817,476,508    
Accrued liabilities 2,055,918,056   1,167,868,682    
Gratuity payable 25.2 9,510,492          9,659,273          
Workers' profit participation fund 25.3 333,060,046      165,092,738       
Workers' welfare fund 144,967,468      69,121,605        
Sales tax payable - net 10,517,648        246,788,468       
Other payables 25.1 535,000,000      -                    
Other liabilities 13,870,460        28,614,497        

10,418,992,220  3,504,621,771    

25.1

25.2 This represents staff gratuity payable transferred to short term liability (note 24.2.3)
2023 2022

Note 
25.3 Workers' profit participation fund

Balance at the beginning of the year 165,092,738      106,257,803       
Contribution for the year 34 381,493,334      181,898,959       
Interest on funds utilized in the Company’s business 36 2,208,112          4,285,279          

548,794,184      292,442,041       
Less: Payments made during the year (215,734,138)     (127,349,303)     
Balance at the end of the year 333,060,046      165,092,738       

This represents advance from Sponsor directors Mr. Muhammad M. Ismail ,Mr. Maqsood Ismail Ahmed and 
Mr Ahmed Ismail amounting to Rs 82.5 million (2022: Nil), Rs 262.5 million (2022 : Nil) & Rs. 190 million 
(2022 : Nil) respectively to meet the Group's cashflow requirement and is payable on demand. 

--------- Rupees ---------

The details of deferred tax on temporary differences are as follows:

--------- Rupees ---------

--------- Rupees ---------

Provision for gratuity (112,900,132)    (10,160,639)    (10,113,932)     (133,174,703)    (15,334,233)     (4,749,773)         (153,258,709)   
Allowance for expected credit loss (25,484,990)      57,904           -                 (25,427,086)      (9,435,004)      -                    (34,862,090)    
Investment in associates at fair value through OCI 136,553,389     32,487,434     (37,800,253)     131,240,570     64,211,356      (52,125,534)        143,326,392    
Provision for stores & spares (2,168,474)        145,195         -                 (2,023,279)        133,167           -                    (1,890,112)       
Provision for stock in trade (42,005,772)      784,779         -                 (41,220,993)      (3,884,892)      -                    (45,105,885)     
Accelerated tax depreciation allowances 1,891,286,053   (25,071,637)    -                 1,866,214,416  5,010,962        1,871,225,378  
Term Finance Certificates-Habib Bank Limited (1,302,384)        -                (1,052,616)      (2,355,000)        1,790,832        (1,217,700)          (1,781,868)       

1,843,977,690   (1,756,964)     (48,966,801)     1,793,253,925  42,492,188      (58,093,007)       1,777,653,106  

Recognized in
 statement of 

other 
comprehensive 

income

Balance as at 
July 1, 2021

Balance as at 
June 30, 2023

Recognized in
 statement of 

other 
comprehensive 

income
-----------------------------------------------------------------------Rupees-----------------------------------------------------------------------

Recognized in
Statement of 
profit or loss

Balance as at
June 30, 2022

Recognized in
 statement of 
profit or loss
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2023 2022
26 ACCRUED MARK-UP Note 

Accrued mark-up on:
Conventional

- long term finances - secured 368,300,498      142,637,413       
- short term finances - secured 687,556,038      165,059,977       

Islamic
- long term finances - secured 117,269,766      65,630,173        
- short term finances - secured 27,219,938        13,812,511        

1,200,346,240   387,140,074       
27 SHORT TERM FINANCES - Secured

From banking companies

Term finances - conventional 27.1 1,649,997,917   530,000,000       
Term finances - islamic 27.2 452,236,440      286,170,800       
Export refinances 27.3 7,565,500,000   6,215,496,502    
Finance against discounting of export bills / receivables 27.4 -                    899,016,236       
Running finance utilized under mark-up arrangements 27.5 5,440,548,535   1,158,075,382    

15,108,282,892  9,088,758,920    

27.1

27.2

27.3

27.4

27.5

28 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

28.1 Contingencies
28.1.1

These represent facilities for term finances arranged from various banks aggregating to Rs. 6,365 million (2022:
Rs. 1,565 million). These are secured against pari-passu / ranking hypothecation over stocks and book debts of
the Group along with the personal guarantees of the directors. These carry mark-up at the rates ranging from
16.20% to 22.20% per annum (2022: 7.18% to 15% per annum).

These represent facilities for term finances arranged from various banks aggregating to Rs. 800 million (2022:
Rs. 800 million). These are secured against pari-passu/ranking hypothecation over stocks and book debts of
the Group along with the personal guarantees of the directors. These carry mark-up at the rates ranging from
12.64% to 22.27% per annum (2022:  8.70% to 13.94% per annum).

These represent facilities for export refinance arranged from various banks aggregating to Rs. 7,665 million
(2022: Rs. 6,265 million). These were secured against pari-passu/ ranking hypothecation of stocks, book debts
and lien on export letters of credits of the Group along with the personal guarantees of the directors. These
carried mark-up at the rate ranging from 0.25% to 1% above the State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) rate per annum
(2022: 0.25% to 1% above SBP rate per annum).

These represent facilities for finances against discounting of export bills / receivable arranged from various
banks aggregating to Rs 1,400 million (2022: Rs. 900 million). These are secured against pari-passu/ranking
hypothecation of stocks, book debts and lien on export letters of credits of the Group along with the personal
guarantees of the directors. These carried mark-up at the rate 1% above the State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) rate
per annum (2022: 1% above SBP rate per annum).

These represent facilities for running finances available from various banks aggregated to Rs. 9,155 million
(2022: Rs. 4,355 million). These are secured against pari-passu/ ranking hypothecation of stocks and book debts 
and personal guarantees of the directors. These carry mark-up at the rates ranging from 14.50% to 22.98% per
annum (2022: 7.61% to 14.81% per annum).

--------- Rupees ---------

The Ministry of Industries has declared the BOPET film manufacturing project of the Holding Company as
Pioneer Industry due to which import of capital goods shall be duty free. The Holding Comapny approached
the Board of Investment (BOI) for the permission of imports who entertained the request and was in the
process of evaluating the permission of import vide SRO 41(I)/2009. In the meantime, the Holding Comapny
imported some capital goods and as per section 81 of the Customs Act, 1969, issued post-dated cheques in
favour of Collector of Custom amounting to Rs. 557.403 million (2022: Rs. 557.403 million) for provisional
clearance of goods. However, due to delay on the part of Federal Board of Revenue, the formal SRO to
endorse the decision of Ministry of Industries is still awaited. 
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28.1.2

28.1.3

28.1.4

The Holding Company has filed various Suits/Petitions in the High Court of Sindh against the Federation of
Pakistan and others against the orders of Commissioner (Inland Revenue) who refused to issue exemption
certificates under section 148 of the Income Tax Ordinance 2001 (the Ordinance) on 22 October, 2018, in
order to avail the benefit of exemption from advance tax at import stage on plant and machineries as per SRO
947 of 2008, and the Holding Company would not pay any tax on income from business under the ordinance
on the basis of brought forward assessed losses available to the Holding Company, advance taxes deducted
during the financial years and carried forward tax refunds from fiscal year 2015-16 and onwards. The High
Court had allowed the Holding Company and ordered the concerned authorities to release the goods on
furnishing of bank guarantees with the Nazir of the High Court and the concerned collectorate against all
consignments which were released under similar grounds. The total quantum of bank guarantees involved in
above suits / petitions was Rs. 606.4 million (June 2022: Rs 606.4 million). Currently, Bank guarantees of
Rs.142.768 million (June 2022: Rs 119.562 million) has been released by the Order of the Sindh High Court and
Bank Guarantees of Rs. 463.632 million (June 2022: Rs 486.832 million) are held by the Collector of Customs.
Few Suits / Petitions are still pending in the Sindh High Court. The Holding Company's legal counsel is of the
opinion that Company has a good prima facie case and there will be no financial liability on the Holding
Company.

The Hoding Company had filed the subject Constitutional Petition in the High Court of Sindh vide D-2666 on
May 13, 2015 to refrain FBR and Pakistan Customs to encash the securities submitted against the provisional
release of the plant and machineries, and also to issue formal notification to endorse the earlier decision of the
Ministry of Industries dated August 15, 2012. The High Court has passed interim order dated May 13, 2015, in
favour of the Holding Company which is still operative and last hearing was held on April 10, 2023. The
management of the Holding Company is confident that exemption shall be granted on duties related to import
of capital goods against BOPET project retrospectively based on legal counsel’s opinion. 

The Holding Company had filed Constitutional Petition 620-K of 2015 on November 27, 2015 against
Federation of Pakistan, Federal Board of Revenue and Collectorate of Custom in the Supreme Court of
Pakistan against the operation of SRO 170(I)/2013 dated March 04, 2013 which required 8% duty on import of
Poly Ethylene Terephthalate (PET Resin). In this connection the High Court vide order dated March 12, 2013
directed those custom duties at the rate of 3% to be paid by the Holding Company to custom authorities and
insofar as differential amount is concerned, 2.5% shall be deposited in cash and 2.5% shall be paid through post-
dated cheques to the Nazir of the High Court. In this connection, the Holding Company had deposited pay
orders amounting to Rs. 100.217 million (2022: Rs. 100.217 million) and issued post-dated cheques amounting
to Rs. 100.217 million (2022: Rs. 100.217 million) in favour of Nazir of the High Court as directed. Further, the
Holding Company had filed petition in the High Court of Sindh for rationalization of duty structure on PET
Resin. The main grievance of the Holding Company was for classifying the Pet Resin (Film Grade) and Pet
Resin (Yarn Grade) under the same PCT Heading has already been redresses in Fiscal Budget (2015-16) and
from 01st July 2015, the raw material for BOPET film manufacturing i.e., PET Resin – Film Grade is being
imported on the same rate as applicable to PET Resin – Yarn Grade. However, the retrospective relief on the
previous consignments had been regretted by the High Court which was challenged in the Honorable Supreme
Court of Pakistan. Supreme Court of Pakistan via its order 17621/22 dated September 30, 2022 had disposed
off the case and Alternate Dispute Resolution Committee (ADRC) has been formed the last meeting was held
on dated August 08, 2023. The decision of ADRC is pending and the Holding Company's management and
legal counsel believes that there is no immediate financial liability against the Holding Company.

During the fiscal year 2017, Federal Board of Revenue had issued a show cause notice (SCN) on the basis of
scrutiny of sales tax returns of various tax periods which revealed that the Holding Company has claimed the
input tax of Astro Plastics (Private) Limited (APL) amounting to Rs. 477.804 million (June 2022: Rs. 477.804
million) in their sales tax returns. In response to SCN, the Holding Company has given the reference of the
letter dated: October 2016 sent to the Federal Board of Revenue in which it has categorically mentioned that
the High Court of Sindh, at Karachi, has sanctioned the petition no. J.Misc. 13/ 2016 for amalgamation by way
of merger of APL and its members with and into Ismail Industries Limited and its members and the Holding
Company has claimed the input sales tax on that basis. However, the Holding Company has filed Suit in the
High Court of Sindh vide No.1539/2017 on June 13, 2017 and obtained the stay order from the Court. In the
year 2020, subject suit was withdrawn by the Holding Company, to pursue the remedy available under section
134A of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 i.e., Alternative Dispute Resolution Committee which is still in
process. As per the legal counsel, the Holding Company has reasonable grounds to believe that it will not have
to incur any financial liability.
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28.1.5

28.1.6

28.1.7

28.1.8

The Holding Company had filed sale tax reference no. A.823 of 2015 on August 28, 2015 with the High Court
of Sindh upon the dismissal of appeal filed by the Holding Company before the Appellate Tribunal for tax year
2013 regarding sales tax audit. The High Court has restrained the Commissioner Inland Revenue from initiating
the proceeding on the basis of the order passed by the Appellate Tribunal as well as operation of the Order /
Judgement passed by the Tribunal has also been suspended. In the year 2020, subject suit was withdrawn by the
Company, to pursue the remedy available under section 134A of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 i.e.,
Alternative Dispute Resolution Committee which is still in process. The Holding Company's legal counsel is
confident that the case will be decided in favour of the Holding Company.
The Group had filed the Constitutional Petition 2752/2011 on August 09, 2011 and 1550-k/2021 on October
21, 2021 in the High Court of Sindh against the Excise and Taxation Department in respect of infrastructure
cess / fee being charged by the Government of Sindh on Imports and prayed to declare that Sindh Finance
(Amendment) Act, 2009 and / or rules made thereunder to be unconstitutional, illegal, void ab initio, and of no
legal effect. In all the five versions of the law i.e. Sindh Finance Act / Ordinance, the incidence of tax arise
upon ensuring of goods entering or leaving the province and such goods enter or leave the country through air
or sea. Furthermore, import and export are within the exclusive domain of the federal legislature i.e. the Sindh
legislature throughout lacked the jurisdiction to impose the levy. The imported goods were not released by the
custom authorities without paying the infrastructure cess / fee charged by the Government of Sindh.
Subsequently, the High Court ordered the custom authority to release the goods upon furnishing Bank
Guarantee. In 2021, the case had been disposed off by the High Court in favour of Excise and Taxation
Department. However, the Group along with the industry has challenged the applicability of said order in
Honorable Supreme of Pakistan through case number 4978 and 1633 of 2021 and the Court has granted the
stay order on Sep 01, 2021 upon providing the fresh bank guarantees equivalent to the amount already provided
to the High Court, keeping the previously furnished bank guarantees operative and enforceable against the
release of all future consignments of imported goods and restrained the authorities to take any coercive action
against the Group. The total quantum of bank guarantees involved is Rs. 923 million. (2022: Rs. 538 million).
In September 2014, the Federal Government promulgated Gas Infrastructure Development Cess (GIDC)
Ordinance No. VI of 2014 to circumvent earlier decision of the Supreme Court on the subject, where it had up
held that the earlier introduction of GIDC Act 2011 was unconstitutional and ultra vires on the ground,
amongst others, that GIDC was a ‘Fee’ and not a ‘Tax’ and the same suit was also filed against Federation of
Pakistan, OGRA , SSGC and SNGPL in different Honourable High Courts of Pakistan by Industry at Large. In
May 2015, the Government passed the GIDC Act, 2015 and the Holding Company has challenged that GIDC
Act 2015 and filed a writ petition in the High Court of Sindh including retrospective treatment of the provisions
of the GIDC Act, 2015. In October 2015, Sindh High Court (SHC) decided this suit in favour of the Holding
Company. However, the Government filed an appeal in Honorable Supreme Court of Pakistan, where the
Holding Company was not party to such litigation. The Honorable Supreme Court of Pakistan has disposed off
the case on 13 August, 2020 and instructed the gas distribution companies to recover the outstanding amount in
24 equal instalments only from those consumers who have already passed the burden of GIDC cost to their
customers. Based on the judgement of the Supreme Court, the Holding Company has obtained the stay order
from the High Court of Sindh on 16th September, 2020 against the gas distribution companies for recovering
of outstanding GIDC and disconnection of gas supply. The last hearing of this case was held on January 10,
2022. The cumulative differential amount of GIDC not yet recognised in these books amount to Rs 826 million
(June 2022: Rs 826 million) (inclusive of Sales Tax). The management and its legal counsel are of the view that
there is no need to maintain any provision against this liability and has a good prima facie case.
Through Finance Act, 2019, the Government had reduced tax credit available on new investments under
Section 65-B from 10% to 5% in FY-2019 and Nil from onward. The Holding Company has challenged the
provision of Finance Act, 2019 before the High Court of Sindh on 19 December, 2019 against the Federation
of Pakistan and obtained the interim relief of claiming 10% tax credit on all investments already planned
including its ancillary costs. The case was disposed off by the Honourable High Court of Sindh during the year
in favour of the Holding Company which has been challenged by the department in Honourable Supreme
Court of Pakistan. The management and Holding Company's legal council are confident that the case will be
decided in favour of the Holding Company.
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28.1.9

28.1.10

28.1.11

28.1.12

2023 2022
28.2 Commitments

28.2.1 Outstanding letters of guarantee 3,158,894,750   2,531,442,605    

28.2.2 Cross Corporate guarantees issued by Holding Company on behalf of
subsidiary companies 4,838,811,644   4,163,811,644    

28.2.3 Outstanding letters of credit for:
-   capital expenditure 1,404,832,375   4,143,155,291    
-   raw materials 7,088,433,702   1,529,969,416    

28.2.4

2023 2022
28.2.5

9,129,399,388   5,581,829,733    
10,570,628,182  22,334,098,319  - Commitments

The Group has issued guarantee in the form of sponsors support agreement to the lenders of M/s. Ismail
Resin (Private) Limited for investment in the form of equity or subordinated debts to cover the cost over-run,
or to cover the funding shortfall or any other obligation that may arise under financing documentations /
agreements executed with them.

The Holding Company had filed two petitions S-1803 & 1905 of 2020 before the High Court of Sindh and
challenged the OGRA notification bearing no. OGRA-(10)-3(8)/2020 dated October 23, 2020 for increase in
the price of natural gas and different prices for industrial and captive connection where the same is used for
internal consumption by industrial undertaking. The Court vide its order dated November 11, 2020 &
December 03, 2020 passed an interim stay order in favour of the Holding Company and suspended the afore-
mentioned notification by allowing to pay monthly gas charges as per previous notification and directed the
Holding Company to pay the balance amount by way of bank guarantee or cheque in favour of the Nazir of
Court. The cumulative differential amount is approximately Rs 158.932 million (June 2022: Rs 114.012 million)
(exclusive of sales tax) which has not been recorded in the statement of financial position. During the year, the
single bench of the High Court of Sindh disposed off the case against the Holding Company and the Company
has filed another case with the Divisional Bench of the same court. The Divisional Bench has granted the stay
order. The management and its legal counsel are of the view that there is no need to maintain any provision
against this liability and has a good prima facie case.

During the year, the Board of Revenue (BOR) has issued a notice to the Holding Company in accordance with
section 73 of the Stamp Act, 1899 for inspection of books of accounts and subsequently issued a demand
notice of Rs. 297.907 million as a stamp duty due against various contracts undertaken by the Company during
the year 2021 and 2022. The Holding Company challenged the said demand notice and filed a Constitutional
Petition D-8084 of 2022 on 26 December 2022 against BOR in the Honorable High Court of Sindh (SHC) and
cited that section 73 of the Stamp Act, 1899 allows the representative of BOR to inspect documents available in
public office only and inclusion of private office under the definition of Public Office is ultra vires and against
the principles of natural justice. SHC has granted stay order to the Holding Company against the impugned
demand notice and restrained the BOR from taking any coercive action against the plaintiff. The matter is still
pending in the SHC. The management and its legal counsel are of the view that there is no need to maintain any
provision against this liability and has a good prima facie case.

- Guarantees

--------- Rupees ---------

The Holding Company's share of commitments of associated company. --------- Rupees ---------

During the year, IRPL instituted two cases 3032 and 3033 of 2023 dated 11 April 2023 against custom
authorities before the Collector of Customs (Appeals) whereby the Company requested that the pipes and
cables imported for PET Resin project should be considered as part of plant and machinery for the purpose of
custom duties. Custom authorities have considered pipes and cables imported for PET Resin project as separate
imports and higher amount duty has been levied. The decision with regards to these cases is pending and the
Company's management and the legal counsel believe that the matter will be decided in favour of the Company.
The Company has also approached the High Court of Sindh via petition number C.P. 1952 and C.P 1953 of
2023 dated 14 April 2023 and prayed that the consignments to be released against bank guarantees which the
High Court of Sindh accepted and issued notice of release of the consignment. The Bank Guarantee involved is
Rs. 27.92 million (2022: Nil).
With reference to the contingency in associated company, The Bank of Khyber (BOK), please refer the note 20
of interim financial statement of June 30, 2023.
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2023 2022
34 OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES Note --------- Rupees ---------

Contribution to:
  -  workers' profits participation fund 381,493,334        181,898,959     
  -  workers' welfare fund 144,967,467        69,121,605       
Auditors' remuneration 34.1 6,912,880           5,790,920        

-                     4,687,272        
Exchange loss 517,833              100,000           
Donations 34.2 281,155,740        164,713,134     
Other 9,743,551           2,302,237        
Expense capitalized 6.7.1 -                     (4,687,272)       

824,790,805       423,926,854     

34.1 Auditor's remuneration

Audit fee - unconsolidated 3,000,000           2,700,000        
Audit fee - consolidated 900,000              800,000           
Audit fee - subsidiaries 1,362,880           900,000           
Fee for statutory certification 500,000              304,650           
Fee for half yearly review 600,000              600,000           
Out-of-pocket expense 550,000              486,270           

6,912,880           5,790,920        

34.2 Donation to the following organizations exceed 10% of total donation

- Shed Foundation -                     36,200,000       
- Dow University -                     25,488,500       
- Al Mustafa Welfare Trust 168,263,764        18,881,484       

168,263,764        80,569,984       

34.2.1

2023 2022
35 OTHER INCOME --------- Rupees ---------

Income from financial assets
Exchange gain 1,402,889,926     185,170,743     
Income from short term investments 174,115,265        51,031,115       
Income from non financial assets
Recovery from the sale of production scrap 222,244,677       133,877,106     
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment-net 55,758,818          347,892,410     
Processing income 107,496,556        37,093,010       
Insurance Income 3,238,000           -                  
Others 130,768,373        47,040,101       

2,096,511,615     802,104,485     

None of the donations were made to any donee in which a director or his spouse had any interest at any
time during the year.

Bank document charges
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2023 2022
Note --------- Rupees ---------

36 FINANCE COST

Mark up on:
-  long term finances -conventional 1,257,753,795     435,116,795     
-  long term finances-islamic 1,269,916,568     323,615,207     
-  short term finances-conventional 1,326,504,715     484,331,457     
-  short term finances-islamic 639,159,148        103,802,010     

Interest on workers' profits participation fund 2,208,112            4,285,279        
Finance charge on lease liabilities 4,112,592            3,419,107        
Bank charges 235,969,108        117,215,473     

6.7.1 (275,999,557)      (14,937,881)     
4,459,624,481     1,456,847,447  

37

37.1 The remuneration has been allocated as follows:

37.2 Bonus is given to employees as per the Group's policy.
2023 2022

Note --------- Rupees ---------
38 TAXATION

Current       1,228,350,029      833,538,584 
Prior year        (110,379,624)          5,723,799 
Deferred 24.3.1           42,492,186        (1,756,964)

1,160,462,591     837,505,419     

In addition to the above, Group maintained cars are provided to the chief executive officer, directors and
executives.

REMUNERATION OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICERS, DIRECTORS AND
EXECUTIVES

Expense capitalized

Chief Chief
executive executive
officers officers

Managerial remuneration 45,600,000     28,800,000      863,104,442    44,800,000      28,000,000   619,412,126    
Gratuity -                -                 41,247,215      -                 -               30,632,600      
Bonus -                -                 35,442,099      -                 -               27,457,758      
Leave Encashment -                -                 33,245,577      -                 -               24,414,046      

Reimbursement of expenses

Utilities 3,000,000       2,500,004        -                 2,916,663        2,416,671     -                 
 48,600,000     31,300,004      973,039,333    47,716,663      30,416,671   701,916,530    

Number of persons 3 2 202 3 2 157

------------------------------------------------Rupees------------------------------------------------

2023 2022

Directors Executives Director Executives

Chief Chief
executive executive
officers officers

Cost of goods sold -                -                 342,508,419    -                 -               269,206,303    

Selling and distribution expenses -                -                 372,206,003    -                 -               236,161,295    

Administrative expenses 48,600,000     31,300,004      258,324,911     47,716,663      30,416,671   196,548,932    
48,600,000     31,300,004      973,039,333    47,716,663      30,416,671   701,916,530    

Number of persons 3 2 202 3 2 157

------------------------------------------------Rupees------------------------------------------------

2023 2022

Directors DirectorExecutives Executives 
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38.1 RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN TAX EXPENSES AND ACCOUNTING PROFIT

2023 2022
--------- Rupees ---------

39 EARNINGS PER SHARE - basic and diluted

Basic earnings per share

Profit for the year atributtable to holding Company 5,999,711,211         2,352,955,856    

Number of shares
Weighted average number of shares outstanding as at year end 66,356,940            66,356,940         
Basic and diluted earnings per share 90.42 35.46

Diluted earnings per share

40 NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES 2023 2022

Number of employees as at the year end 3,388 2,919

Average number of employees during the year 3,154 2,718

2023 2022
Note --------- Rupees ---------

41 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS 

Profit before taxation 7,053,725,889        3,132,856,945    

Adjustments for non-cash and other items: 

Depreciation and amortisation 6.4.1 2,578,034,212        2,299,458,318    
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment-net 35 (55,758,818)           (347,892,410)      
Provision for staff gratuity scheme - unfunded 24.2.5 198,539,512           140,168,967       
Finance cost 36 4,735,624,038        1,456,847,447    
Share of profit from associated companies - net 8.1 (428,075,707)         (216,582,895)      
Provision for slow moving - stock in trade 208,616,052           34,161,978         
Allowance for expected credit loss 50,493,402            7,000,000           
Unrealized exchange gain (25,977,542)           (54,746,794)

-
        

Unrealized gain on short term investment (1,595,808)             
Unrealized exchange (gain) / loss on borrowing (101,247,409)          68,266,320         

14,212,377,821       6,519,537,876    
Working capital changes

Increase in current assets

Stores and spares (119,454,893)          (54,847,346)        
Stock-in-trade (7,984,062,575)      (811,588,158)      
Trade debts (4,867,788,190)       (2,386,139,029)   
Loans and advances (1,358,239,063)       (359,724,829)      
Trade deposits and short term prepayments (263,424,282)         (10,989,727)        
Other receivables (2,203,238,866)      (95,948)              

(16,796,207,869)     (3,623,385,037)   

Increase / (decrease) in current liabilities 

Trade and other payables 6,915,384,971        (542,277,185)      
Advances from customers - unsecured 636,152,929           (192,984,357)      

7,551,537,900        (735,261,542)      
 Net decrease in working capital (9,244,669,969)      (4,358,646,579)   
 Cash generated from operations 4,967,707,852        2,160,891,297    

--------Numbers ---------

There is no dilutive potential ordinary shares outstanding as at June 30, 2023 & June 30, 2022.

The numerical reconciliation between the average tax rate and the applicable tax rate has not been presented in these
financial statements as the total income of the company attracts minimum tax and FTR under income tax ordinance, 2001.
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42 Reconciliation of movement of liabilities to cash flow arising from financing activities

Long term 
finances-secured Lease Liabilities Accrued mark-up Total

Balance as at July 01, 2022 24,623,004,012      19,221,640          387,140,074          25,029,365,726     

Proceeds from long term finance 10,791,630,470      -                         -                            10,791,630,470      
Payment of long term finance (3,291,495,669)      -                         -                            (3,291,495,669)      
Addition of lease liabilities -                            27,956,291          -                            27,956,291            
Interest charged on finance lease -                            4,112,592            -                            4,112,592              
Payment of liabilities subject to finance lease -                            (18,351,675)        -                       (18,351,675)           
Finance cost for the year other than finance lease -                            -                         4,731,511,446        4,731,511,446        
Mark-up paid -                            -                         (3,918,305,280)      (3,918,305,280)      
Foreign exchange gain (101,247,409)         -                         -                       (101,247,409)         

Balance as at June 30, 2023 32,021,891,404      32,938,848         1,200,346,240       33,255,176,492     

Long term finances-
secured Lease Liabilities Accrued mark-up Total

Balance as at July 01, 2021 16,993,904,300      62,166,883          166,153,705          17,222,224,888      

Proceeds from long term finance 11,222,119,648      -                      -                        11,222,119,648      
Payment of long term finance (3,972,144,256)       -                      -                        (3,972,144,256)       
Addition of lease liabilities -                         11,734,621          -                        11,734,621             
Interest charged on finance lease -                         3,321,861            -                        3,321,861              
Payment of liabilities subject to finance lease -                         (58,001,725)         -                        (58,001,725)           
Finance cost for the year other than finance lease -                         -                      1,458,023,217        1,458,023,217        
Mark-up paid -                         -                      (1,237,036,848)       (1,237,036,848)       
Foreign exchange loss 68,266,320             -                      -                        68,266,320             
Adjustment due to acquisition 310,858,000           -                      -                        310,858,000           310,858,000           
Balance as at June 30, 2022 24,623,004,012      19,221,640          387,140,074           25,029,365,726      

--------------------------- Rupees ---------------------------

--------------------------- Rupees ---------------------------
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43 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND 2023 2022
RELATED DISCLOSURES Note --------- Rupees ---------

43.1 Financial instruments by category
Financial assets

At amortized cost
Long term deposits 9 33,172,123           27,390,426           
Trade debts 12 10,828,278,995    5,935,379,004      
Loans and advances 13 3,250,101,756      55,190,647           
Trade deposits - unsecured 14 312,583,280         36,442,097           
Other receivables 16 136,402,027         100,402,028         
Cash and bank balances 18 1,651,166,603      373,050,231         
Short term investment 15 837,419,971         1,128,192,640      
At fair value through OCI
Short term investment 15 834,465,000        190,000,000         
Total financial assets 17,883,589,755    7,846,047,073      

Financial liabilities
At amortized cost

Long term finances 22 32,021,891,404    24,623,004,012    
Lease liabilities 23 32,938,848          19,221,640           
Trade and other payables 25 9,932,877,904     3,023,618,960      
Accrued mark-up 26 1,200,346,240      387,140,074         
Short term finances 27 15,108,282,892    9,088,758,920      
Unclaimed dividend 5,069,267            4,044,553             

58,301,406,555    37,145,788,159    

43.2 Total financial liabilities

a) Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

- changes in market and trading activity (e.g. significant increases / decreases in activity)
- changes in inputs used in valuation techniques (e.g. inputs becoming / ceasing to be observable in the market)

b) Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, 
either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2).
c) Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data(that is, unobservable inputs) (level 3)

Level 2: Non active markets The fair value of financial instruments of non active market is based on inputs available in the
market.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction in the
principal (or most advantageous) market at the measurement date under current market conditions (i.e. an exit price) regardless
of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique.

The Company classifies fair value measurements using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs used in
making the measurements. The fair value hierarchy has the:

The Group recognizes transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period during which the
transfer has occurred.

The Group’s policy for determining when transfers between levels in the hierarchy have occurred includes monitoring of the
following factors:

There is a transfer of  level 3 short term investment to level 1 as it become listed during the year. 
The valuation techniques used are as follows:
Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is based on market value of shares at the reporting date. A
market is regarded as active when it is a market in which transactions for the asset or liability take place with sufficient
frequency and volume to provide pricing information on an ongoing basis.
The following table analysis within the fair value hierarchy of the Group’s financial assets (by class) measured at fair value at 
June 30, 2023:
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Financial assets Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

       834,465,000                         -                            -            834,465,000 

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

       190,000,000                         -                            -            190,000,000 

43.3 Financial risk management

 - Credit risk
 - Liquidity risk
 - Market risk

43.3.1 Credit risk

Trade debts

Bank balances

The bank balances along with the credit ratings are tabulated below:

2023 2022
--------- Rupees ---------

Allied Bank Limited A1+             172,939,254               41,972,895 
Bank Al Falah Limited A1+               21,784,621                1,576,703 
Bank Al Habib Limited A1+               20,544,213               18,906,767 
Bank Islami Pakistan Limited A1             282,855,292             100,324,791 
Dubai Islamic Bank Pakistan Limited A1+               23,114,726                7,835,361 
Faysal Bank Limited A1+                            -                              -   
Habib Bank Limited A1+              510,831,431               73,496,196 
Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited A1+               70,566,469               30,484,113 
JS Bank Limited A1+             169,286,031               20,734,200 
MCB Bank Limited A1+               52,297,179                   366,877 
MCB Islamic Bank Limited A1               51,586,951 310,831                
Meezan Bank Limited A1+             153,889,541               42,025,341 
National Bank of Pakistan A1+                 8,915,237               21,622,218 
Samba Bank Limited A1                      16,185                     15,185 
Soneri Bank Limited A1+               30,186,697                1,153,047 

Balance carried forward           1,568,813,827             360,824,525 

Financial investments: fair value through OCI

Financial investments: fair value through OCI

2022

-------------------Rupees --------------------

Credit risk of the Group arises principally from the trade debts, loans and advances, trade deposits, other receivables and
deposits with financial institutions. The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure.

The Group's exposure to credit risk arising from trade debtors is mainly influenced by the individual characteristics of each
customer. The majority of the customers have been transacting with the Group for several years. Actual credit loss experience
over past years is used to base the calculation of expected credit loss.

Short- term 
Ratings

The board of directors of the Group has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company's risk
management framework. The Group has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:

The Group limits its exposure to credit risk by investing in liquid securities and maintaining bank accounts only with counter-
parties that have stable credit rating. Given these high credit ratings, management does not expect that any counter party will
fail to meet their obligations.

2023

-------------------Rupees --------------------

Credit risk represents the accounting loss that would be recognised at the reporting date if counter-parties failed completely to
perform as contracted. The Group does not have significant exposure to any individual counter-party. To reduce exposure to
credit risk the Group has developed a formal approval process whereby credit limits are applied to its customers. The
management also regularly monitors the credit exposure towards the customers and makes allowance for ECLs against those
balances considered doubtful of recovery. To mitigate the risk, the Group has a system of assigning credit limits to its
customers based on evaluation based on customer profile and payment history. Outstanding customer receivables are regularly
monitored.
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2023 2022
--------- Rupees ---------

Balance brought forward           1,568,813,827             360,824,525 
Summit Bank Limited -                    313,971                   355,371 
Standard Charted Bank Limited A1+                 1,181,241                            -   
Bank of Punjab A1+               41,949,567                6,021,332 
Askari Bank Limited A1+

A1
              32,732,561                   952,393 

Al Barka Bank Limited                   48,950                            -   
          1,645,040,117             368,153,621 

Exposure to credit risk

2023 2022
Note --------- Rupees ---------

Long term deposit 9 33,152,123                         27,390,426 
Trade debts 12 10,669,814,953    5,827,408,364      
Loans and advances 13 3,250,101,756      1,935,546,619      
Trade deposits - unsecured 14 312,583,280         36,442,097           
Short term investments 15 837,419,971         1,128,192,640      
Bank balances 18 1,645,040,117      368,153,621         
Other receivable 16 136,402,027         100,402,028         

16,884,514,227    9,423,535,795      

2023 2022
--------- Rupees ---------

More than 45 days but not more than 3 months 590,569,095                 263,695,837 
More than 3 months but not more than 6 months 423,417,227                  160,765,756 
More than 6 months but not more than 1 year 257,745,546                 144,757,519 
More than 1 year 107,616,349         83,909,116           

1,379,348,217      653,128,228         

43.3.2 Liquidity risk

Effective rates of return/mark-up on financial liabilities are as follows:

In respect of trade debts, the Group is not exposed to any significant credit risk exposure to any single counterparty or any
group of counterparties having similar characteristics. Trade debts consists of a large number of customers. Based on historical
information about customer default rates management consider the credit quality of trade debts that are not past due and
impaired to be good. Actual credit loss experience over past years is used to base the calculation of expected credit loss.

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulties in meeting obligations associated with financial liabilities that
are settled by delivering cash or other financial assets. Liquidity risk arises because of the possibility that the Group could be
required to pay its liabilities earlier than expected or difficulty in raising funds to meet commitments associated with financial
liabilities as they fall due. The Group's approach to managing liquidity risk is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have
sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable
losses or risking damage to the Group's reputation. Based on the above, management believes the liquidity risk is insignificant.

These represents intrest free loan that are to be paid within a period of one year in equal monthly installments as per policy. Any 
outstanding laon due from an employee at the time of leaving the service is adjustable against the final settlement of staff.

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the
reporting date was:

To reduce the exposure to credit risk, the Group has developed a formal approval process whereby credit limits are applied to
its customers. The management continuously monitors the credit exposure towards the customers and makes provision against
those balances considered doubtful of recovery.

Short- term 
Ratings

As at the reporting date the Group's financial liabilities have contractual maturities as summarized below:

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counter parties are banks with reasonably high credit rating.
As at June 30 the Group has certain trade debts that are past due but are not considered to be impaired. The amounts as at June
30 are as follows:
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Note
Financial liabilities
Interest bearing
Long term finances - secured 
(Conventional)

22
2.25% to 22% 24,449,440,071   2,770,386,819      21,679,053,252    

Long term finances - secured        (Islamic)
15.50% to 23%

7,572,451,333    1,438,497,713      6,133,953,620     

Lease liabilities - conventional 23  15% to 23% 
32,938,848         10,826,930           22,111,918           

Short term finances - secured 
(conventional)

27 16.20% to 
22.20% 14,656,046,452   14,656,046,452    -                      

Short term finances - secured (Islamic)
27 12.64% to 

22.27% 452,236,440       452,236,440        -                      
Non - interest bearing
Trade and other payables 25 - 9,932,877,904    9,932,877,904     -                      
Accrued mark-up 26 - 1,200,346,240    1,200,346,240      -                      
Unclaimed dividend 5,069,267           5,069,267            

58,301,406,555   30,466,287,765    27,835,118,790    

Financial liabilities
Interest bearing
Long term finances - secured 
(Conventional)

22 1.5% to 
16.50% 16,698,616,806   2,784,658,932       13,913,957,874    

Long term finances - secured (Islamic) 6.30% to 16.50% 7,924,387,206     723,004,101         7,201,383,105      
Lease liabilities - conventional  7.76% to 7.96% 13,068,275          3,960,240             9,108,035             

Lease liabilities - Islamic  7.28% to 8.48% 6,153,365            3,931,765             2,221,600             
Short term finances - secured 
(conventional) 27 8.43% to 14.86%

8,802,588,120     8,802,588,120       -                       
Short term finances - secured (Islamic) 27 7.93% to 7.97% 286,170,800        286,170,800         -                       
Non - interest bearing
Trade and other payables 25 - 3,023,618,960     3,023,618,960       -                       
Accrued mark-up 26 - 387,140,074        387,140,074         -                       
Unclaimed dividend - 4,044,553            4,044,553             -                       

37,145,788,159   16,019,117,545     21,126,670,614    

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

43.3.3 Market risk

At June 30, 2023, if interest rates on long term financing had been 1% higher / lower with all other variables held constant, pre
tax profit for the year would have been affected by Rs. 272.89 million (June 2022: Rs. 230.70 million) higher / lower, mainly as a
result of higher / lower interest expense on floating rate borrowings.

At June 30, 2023, if interest rates on short term borrowings had been 1% higher / lower with all other variables held constant,
pre tax profit for the year would have been affected by Rs. 151.08 million (June 2022: Rs. 90.89 million) higher / lower, mainly
as a result of higher / lower interest expense on floating rate borrowings.

Market risk is the risk that fair value of future cash flows of the financial instrument may fluctuate as a result of changes in
market prices. Market prices comprise of three types of risks namely foreign currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk,
such as equity risk.

Note

Effective rate of 
interest Carrying amount Maturity upto one 

year

23

----------------------------------Rupees-----------------------------

Maturity after 
one year

2022

----------------------------------Rupees-----------------------------

2023
Maturity upto 

one year
Maturity after 

one year
Effective rate of 

interest
Carrying 
amount
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a) Foreign currency risk

Exposure to Foreign currency risk

2023 2022
---------- Amount in USD ----------

Trade debts 20,221,659             6,959,632               
Cash and bank balances 3,353,064               159,782                  
Trade and other payables (7,599,407)             (1,690,127)              
Loans and advances 924,753                  268,568                  
Advance from customer (738,013)                (255,589)                 

16,162,056             5,442,266               

Off balance sheet exposures
Letter of credit (21,986,704)            (10,710,555)            
Net Exposure (5,824,648)             (5,268,289)              

The following significant exchange rates were applied during the year.
2023 2022

Average rate 246.30                   181.65                    
Reporting date rate 287.10                    205.50                    

Foreign currency sensitivity analysis

2023 2022
--------- Rupees ---------

Strengthening of PKR against respective currencies 167,225,644           108,263,339           

Weakening of PKR against respective currencies (167,225,644)          (108,263,339)          

2023 2022
Note --------- Rupees ---------

Export debtors 12 5,805,638,355     1,430,204,301      
Import creditors 2,105,421,016      347,321,180         

7,911,059,371      1,777,525,481      
b) Interest rate risk

2023 2022
--------- Rupees ---------

Variable rate instruments
Financial liabilities 8,395,937,026      4,356,039,103      

8,395,937,026      4,356,039,103      

As at 30 June 2023, if KIBOR had been 100 bps lower/higher with all other variables held constant, profit before tax for the
year would have been higher/lower by Rs. 83.96 million. (2022: Rs. 43.56 million) mainly because of higher/lower interest
expense on variable rate instruments.

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of the future cash flows of a financial instrument may fluctuate because of the
changes in market interest rates. Majority of the interest rate exposure arises from short and long term borrowings from banks,
running finance facilities and finance leases. At the reporting date the interest rate profile of the Group's mark-up bearing
financial instruments is as follows:

As at 30 June 2023, if the Pakistani Rupee had weakened / strengthened by 10% against the US Dollar with all other variables
being constant, profit before tax for the year would have been lower / higher by Rs. 167.23 million (2022: Rs. 108.26 million)
mainly as a result of foreign exchange gains / losses on translation of dollar denominated financial assets.

A 10 percentage strengthening of the PKR against the USD at June 30, 2022 would have effect on the equity and profit and loss
of the company as shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant. The
analysis is performed on the same basis for June 30, 2023.

Rupee per USD

Carrying amount

The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from currency value fluctuations due to the following:

The maximum exposure to foreign currency risk in Pakistani rupee at the reporting date is as follows:

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of financial asset or a liability will fluctuate due to changes in
foreign exchange rates. It arises mainly where receivables and payables exist due to transactions entered into foreign currencies.
The Group primarily has foreign currency exposures in US Dollars.
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c) Equity risk

44 CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

2023 2022
---------- Rupees ----------

Share capital 663,569,400        663,569,400         
Reserves      15,543,088,252      10,790,536,824 

     16,206,657,652      11,454,106,224 

2023 2022
------------ Rupees ------------

Total borrowings 47,163,113,144     33,711,762,932    
Less: Cash and bank balances (1,651,166,603)     (373,050,231)        
Net debt 45,511,946,541    33,338,712,701    
Total equity 16,206,657,652    11,454,106,224    
Total equity and debt 61,718,604,193    44,792,818,925    

Net Gearing ratio (%) 73.7% 74.4%

45 PLANT CAPACITY AND ACTUAL PRODUCTION  

Rated Actual Rated Actual
Capacity Production Capacity Production

Food processing 219,932 123,317 183,288 100,625

Plastic film 63,000 34,121 63,000 39,928

Pharmaceuticals

Blow fill seal 18,000 16,650 18,000 13,875
Ophthalmic 2,500 2,375 2,500 2,146

 Derma 4,200 308 4,200 257

The Group has enhanced the production capacity in food processing by 36,644 metric tons and production by 22,692 metric
tons.  Remaining capacity and production utilization was as per the market demand.

During 2023 the Group's strategy was to maintain leveraged gearing. The gearing ratios as at June 30, 2022 and 2023 are as
follows:

The Group finances its operations through equity, borrowings and management of working capital with a view to maintain an 
appropriate mix amongst various sources of finance to minimize risk.

2023 2022
------------Metric Ton ------------ ------------Metric Ton ------------

It is the risk that the listed equity securities are susceptible to market price risk, arising from uncertainties about future values of
the investment securities.

The Group manages its capital risk by monitoring its debt levels and liquid assets and keeping in view future investments
requirements and expectations of the shareholders. Debt is calculated as total borrowings (long term finances). The Group's
capital signifies equity as reported in statement of financial position and includes share capital and unappropriated profit and
reserves.

The Group’s capital includes share capital and reserves. As at reporting date the capital of the Group is as follows:

The Group manages its capital structure by monitoring return on net assets and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes
in economic conditions. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividend paid
to the shareholders or issue bonus / right shares. There were no changes in the Group's approach to capital management
during the year and the Group is not subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

The objective of the Group when managing capital is to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern so that it can
continue to provide returns to shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain a strong capital base to support
the sustained development of its businesses.
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46 TRANSACTION WITH RELATED PARTIES

Key Management Personnel (KMP)
Name

Mr. Ahmed Muhammad 
Mr. Maqsood Ismail Ahmed 
Mr. Hamza Naviwala
Mr. Munsarim Saif
Mr. Ghulam Farooq
Mr. Ahmed Raza Parekh

Plastiflex Films (Private) Limited 2023 2022
(Associate Company - Common Directorship)

   -  Purchase of raw & packing materials 52,029,928   62,372,972    

   -  Metallization of raw material (5,122,395)    (22,307,473)   

   -  Sales of raw  and packing material -               (8,000,957)     

   -  Recovery against sales 3,774,945     36,050,153    

   -  Payment against purchases (56,392,939)  (64,364,321)   

47 NON- ADJUSTING EVENT

47.1

48 DATE OF AUTHORIZATION

Nil
Nil

0.85
Nil

These consolidated financial statements were authorized for issue on September 08, 2023 by the board of directors of the
Holding Company.

Related parties comprise associated undertakings, directors of the Group and key management personnel. The Group continues
to have a policy whereby all transactions with related parties are entered into at commercial terms and conditions.
Details of transactions with related parties, other than those which have been specifically disclosed elsewhere in these
consolidated financial statements, are as follows:

The board of directors in its meeting held on September 08, 2023 has proposed dividend in respect of the year ended June 30,
2023 of Rs. ________ per share (2022: Rs. 4/- per share) for approval of the members at the annual general meeting. The
consolidated financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2023 do not include the effect of proposed dividend, which will
be accounted for in the consolidated financial statements for the year ending  June 30, 2024.

15.22

--------- Rupees ---------

Direct shareholding %

0.000009
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 Munsarim Saifullah
Chief Executive Officer

Maqsood Ismail Ahmed
Director Chief Financial Officer

Ahmed Raza Parekh
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ISMAIL INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Number of Total Number
Shareholders From To of Shares Held

1348 1 - 100 17,111             
110 101 - 500 32,502             
31 501 - 1000 24,548             
44 1001 - 5000 94,213             
4 5001 - 10000 29,061             
4 10001 - 15000 50,916             
1 20001 - 25000 20,876             
1 30001 - 35000 34,500             
1 435001 - 440000 435,400           
1 475001 - 480000 480,000           
1 560001 - 565000 562,155           
1 1270001 - 1275000 1,271,650        
1 1380001 - 1385000 1,380,450        
1 1510001 - 1515000 1,510,090        
1 3595001 - 3600000 3,600,000        
1 6500001 - 6505000 6,500,090        
1 10405001 - 10410000 10,408,198      
1 19310001 - 19315000 19,312,293      
1 20590001 - 20595000 20,592,887      

Total 1554 66,356,940     

Number of Number of
Shareholders Shares Held

CEO, Sponsor, Directors their Spouses & Children 14 65,619,966      98.89%
1 435,400           0.66%

Foreign Companies 1 3,300               0.00%
Others 7 4,474               0.01%
General Public

10 4,539               0.01%
1521 289,261           0.44%
1554 66,356,940     100.00%

Purchase Sale
Mr. Muhammad M. Ismail (Chairman) 3,500               -                  

PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING
SHAREHOLDERS STATISTICS AS AT JUNE 30, 2023

Shareholdings

Associated Company

PercentageShareholder's Category

Trade in Shares by Directors, CEO, CFO, Company Secretary, Executives and their Spouses 
and Children.

(a) Foreign
(b) Local
Total



Number of Number of
Folios Shares Held

Associated Company:
004,5341detimiL )etavirP( seirtsudnI norinU            0.66              

Directors:
551,2651demhA liamsI doosqaM .rM            0.85              
090,001,012dammahuM demhA .rM       15.22            

Mr. Muhammad Zubair Motiwala (Independent) 1 520                 0.00              
0251)tnednepednI( fusuY meensaT .sM                  0.00              
090,015,11liamsI doosqaM dimaH .rM         2.28              

Chief Executive Officer:
3161hallufiaS mirasnuM .rM                  0.00              

Chairman:
891,804,011liamsI .M dammahuM .rM       15.69            

CEO, Directors their Spouses & Children:
054,083,11dammahuM anazraF .sM         2.08              
392,297,912doosqaM samlA .sM       29.83            
0051miraK demhA hsivheM .sM                  0.00              

Sponsor, his Spouse & Children:
788,295,021demhA liamsI hatfiM .rM       31.03            
056,172,11demhA liamsI ameeR .sM         1.92              

Others 1539 301,574           0.45              

049,653,664551latoT      100.00          

Shareholders holding 10% or more voting interest

891,804,011liamsI .M dammahuM .rM       15.69
788,295,021liamsI hatfiM .rM       31.03
392,297,912doosqaM samlA .sM       29.83
090,001,012dammahuM demhA .rM       15.22

egatnecrePyrogetaC s'redloherahS
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Registered Office Address: 17-Bangalore Town, Main Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi               
Tel: +92 21 34311170-77 Fax: +92 21 34541094 

 
Ballot Paper for voting through post for poll to be held at the Annual General Meeting of Ismail Industries 
Limited “Company” on Monday October 23, 2023 at 12:00 noon at Hotel Galaxy, Bushra Hall, B.C.H.S 
Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi. 
 
Contact Detail of Chairman, where ballot paper may be sent: 
Business Address: The Chairman, Ismail Industries Limited, 17-Bangalore Town, Main Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi, 
Attention: Company Secretary Designated email address: secretarialcompliance@ismailindustries.com 
  

Name of Shareholder/joint shareholder   
Registered address of shareholder(s)   
Number of shares held   
Folio number   
CNIC Number (Copy to be attached)   
Additional information and enclosures (In case of 
representative of body corporate, corporation and 
Federal Government.) 

  

 
 
I/we hereby exercise my/our vote in respect of the following Special Resolution through postal ballot by conveying 
my/our assent or dissent to the following resolution by placing tick ( ) mark in the appropriate box below: 
 

 
 

Agenda 

 
 

Nature and Description of Special Resolution 

I/We assent 
to the 

Special 
Resolution 

(FOR) 

I/We dissent 
to the 

Special 
Resolution 

(AGAINST) 
5. 

 
 

6. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

7. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
8 
 
 
 
 
 

To consider and approve the remuneration of the Chief Executive Officer 
and Executive Director. 
 
To ratify and approve transactions conducted with Related Parties for the 
year ended June 30, 2023 by passing the following special resolution with 
or without modification: 
 
"RESOLVED THAT transactions carried out in normal course of 
business with Related Parties during the year ended June 30, 2023 as 
disclosed in the note no. 45 of the unconsolidated financial statements be 
and are hereby ratified and approved." 
 
To authorize the Board of Directors of the Company to approve 
transactions with Related Parties for the financial year ending June 30, 
2024, by passing the following special resolutions with or without 
modification: 
 
“RESOLVED THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and 
are hereby authorized to approve transactions to be conducted with 
Related Parties on case-to-case basis for the financial year ending June 30, 
2024.” 
 
“FURTHER RESOLVED THAT these transactions as approved by 
the Board shall be deemed to have been approved by the shareholders 
and shall be placed before the shareholders in the next Annual General 
Meeting of the Company for their formal ratification/approval.” 
 
To approve the circulation of Annual Report (including the Audited 
Financial Statements, Auditor’s Report, Directors’ Report and Chairman’s 
Review Report) to the members of the Company through QR enabled 
code and weblink, in accordance with section 223 (6) and 223 (7) of the 
Companies Act, 2017 read with S.R.O. 389(I)/2023 dated March 21, 
2023. 
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9 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

A. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

B. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
C. 

To consider and if deemed fit, to pass with or without modification(s), 
addition(s) or deletion(s), the following Special Resolution(s) under 
Section 199 of the Companies Act, 2017 read with the Companies 
(Investment in Associated Companies or Associated Undertakings) 
Regulations, 2017 (as may be amended), as recommended by the Board 
of Directors of the Company: 
 
RESOLVED THAT, approval of the members of the Company is 
hereby accorded by way of special resolution (in accordance with Section 
199 of the Companies Act, 2017 read with Companies (Investment in 
Associated Companies or Associated Undertakings) Regulations, 2017) 
for the following acts by the Company: 
 
Approval for the Company to extend to its subsidiary, M/s. Ismail Resin 
(Private) Limited, an intercompany loan in the aggregate amount of up to 
Rs. 8,000,000,000 (Rupees: Eight billion), comprising of, inter alia, loans, 
advances and/or security in any form (including without limitation 
guarantees, government securities, cash, listed/unlisted securities etc.,) on 
an arm’s length basis, in the form of a revolving line of credit valid for a 
period of one year from the date of the special resolution, which may be 
renewed by the Company for up to five consecutive periods of one year 
each; 
 
Approval for the Company to extend to its subsidiary, M/s. Hudson 
Pharma (Private) Limited, an intercompany loan in the aggregate amount 
of up to Rs. 1,500,000,000 (Rupees: One billion five hundred million), 
comprising of, inter alia, loans, advances and/or security in any form 
(including without limitation guarantees, government securities, cash, 
listed/unlisted securities etc.,) on an arm’s length basis, in the form of a 
revolving line of credit valid for a period of one year from the date of the 
special resolution, which may be renewed by the Company for up to five 
consecutive periods of one year each; 
 
Approval for the Company to extend to its associate, M/s. Innovita 
Nutrition (Private) Limited, an intercompany loan in the aggregate 
amount of up to Rs. 1,000,000,000 (Rupees: One billion), comprising of, 
inter alia, loans, advances and/or security in any form (including without 
limitation guarantees, government securities, cash, listed/unlisted 
securities etc.,) on an arm’s length basis, in the form of a revolving line of 
credit valid for a period of one year from the date of the special resolution, 
which may be renewed by the Company for up to five consecutive periods 
of one year each; 
 
FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the Chief Executive Officer / 
Company Secretary of the Company be and are hereby singly authorized 
to execute and deliver all necessary deeds, agreements, declarations, 
undertakings, documents and take any and/or all actions to implement 
and give effect to above resolutions and to complete any or all required 
corporate and necessary legal formalities for the purpose of 
implementation of above resolutions.”  

 
NOTES:  
 
1. Duly filled postal ballot should be sent to Chairman at above-mentioned postal or email address. 
2. Copy of CNIC should be enclosed with the postal ballot form. 
3. Postal ballot forms should reach Chairman of the meeting on or before Friday October 20, 2023. Any postal ballot 

received after this date will not be considered for voting. 
4. Signature on postal ballot should match with signature on CNIC. 
5. Incomplete, unsigned, incorrect, defaced, torn, mutilated, over written ballot paper will be rejected. 

 
 
Signature of Shareholder(s) _______________                  Place: ______________                           Date: _____________ 



 

      
Proxy Form 

 
The Secretary/ Registrar 
 
I/We ____________________ son/ daughter/ wife of ____________________, shareholder of 

Ismail Industries Limited , holding ________ ordinary shares as per register under Folio No 

________and/or CDC Participant ID ________ and Sub- Account No.________ hereby appoint 

____________________(holding ________ ordinary shares in the Company as per register under 

Folio No ________ and/or CDC Participant ID ________ and Sub- Account No. ________) or 

failing him/her ___________________, (holding ________ ordinary shares in the Company as 

per register under Folio No ________ and/or CDC Participant ID ________ and Sub- Account 

No.________) as my/our proxy, to attend and vote for me/us on my/our behalf at the Annual 

General Meeting of the Company to be held on October 23, 2023 and/ or any adjournment 

thereof. 

 
Signed this _________ day of _________ 2023. 
 

(Signature should agree with the specimen     
signature registered with the Company) 

 
 
 
         
 
 
        

 Signature of Member(s) 
 
Witness 1:      Witness 2: 
 
Signature _____________    Signature _____________ 
 
Name  _____________    Name  _____________ 
 
CNIC #  _____________    CNIC #  _____________  
  
 
Notes: 
 
1. A proxy need be a member of the Company 
 
2. In order to be valid, this Proxy must be received to our Registrar/Transfer Agents, M/s. THK 

Associates (Pvt) Ltd. Plot No. 32-C, Jami Commercial Street 2, D.H.A Phase VII, Karachi 75500 
Pakistan at least 48 hours before the time fixed for the Meeting, duly completed in all respects. 

 
3. CDC Shareholders or their Proxies should bring their original Computerized National Identity Card 

(CNIC) or Original Passport along with the Participant’s ID Number and their Account Number to 
facilitate their identification. 

Sign across Rs.5/- 
Revenue Stamp 
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